


 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, November 13, 2018 - 7:00pm 
Takiff Center - Community Hall  

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order   

II. Roll Call 
III. Consent Agenda Items 

A. Minutes of October 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Approval of the Bills 

IV. Matters from the Public 
V. Truth in Taxation Hearing: An Ordinance Levying the Taxes for the Glencoe Park District, 

Cook County, IL for 2018 
VI. Approval of Ordinance No. 889: Levying the Taxes for the 2018 Tax Year 

VII. Financial Report 
VIII. Staff Reports 

A.  Business 
B. Recreation and Facilities 
C. Parks and Maintenance 
D. Marketing and Communications 
E. Safety and Wellness Committee 

IX. Executive Director Report 
X. Action Items 

A. Acceptance of the Glencoe Active Transportation Plan 
B. Approval of Land Acquisition Policy 

XI. Other Business 
XII. Executive Session 

A. Personnel 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
XIII. Adjournment 

The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or 
facilities, are asked to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: 
lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Directors or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are invited
and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with any

questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
November 2018 Board Meeting



DRAFT

MINUTES OF OCTOBER 16, 2018 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Dudley Onderdonk, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Bob Kimble, Commissioner   Erin Classen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
 Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant

Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Michael Covey, Adam 
Hall, Gary Hazan, Heather Schady, Nina Schroeder

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Onderdonk to approve the 
consent agenda items as presented including Minutes of September 17, 2018 Regular 
Board Meeting, Minutes of October 2, 2018 Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting, 
Minutes of October 2, 2018 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting, Approval 
of the Bills, and Approval of the Abused and Neglected Child Abuse Reporting Act 
Policy. Commissioner Boron seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll 
call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Kimble, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: Lutton 

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board. 

Financial Report:  Director of Finance/Human Resources Mensinger stated we are 
seven months into the fiscal year. The daycare expansion is on track to show a gain in 
that area. Beach and Boating Department funds are more accurately represented 
following a transfer of Parks staff payroll from the Beach department to boating.
Recreation program supplies last year are lower than the current year due to a 
miscoding in last year’s supplies discovered during this year’s budget process.

Presentation of the Glencoe Active Transport Plan: Heather Schady from the Active 
Transportation Alliance and Adam Hall from the Village of Glencoe gave a presentation 
to the Board regarding the action plan for Glencoe Active Transportation. Discussion 
ensued. The Board will be asked to accept the plan at the November regular meeting. 
Then the entities involved will determine which items to take on, timeline, etc. 
Discussion ensued. A commissioner requested that the District include on its website 
distance, time, links to other trails to encourage use. 



2

Review of 2019 Health Insurance Renewal: Director Mensinger explained that the 
PDRMA Health Council meets to approve the new rates for plans and membership. The 
pool allows us to be a group of over 2,000 employees and over 4,000 covered lives, 
minimizing the exposure to high claims. The 2019 increase is 2.17%, although there is 
no increase in Dental and Employee Assistance Plans. 

The recommendation from staff is to still offer the $500 deductible plan as an option with 
a higher contribution, offer the HMO plan, and the incentive for a high deductible HRA 
plan. Open enrollment starts the end of the month and goes through November 20. In 
December, the service provider will be changing from CoreSource to HealthSmart. 
PDRMA’s PATH health program was reviewed. Discussion ensued. 

Presentation of the 2018 Lakefront Report: Director Collins and Beach Facility Manager 
Matt Walker presented the Glencoe Lakefront Annual Report attached to these minutes. 
Discussion with the Board ensued. 

Staff Reports: Staff shared additional information not included in their Board Reports.

Director Mensinger shared that the Admin department received a 99.4 on the loss 
control review.

Director Collins announced that the ice rink loss control review is coming up this month. 
The recreation team is currently working on the budget and winter brochure. 

Director Leiner reported the parks loss control review scheduled this week. The parks 
department is working on fall park projects and baseball sport fields. An early shutdown 
of water fountains occurred earlier than normal based on freezing temperatures at night. 

Superintendent Classen communicated that her department is working on the winter 
brochure.

Safety and Wellness Committee reported finalizing our loss control review and training 
related to that. The District will not have to do another review for 4-5 years. 

Executive Director Report:  Executive Director Sheppard shared that the Takiff benches 
are installed at the main entrance and bike rakes will be by the end of the month. We 
are Gold Medal Finalists as one of four park districts with a population under 30,000.
We finished the two-year process of Distinguished Accreditation. The accreditation 
plaque will be received at the IAPD/IPRA Conference Awards Luncheon. The IAPD 
Legal Symposium will be attended by Lisa, Chris, and Bobby to keep up to date with 
legal changes. The ADA Integrated Transition Plan, included in the packet, will be 
approved as individual projects are brought before the Board. It will take about 10 years 
to complete. 

The Board gave a consensus that Christmas Eve will be an additional staff holiday this 
year.



3

The IAPD/IPRA conference brochure is out, please let Executive Director Sheppard 
know if you would like to attend. On the Saturday of conference is the IAPD Annual 
Meeting, the Board will need to determine the delegate and alternate who can be a 
commissioner or staff member as an action item. 

Woodlawn Park is looking to be finished in late November. Equipment is installed about 
60% of the way, infrastructure goes in after.

Action Items: 

Approval of Resolution No. 888 Truth in Taxation:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Lutton to approve Resolution No. 888 Truth in Taxation as presented.
Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call 
vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
The motion passed. 

Approval of Health Insurance Recommendation for 2019:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Kimble to approve the Health Insurance Recommendation for 2019 as 
presented. Commissioner Boron seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued.
Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
The motion passed. 

Approval of the Watts Recreation Center Rooftop HVAC Replacement Bid:  A motion 
was made by Commissioner Boron to approve the lowest responsible bidder, Core 
Mechanical, Incorporated of Chicago, Illinois, for the Watts RTU HVAC replacement 
including the base bid, and alternates 1 & 2 for a total of $44,315 as presented.
Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion. The budget was $50,000 after that the 
working construction budget was $41,880 after professional service fees. We had to 
bring in an engineer for the rooftop unit, so came in a little over budget. We ask the 
Board to consider using the funds available that were saved in the Takiff lead paint 
abatement budgeted at $145,000 and came in at $107,000. By wrapping all the units 
that need to be replaced into one bid instead of holding off on the fourth unit until next 
year, the District will save money in bidding costs, professional service costs, and crane 
fees. The cost will be over budget by $1,500 over budget for wrapping the project into 
one, but will cost the District even more if the fourth unit is installed next year. Bidding 
philosophy from the bidder’s side was reviewed. Based on recent tariffs, there was an 
increase in costs that we could not anticipate when the budget was set. We 
recommended the same unit and brand, so no work will be needed on the roof. The 
median lifespan is 15 years. Last year we spent 65% of the new units replacement cost 
in repair costs. The new units are heat and air conditioning and usually more energy 
efficient. Roll call vote taken: 



4

 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
The motion passed. 

Approval of IAPD Annual Meeting Delegates:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Boron to appoint Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director as delegate and Chris Leiner, 
Director of Parks and Maintenance as alternate delegate to the IAPD Annual Meeting.
Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote 
taken:
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
The motion passed. 

Approval to Change the November Regular Board Meeting to Tuesday, November 13:  
A motion was made by Commissioner Boron to approve to change the date of the 
November 20 Regular Board meeting to Tuesday, November 13. Commissioner Lutton 
seconded the motion. No further discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 
The motion passed. 

Other Business: January 8 committee meeting may not be needed, if so, will be moved 
to another week.

Adjourn: Commissioner Boron moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:41pm. Commissioner 
Onderdonk seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 

 

10/16/2018 

2
B

20

The 

201

 

01
EAC

018 Gle

following d

8 operation

 

8 G
CH

encoe La

document pr

n of the Gle

GL
H A

R

akefront

rovides a su

encoe Boat 

EN
NN
REP

t Repor

ummary and

House and

CO
NUA
POR

t 

d analysis o

 Glencoe B

 

OE 
AL 
RT 

 

of the 

each.   



  

 

1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

Table of Contents……………………………………………………………………1  

Introduction…………………………………………………………………………..2  

Facility Improvements………………………………………………………………..2  

Marketing……………………………………………………………………………2   

Staffing and Training………………………………………………………………..3 

Swimming Beach Operation…………………………………………………………7 

Boating Beach Operation……………………………………………………………11 

Special Events……………………………………………………………………….14 

Feedback and Survey Results……………………………………………………….15 

Financial Review and Future Planning……………………………………………….17 

Appendices 

 Appendix A – Financial Data………………………………………………18 

 Appendix B – Attendance Comparisons……………………………………22 

Appendix C – Pricing Comparisons…………………………………………25 

 Appendix D – Marketing Samples……………………………………….…27 

 

 

 

  



  

 

2 

 

INTRODUCTION 
Glencoe Beach is one of the premier lakefront facilities on the north shore region of Chicago on Lake 
Michigan. The beach sits below a towering bluff and spans almost a quarter mile of shoreline. The beach is 
accessible by two access roads leading down the bluff as well as a flight of stairs from the “halfway house” 
which acts as a check-in point for guests when a cashier is staffed. Glencoe Beach is comprised of the south 
side of the beach featuring a swimming area and beach house and the north end, which features boat 
storage as well as a boathouse. The Glencoe Public Works Water Plant divides the beach.  

In 2018, a revitalized focus was placed on a number of areas of beach operation including revenue 
collection, facility cleanliness, patron safety, and customer service. Beach Facility Manager, Matt Walker, as 
well as Director of Recreation and Facilities, Bobby Collins, took a fresh approach at beach operations and 
were able to work with agency leadership and the Parks staff to implement a number of changes and 
improvements that significantly improved the operation as well as resulted in a better experience for 
beachgoers.  

FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
Prior to the start of the season, a number of upgrades and repairs were made to the swimming beach, beach 
house, and boathouse. Based on the replacement of the water main on the Boating Beach the existing boater 
lockers and boat racks were demolished. Staff constructed new larger lockers and new boat racks. Staff 
battled against very poor weather to complete three sections of lockers before the start of major operations. 
This was a major construction project completed in-house by Parks & Facilities maintenance staff. In addition, 
the sanitary sewer line at the Boat House collapsed and required replacement mid-season. This was a 
significant project due to the site conditions. 

Built new paddleboard racks on the boating and swimming beaches 
Painted pier railings 
Routine repairs were made to the stone stairs 
The trellis picnic tables were replaced 
Dead trees were removed from the bluff 
Replaced the boardwalk on the boating beach 
Painted the interior of the beach house 
Replaced three control valves on the spray park 
Removed the arch climber on the swimming beach due to safety concerns 
Replaced shower valves in the beach house 

MARKETING  

Traditional Marketing 
Staff included beach articles and information in the Spring/Summer Brochure, the summer Inside Glencoe 
newsletter, and the Summer Sampler, our 4-page mailer to residents. Information on pass sales, special 
events, and classes was also promoted on District TVs, flyers, posters, website, at special events, and on 
signage at 
the beach. 



 

 

G
M
in
B
C

S
S
m
s
in
k
r

O
O
a
s
s

In
T
p
u

O
t
o

D
v

S

S
S
s
c
P
a
A
b
w
t

Glencoe Beac
Men’s Journa
n the Chicago
Bureau Visito
Chicago Bota

Signage 
Staff focused
more promine
signs, either r
nformation a
kayak/sailbo
rentals.  

Online M
On social med
and Pinterest,
shared throug
season and d

n addition to
To date, the p
people’s bea
users opting t

On Instagram
he very socia
on these chan

During the sea
views increase

STAFFING

Staf fing 
Seasonal sum
struggling to 
compared to 
Park District. 
all staff mem
American Red
beach. Due to
was no tangib
raining.   

ch was in the 
l named Glen
o North Shor
r’s Guide as 

anic Garden s

 on making t
ent at the bea
eplacing info
bout Trellis r

oat/paddlebo

Marketing 
dia, we focus
, we worked 
ghout the yea
uring the bea

o the Glencoe
page has 1,9
ch photos an
to use the priv

m and Facebo
al nature of s
nnels, thereby

ason, the Bea
ed 2% this su

G AND TR

mmer beach st
recruit staff w
61 in 2017. 
With the diff
bers working
d Cross Lifegu
o the cross tra
ble increase i

news a numb
ncoe Beach a
e Convention
well as a tar
seasonal mag

he rentals an
ach this year
ormation or w
entals, sailing
oard rentals,

sed on the vis
to curate use

ar, with a gre
ach season.  

e Park District
938 likes (up 
d check-ins. T
vate messag

ook, we share
social media. 
y reaching pe

ach landing p
ummer, with o

RAINING 

taffing contin
with high-leve
Of that grou

ficultly of hiri
g on both the 
uard Certific
aining, major
in labor costs

ber of times. 
as one of the 
n and Visitor 
rgeted ad in 
gazine. 

nd beach serv
. We added 

with new 
g classes, 
, and sun shel

sual beauty o
er content and
eater focus on

t’s general Fa
from 1,168 f

The page has
e service to i

ed user’s ima
We also pos

eople where 

page on our w
over 33,500 

nues to be an
el qualificatio
up, 26 of thos
ng, a focus w
bathing and
ation, making
 staff shortag
s as a result o

3 

In addition to
“Best Urban 

the 

vices 
24 

lter 

of Glencoe B
d share stunn
n sharing in t

acebook pag
from 2017). 
s also becom
nquire about

ges on a wee
st beach clos
they naturall

website recei
visitors to the

n industry wid
ons. A total n
se employee

was placed o
 boating bea
g them capab
ges were not
of this cross tr

 

o the Glenco
Beaches in A

each. Utilizin
ning images o
the months lea

ge, Glencoe B
On a daily b
e a customer
t beach cond

ekly basis, ge
ures due to in
ly “hang” out

ives the highe
e Beach’s we

de issue on th
number of 62
es were return
n increasing 
ach were req
ble of workin
t experienced
raining and s

 

oe News and 
America”. We

ng Facebook,
of Glencoe B
ading up to t

Beach has its 
basis, the pag
r service chan
itions and re

enerating mo
nclement wea
t. 

est amount of
ebpage from 

e North Shor
2 employees w
ning while 36
the flexibility

quired to succ
ng two or mo
d during the 
staff was acc

Glencoe Anc
e also purcha

, Twitter, Insta
each. The co
the official st

own business
ge is tagged
nnel, with Fac
ntal services.

ore likes and 
ather or high

f traffic. Uniq
May-Septem

re, with many
were hired in

6 were new t
y of staff. As 
cessfully comp
re positions a
regular seaso
cepting of the

 
chor, 
ased ads 

agram, 
ntent is 
art of the 

s page. 
 with 
cebook 
  

fulfilling 
 bacteria 

que page 
mber.  

y facilities 
n 2018 
o the 
a result, 

plete the 
at either 
on. There 
e cross 



  

 

4 

 

Staffing Levels by Position 

 Total 
Staff 

Operations 
Manager 

Beach/Boat 
Manager Lifeguards Beach 

Services 
Boat 

Guards 
Sailing 

Instructors 
2018 62 1 7 35 24 15 6 
2017 61 2 8 26 21 27 9 
2016 44 1 9 26 15 25 7
2015 55 2 8 14 12 13 6

 
Cross training and job rotation also improved staff morale by reducing fatigue and developing new skills. A 
notable improvement in lifeguard moral was noted when they worked additionally as boat guards. 
Supervisors on both beaches also observed an improvement in communication between the boating and 
swimming beach.  

Training 
Lifeguard training 

In addition to successfully completing the Red Cross Lifeguard Certification, Matt Walker, Arun Sundarum 
Justin Wong, Giulia Liebovich, and Jackson Brownlee led 16 hours of preseason training at Centennial Pool in 
Wilmette. During this training, guards were required to demonstrate their swimming abilities by passing a 
timed 500-yard swim, treading water for 2 minutes, and swim a timed event. Guards also practiced rescue 
techniques and watched videos on active/passive/multiple/submerged victim rescues, water entries, and back 
boarding. 

During on land training, emergency action plans, blood borne pathogen training, first aid training, CPR with 
AED training and operating protocols were discussed in detail. Guards also completed 8 hours of training at 
the beach. During the training guards were walked through an average day at the beach, learned how to 
administer swim tests, practiced a “Code Adam”, performed deep water line searches, and practiced 
activating the EAP. At the end of this training, all guards were required to pass a waterfront exam, practical 
exam, and written exam in order to receive their Red Cross Waterfront Lifeguard certification. 

Additional in-service training was held one day per week for one hour throughout the course of the summer. 
Lifeguards, Boat Guards, and Beach Services were required to attend four hours of training every month and 
could come based on their preference. Additionally, lifeguards were required to complete twenty minutes of 
daily physical training in the form of running, swimming or in the event of inclement weather, online training 
via training portals offered through the American Red Cross Trainers Corner.  

Boathouse Training 

Boat guards and sailing instructors were all required to complete nine hours of training at the Glencoe 
boathouse prior to the season starting. During this training staff learned about the daily operations of the 
boathouse, safety equipment, water/medical emergencies, “Code Adam”, and radio use.  

Some boat guards also took an 18-hour powerboat training course led by Martin Heft with the Northwestern 
Sailing School. During this training, our boat guards first learned about boat safety/parts, safety equipment, 
docking, storage, and rescue equipment. After learning these basic skills guards were then taught how to 
drive and dock our boats used for on water assistance to our boaters as well as for observation of our 
Aquatics and Sailing Camps. At the end of this course all participating boat guards were required to pass 
both a written and practical exam.  



  

 

5 

 

This training course is recommend by PDRMA and is a Coastguard recognized qualification. Any staff member 
who operates a Park District motorized vessels must complete the course.  

All lead and sailing staff either obtained or renewed their US Sailing instructor qualifications. The program is 
a 40-hour training course that focuses on running safe sailing classes, developing teaching skills, and creating 
a fun learning environment for students. This qualification is required for our head sailing instructor and 
strongly encouraged for all sailing staff.  

Beach Services 

Beach services staff engaged in four hours of pre-season training that took place at the Glencoe Beach. 
During this training, staff were taught the basic functions of the beach house, how to use the point of sale 
computer system, beach rules/regulations, customer service skills, and were run through an average shift. Staff 
members who were qualified to drive the golf cart underwent additional training to become familiar with that 
position. 

Manager Training 

A manager training was held again this year to improve customer service both internally and externally. 
Bobby Collins conducted leadership and customer service training for all beach and boathouse managers. The 
focus of the training was to develop leadership skill in managers and help them trouble shoot common staffing 
conflict. Customer service expectations were a core element and the end of season survey results reflect the 
diligent work of the staff to improve customer experiences at the beach. Managers were additionally 
scheduled for shadow shifts so they could learn how to manage tasks such as deposits and opening/closing 
procedures.  

All managers were required to attend a managers meeting held every Tuesday morning at 8:00am in the 
Beach House during the regular beach season. This meeting was developed to keep all managers up to date 
on each aspect of the operation as well as discuss any issues that may have come up during the previous 
week’s operation. Matt Walker led the meetings with specific agendas and each manager had time to discuss 
any issues during a round table discussion.  

In-Service 

Bi-monthly, 2-hour lifeguard trainings were conducted to ensure guards were prepared to deal with 
emergencies throughout the season. These in-services covered various topics ranging from CPR to mock rescues 
to “Code Adams”.  

In addition to these in-services, guards were also audited by beach managers on a regular basis with 
simulated rescue/emergency scenarios. This heighted degree of training that was implemented this year 
allowed the beach to be significantly more successful in the audit conducted by PDRMA.  

Camp Staff Training 

Camp staff spent approximately four hours training on location at the boathouse. Led by the Aquatics and 
Sailing Camp Director, Jackson Brownlee, staff training focused on daily operations at the boathouse, 
emergency procedures, as well as camp curriculum. Staff reviewed procedures for inclement weather, beach 
closure, and special accommodations for campers who needed them. Any Aquatics or Sailing camp counselor 
operating a Park District powerboat was required to successfully obtain their powerboat certification from 
Martin Heft. Any new or returning Aquatics or Sailing Camp counselor directly supervising children in the 



 

 

w
w

A
 
O
a
o
d
a
a
a
w
 
S
 
O
e
d
c
f
b
o
s
r
w
p

water was als
waterfront mo

Aquatics Cam

Our Aquatics 
and enjoying 
of a counselo
discussed on t
activities but 
and foremost
activities were
while on Lake

Sailing Camp

Our Sailing C
environment w
demonstrated
camp without 
feet. On high 
but there was
of 3 feet if th
safe to be ou
rigging vesse
we will have 
participate. 

Lifeguards

so required t
odule. 

mp 

Camp spent 
Lake Michig
r at all times 
the first day 
our counselor
 and if couns
e stopped an
e Michigan an

p 

Camp focused
while giving t
d competency

a fear of bo
wind or high

s no expectat
hey were not 
ut on the lake
ls, as well as 
numerous ret

Cas

to renew or o

their time pa
an. Campers
and wearing
of each sessi
rs would not 
selors or the c
nd all campe
nd to strive fo

d on teaching
them experie
y in sailing sk
oats or water
h surf days a
tion that cam
comfortable 
, we continue
basic sailing

turning campe

Bea

Beach Assist
Managers

shiers

obtain their A

addleboardin
 were expec
g a lifejacket
on of camp. 
push them pa
camp directo
rs returned to
or growth in 

g campers ab
ence on the w
kills and seam
r and a willin
nd at the disc

mpers go on th
doing so. On

ed to teach th
g knowledge.
ers for the 20

ach Orga

tant 
s

Beach Services

6 

American Red

ng, kayaking
ted to adher
t whenever th
It was expec

ast their limits
rs found cond
o shore. It wa
their comfort

bout the basic
water in Hobie
manship, RS Q
ngness to go o
cretion of the
he water in w
n days where
he campers th
 Given the p
019 summer 

anization

Beach Man
(Matt Wa

Beach Ope
Assistant Ma
(Giulia Lieb

Cart Driv

d Cross Lifegu

g, sailing, swim
re to camp ru
heir group wa
cted of all ca
s or make the
ditions to be 
as our goal to
t with the lake

cs of sailing a
e Getaways 

Qubas. We a
out in winds u
e camp direct
winds in exce
e weather co
he different p
opularity of 
season as we

nal Char t 

nager 
alker)

erations 
anager
bovich)

vers B

 

uard certifica

mming, playi
ules such as st
as near the w

ampers to atte
em uncomfort
unsafe on the
o create an e
e and aquati

and seamans
and for cam
nticipated ca
up to 15 kno
tor, offer to t

ess of 15 knot
onditions were
parts of the b
the sailing ca
ell as new ca

 

Boath
Assis

Mana

Boat Guards

ate with the 

ng on water 
taying within 
water, which 
empt reasona
table. Safety
e water, wat
enjoyable ex
ic activities.  

hip in a fun 
pers that 

ampers to com
ts or waves u
take camper
ts or waves in
e not favorab
boat, rigging
amp, we are 
ampers lookin

house 
stant 
agers

Sailing/Aquat
Camp Staff

 

fixtures, 
eyesight 
was 
able 

y was first 
ter 
xperience 

me to 
up to 3 
s sailing, 
n excess 
ble or 

g and de-
confident 

ng to 

 

tics 
f



  

 

7 

 

SWIMMING BEACH OPERATION 

Swimming Beach Overview 
The swimming beach is staffed from Memorial Day to Labor Day. Outside of those dates, the beach is still 
accessible to the public but visitors are not charged and lifeguards are not staffed. The swimming beach uses 
the Paul and Ada Safran Beach House as its hub. This facility features men’s and women’s changing rooms, a 
customer service desk, manager’s office, staff break room, maintenance closet, and a concession stand which is 
contracted out to local vendor, North Shore Catering. The swimming beach also features a designated 
swimming area measuring 50’ deep by 175’ long, a playground in the sand, a large trellis and five sun 
shelters available for rent, two volleyball nets, a pier, and boardwalk.  

Daily Operations and Usage  
Dates and Hours of Operation 

Preseason:   May 26-28, June 2-4     10:00am-7:00pm 
Regular Season:  June 4-July 29      10:00am-8:00pm 
Post Season:   July 30-August 19, August 25-26, Sept. 1-3  10:00am-7:00pm  
*Glencoe Beach is CLOSED July 4  | Boating Beach Open July 4 from 10:00am-6:00pm 

 
During the pre-season, all areas of beach operations were examined. Looking back at the 2017 season and 
survey results, improving customer service, increasing revenue collection and cleanliness of the beach house 
were identified as operational priorities for 2018. 

Customer Service 
Weekends and holidays are traditionally high traffic days for the swimming beach. To improve the quality of 
customer service, on weekends a front desk cashier was again assigned to the beach house. This position 
increased the level of customer service by reducing the number different staff interactions necessary to help 
the customer. In previous years, lifeguards would attend the front desk for 30 minutes and would then rotate 
to a different area of the beach. Customers would end up interacting with multiple guards and become 
frustrated with miscommunications and a lack of continuity.   

After Labor Day, the beach house was opened almost daily to accommodate beach goers. The bathrooms 
were accessible but no staff was on site. On weekends with nice weather, an attendant would maintain the 
beach house. Positive feedback was received by many patrons for having access to the restroom during this 
time of year when this facility is usually closed.  

Facility Cleaning 
During peak times, the cleanliness of bathrooms, trellis, and sun shelter were identified as areas needing 
improvement. Beach services and supervisors made diligent efforts to ensure that these areas were attended 
to on a regular basis. Patrons noted noticeable improvements. 

After the beach closes at 8:00pm during the regular season, many patrons would remain on the beach until 
10:00pm when they were required to leave. To increase beach cleanliness, the Parks team performed early 
morning beach grading and cleaning to ensure that the beach was ready for residents and patrons who 
utilize the facility early in the morning and that the beach was ready for daily opening.  

Revenue Collection 
Again this season, we collected revenue for daily admission at the halfway house. We had one POS station 
located at the Park Ave ramp and one by the steps on the Hazel entrance side. We staggered staff over the 



  

 

8 

 

middle of the day, so we could direct guests to the appropriate cash register either to swipe their season 
membership card or to pay the daily admission. On busy weekends, an additional staff member was also 
scheduled between 11:00am and 6:00pm to rove the area between the two cash registers and keep visitors 
from walking down the ramp or steps without paying. This proved to be very helpful in getting those guests 
who may have slipped by without paying while one of the cashiers was assisting another visitor with their 
payment.  

Private Fitness Classes 

Private fitness classes utilizing the Glencoe Park District beach facilities are now required to purchase season 
permit at a cost of $75 and produce a certificate of insurance. This was implemented to formalize 
relationships with local fitness businesses and reduce the potential liability to the Park District. Two permits 
were filed this summer and staff will continue to be vigilant with the enforcement of these permits.  

Outside Camps and Swim Testing 

Visiting camps love coming to the Glencoe Beach and often comment on their positive experience. Statistically, 
camps visiting a beach facility increase the risk of potential rescues and other emergencies at that facility. To 
improve the level of safety, management staff worked with PDRMA to develop operating standards 
necessary to ensure camper, counselor, and staff safety. A revised camp check-in form was developed and 
sued again this season. All camps, both internal and external, were required the check in with the manager on 
duty on each visit to the beach to ensure the head counselor was aware of swim test procedures, safety 
concerns, and facility rules. In addition to talking to the head counselor, staff talked to all the campers about 
beach rules and meeting locations.  

Lifeguards and supervisors were trained in the new swim test wristband coloring system recommend by 
PDRMA. The yellow band (identifying weak swimmers) has been removed. Swimmers are identified as 
swimmer (green band) and non-swimmers (red band). Swim tests were only administered to Glencoe Park 
District camps. External camps were required to pre-swim test their campers and maintain accurate lists of 
swimmers and non-swimmers. 

Swim Area  

This summer the width of the swim area was consistent with the past couple of years. Three long white buoys 
define the swim area, which was 50 feet into the lake and spanned 175 feet of sand. This designated space 
has proven to be more than adequate in accommodating swimmers on even the busiest of days and still 
provides a 40-second response time to the farthest corner of the swim area by our lifeguards. The size of a 
swim area is tested each year to ensure Glencoe Park District lifeguards can meet PDRMA requirements. 

Water Testing  

A high bacteria count is difficult to predict and unfortunately the testing methods currently used to test for 
bacteria takes 24 hours to complete. This is the current testing method required by the Illinois Department of 
Health. Staff has continued to stay current with the Lake Michigan Federation, the Illinois Department of Public 
Health, the U.S. and Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, as well as the Metropolitan Water Reclamation 
District in order to share information on new methods for water testing and to prevent closures.  

The swimming beach was closed a total of 22 days in 2018. This was due to a combination of high bacteria 
closures, bad weather, and dangerous surf. The water was closed 10 times in 2018 due to high bacteria 
(E.coli), nine times due to poor weather conditions (rain/low temperatures and three times due to high surf 



 

 

c
b
b

B
T
e
d
M
s
t
t

P
B
o
f
c
p
r
w

conditions. It i
bacteria coun
but patrons a

 
High Bacteria

Beach Ris
The safety of
ensuring the s
development,
Management 
swimming bea
ranslates the
hroughout the

PDRMA came
Bobby Collins
operation as 
further. During
checklists, trai
placed a focu
receive very h
with PDRMA r

is more likely
nt threshold is
are not permi

Hist

a Closures 

Note: In
to

sk Manag
 swimmers an
safety of the 
, training, and
Agency (PDR

aches and bo
em into trainin
e season. 

e on-site for a
s, Chris Leiner
well as to re
g the meeting
ining logs, ca
us on improvi
high ratings. 
recommenda

1

1

2

2

20

N
um

be
r o

f 
C

lo
su

re
s

y that high lev
s 235, at whi
tted in the w

ory of  Be
2018 20
10 

n accordance
o have water 

gement a
nd boaters a
facility, equi
d implementa
RMA) provide
oating beach
ngs, facility se

a visit on June
r, Matt Walk
view process
g staff receiv

amp procedur
ng training a
It was also n
tions and equ

0

5

10

15

20

25

High
Bacter

018 10

2

vels of bacte
ch point the w
ater.  

each Clo
017 2016 
6 2 

 with the gran
test results be

and Lifeg
t the Glencoe
ipment, and w
ation of safet
es a set of op
es. Staff revi
et-up and op

e 27. The PD
ker, and Ope
ses and make
ved praise fo
res, and over
as it had been
oted that bo
uipment was 

ria
Inclem
Weat

9

2018 Be

9 

ria are obse
water is close

sures (ba
2015 

9 
 
 

nt for water t
efore the faci

uard Aud
e Beach is a t
water as wel
ty policies, p
perating stan
iews those gu
perational ma

RMA represe
erations Mana
e recommend
or detailed an
rall knowledg
n an area of 
athouse oper
well maintain

ment
ther

High

each Clo

rved after he
ed for the da

acteria) b
2014 201
11 7

testing, the Di
ility opens to 

dit  
top priority. 
l as dedicati
rocesses, and
ndards and s
uidelines well
anuals to ensu

entative for th
ager Giulia L
ations to enh
nd consistent 
ge of the bea
 weakness in
rations has b
ned.  

h Surf T

3

osures

 

eavy rain or 
ay. The beach

by Seaso
13 2012 
7 8 

istrict is requi
the public. 

Staff invests 
ng numerous 
d procedures
safety recomm
l in advance 
ure they are 

he Glencoe P
Liebovich to r
hance safety 

documentati
ach operation
n the past allo
een standard

Total

22

beach hazar
h may remain

n 
2011 2
22

 

ired 

countless hou
hours to 
. The Park Di
mendations f
of the season
implemented

Park District m
review the be
practices eve
ion including 
n. Beach staf
owing the be
dized and al

 
rds. The 
n open 

2010 
7

urs 

istrict Risk 
or both 
n then 
d 

met with 
each 
en 
facility 

ff had 
ach to 
igned 



  

 

10 

 

Because the Red Cross does not visit sites and provide lifeguard audits, PDRMA offers a program where 
another lifeguard certification company, Councilman-Hunsaker, will provide an audit of the lifeguards to 
ensure they are well trained to proactively prevent emergencies before they occur or respond appropriately 
in the event of emergency. This summer, the beach was audited on July 8, a very busy Sunday afternoon. 
Staff was secretly videotaped while scanning the water so that a realistic representation of that skill could be 
captured. Staff was also asked to perform skills like first aid and a simulated CPR scenario. Staff performed 
admirably during this audit and received an overall score of “A”.  

Rentals 

Trellis & Sun Shelter Rentals  

The trellis is a covered outdoor structure located on the south side of the Safran Beach House. The trellis is 
available for rent daily during the beach season from 5:00-10:00pm to both residents and non-residents. It 
typically can hold 75-100 people. Peak rental times are Saturday and Sunday evenings in July and August. 
The Park District uses the area for special events including the Beach Campout and Tails and Ales. 

Typical parties that rent the trellis are birthdays, weddings, family reunion's, church groups, and corporate 
functions. The rental price for the trellis includes admission to the beach for up to 75 guests. The beach house 
and trellis are staffed with one manager and one attendant for the duration of the rental who keep the 
facility and restrooms clean during the party. For an additional fee of $25 an hour, patrons can pay for a 
staff member to operate the golf cart for the evening to transport their guests after the beach closes. Parties 
are eligible to purchase an alcohol liability insurance policy for $175. Approximately 50% of parties 
purchase the alcohol permit. In 2018, the trellis was rented 26 times generating $9,091 in revenue. 

Sun Shelters 

Five sun shelters are located on the north side of the beach house between the stairs and ramp. There are four 
12-person shelters and one 24-person shelter. They are available to rent in three-hour increments. 
Reservations can be taken in advance and walk-ins are subject to availability. Staff is investigating the ability 
to reserve shelter online for the 2019 season. 

The shelters are generally rented for small family gatherings or birthday parties. Each sun shelter is equipped 
with its own grill. Renters are responsible for bringing their own grill supplies and food. Alcohol is not allowed 
in the shelters. Rental of a shelter does not include admission to the beach. A group admission rate of $10 per 
person is available to parties of 10 or more.  

The resident rates are $20/$40 for residents compared to $40/$80 per time slot for non-residents. Peak 
rental times are generally Saturdays and Sunday in July and August. Internal and external camps use the 
shelter on weekday visits to the beach 

In 2018, sun shelter revenue was $8,677. In 2017, sun shelter revenue was $13,034. The decrease is 
attributed to low attendance in the month of June and the overall number of closures recorded during the 
summer. 

Equipment Rentals  

To further improve the level of customer service and satisfaction, new beach rental equipment including chairs 
and umbrellas were purchased for the 2018 season. The operational process to rent equipment remained the 
same and rentals were conducted in the beach house. The rental signs and visibility of the equipment led to 



  

 

11 

 

being sold out on busy days. Both chairs and umbrellas were popular. During periods of windy weather, 
umbrella rentals were suspended as damage to umbrellas would occur and increased the potential for it 
becoming air born and potentially causing an injury. Staff is examining new rental options to introduce for the 
2019 season. 

Patrons can rent chairs for $4, umbrellas for $3, or $6 for both. Revenue from beach rentals this summer was 
$3,639 compared to $2,967 in 2017.  

BOATING BEACH OPERATION 
The boating beach opens in early May each season and operates into mid-October. Patrons are able to store 
their boats on the boating beach for a fee both in-season and during the winter. Boats that are stored include 
Hobie Catamarans, Hobie Getaways, Qubas, kayaks, and paddleboards. Larger boats are stored on the 
sand in designated spots, whereas smaller crafts are stored in racks. The Pearlman Boathouse consists of a 
manager’s office, restrooms, storage areas, and as a place where boaters can congregate, regattas can be 
organized and as a base for our Aquatics and Sailing Camps. The District powerboat assistance fleet is also 
stored in the boathouse. The boathouse staff organizes the rentals of sailboats, catamarans, kayaks, and 
paddleboards. Boathouse staff also assists boaters in moving, rigging, and repairing their boats as well as 
offering boater assistance up to one mile out into the lake.  

Boat Storage  
As with most other beaches along the Northshore, sand erosion is a continuing problem on the boating and 
swimming beaches. This was very problematic again this year as a significant portion of the north beach was 
lost due to heavy wave action of heavy storm water runoff. In addition to the sand erosion, Lake Michigan 
water levels are still elevated. With this water height, the number of sand spots has been reduced by 
approximately 10 on both beaches. Currently there are no available sand spots to new boaters. Looking 
towards 2019 boat storage, the beach is at full capacity. Staff will be identifying ways to increase storage 
for stand up paddleboards and other vessels as necessary.  

112 new personal lockers and 66 rack spaces were constructed in the spring of 2018 after the north side 
lockers and racks were removed in the fall of 2017, so the Village could replace a water main line that was 
unearthed during a severe fall storm.  

Staff has sent out winter storage forms and has started to collect and process them. 

To prevent delinquent boat issues in the future, a new data collection and boat identification process was 
designed. A paperless master grid was created and is stored on the cloud for controlled access and version 
control. Important information such as model and color of boat, serial number, and unique features are now 
being collected. Lockers and sail storage numbers are now being tracked and linked to specific boats and 
owners on the grid.  

Boat Rental Spaces by Boat Type 
 Kayaks& Sups Lasers/Sunfish/Others Catamarans Total 

2018 103 6 59 168 
2017 100 6 66 172 

 



  

 

12 

 

Daily Operations 
Dates and Hours of Operation 

Preseason Hours: May 12-June 3 | Saturdays & Sundays, Memorial Day |11:00am-6:00pm 
Regular Season Hours: June 4-August 12 | Monday-Thursday | 11:30am-7:30pm 
 Friday-Sunday | 10:00am-8:00pm 
 July 4 | 10:00am-6:00pm 
Post Season Hours: August 17-October 14 | Saturdays, Sundays, Labor Day | 12:00am-6:00pm 

Powerboats 

The Park District maintains three support boats, three inflatable Zodiac motorboats. These support boats are 
used for rental and boater assistance, aquatics/sailing camps and other various beach maintenance tasks. All 
three boats are stored inside the boathouse and launched as needed. A Toro Dingo (tracked machine) was 
purchased this year and has been a reliable machine to assist in the daily launching and retrieval of our 
powerboat fleet.   

A new Zodiac Milpro 4.7 was purchased for the 2018 season and has been a tremendous addition to the 
powerboat fleet. The new Zodiac replaced our old red zodiac, which had passed its useful life span. 

Boat Valet, Boater Assistance, and Safety 

The boathouse is staffed with boat guards and a manager. Boat guards maintain the boathouse and beach; 
they offer boater and rental assistance while maintaining surveillance and a boat valet service. This valet 
service helps boaters move their boats to and from the water. Catamarans are heavy and two or more 
people are needed to move them. This valet service is highly valued by boating beach patrons. 

Boater assistance is a high priority for boating beach patrons. Boat guards maintain surveillance for boaters 
only within the sailing boundary. That boundary stretches north to south from Tower Road Beach to Highland 
Park Beach and east of Glencoe Beach by one mile. That one mile is signaled by a marker buoy placed one 
mile east of the boathouse. If boater assistance is required for a boater outside of the boundary, boat guards 
will call the Coastguard to assist the boater. The Coastguard did not have to be notified for assistance during 
the 2018 boating season.  

Safety training and the safety of patrons is of highest priority. Boat guards are trained in boater assistance 
through a 16-hour US Powerboating program (Safe Powerboat Handling and Safety and Rescue).  Staff 
consistently receives in-service training and is encouraged to complete daily on-water training as much as 
possible when it does not interfere with normal daily operations.  

Regattas 

Glencoe Boat Club co-hosted a four regatta series that constituted the George Cup. The boathouse provides 
staff and equipment necessary to run the regattas, including race officials, racing marks, safety boats, and 
drivers. A long distance format was chosen to entice new boaters to participate. The average attendance of 
each regatta was between 7-10 boats. After each regatta, social events were held at the boathouse. 
Feedback from competitors was very positive. Staff was praised for their organization and professionalism in 
running the events. 

 



  

 

13 

 

Kayak, Paddleboard, and Sailboat Rentals 
Providing patrons with access to enjoy the water improves the beach experience and attracts new and 
returning patrons to the beach. The extra revenue generated from rentals offsets some of the expenses for 
the boathouse. The rental equipment can also be used for camps and recreation programs, such as aquatics 
camp and stand-up paddleboard yoga.  

Revenue for 2018 was $15,500 compared to $17,215 in 2017. Rental revenue fluctuates depending on lake 
conditions, weather, and the volume of patrons at the beach. This year offered more challenging conditions 
and resulted in less rental activity.  

Stand-up paddle boarding was the most popular activity, accounting for 41% of rental revenue with 
kayaking similar at 40%. Sailboat rentals account for 19% of rental revenue, but sailboats are utilized for 
adult sailing and beach camps. Peak rental times are Sunday afternoons, with long waitlists experienced on 
nice weather days.  

Lake Rental Revenue by Craft 
 Kayak Paddleboard Hobie Quba Total 

Total Revenue $6,190 $6,350 $2,460 $500 $15,500 
% of Total Revenue 40% 41% 16% 3% 100% 

 

Beach Programming 
Aquatics Camp is operated and administered by beach staff. Day to day activities include kayaking, paddle 
boarding, sailing, beach volleyball, along with many other outdoor beach activities. The camp is available in 
1-week sessions and runs from 9:30am-12:00pm Monday through Friday. Total enrollment for 2018 was 142 
participants.  
 
Sailing Camp was extremely successful again this summer. This camp operates Monday through Friday from 
12:30-3:30pm. Participants were divided into two groups based on skill levels. Like Aquatics Camp, Sailing 
Camp ran every week starting in early June until early August. Participants could extend their day at the 
beach by signing up for both camps. Total enrollment for 2018 was 141 participants.  
 
A four week adult learn to sail class was offered again this summer. We had three participants and staff has 
recognized this is an area of opportunity to expand enrollment for 2019.  



 

 

S
J
O
F
d
h
 
F
T
w
C
P
p
s
f
 
J
P
a
s
s
 
J
T
w
S
c

SPECIAL E
June 7 - GJH
Over 200 kid
Friday, June 7
directly from 
hot dogs acco

Fourth of Jul
The Fourth of 
with food ven
Coffee follow
Pyrotechnics. 
positioned at 
stairs leading
for the day.  

July 7 - Card
Participants a
around two b
successful as w
speed and te

July 27-28 - 
The Beach Ca
with 60 famil
S’mores, and 
cereal and co

To
ta

l P
ar

tic
i[a

nt
s

EVENTS  
HP Beach Bas
ds from Centr
7. The weath
Central Scho

ompanied by

y Celebratio
July event a

ndor at 6:00p
wed Spoken F
Staff receive
the bluff ent

g to the water
   

dboard Regat
ages 6-17 we
buoys and ba
we had six te

eam spirit 

Beach Camp
amp Out was
ies registered
the movie Fin

offee Saturda

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2016
2017
2018

[

sh 
ral School reg
er was perfe

ool to attend 
y chips and co

n  
nd activities 
pm, which inc
Four, starting 
ed many com
trances to ens
r plant were 

tta 
ere tasked w

ack to the bea
eams show up

p Out 
 a lot fun! It w
d. The event 
nding Nemo 
ay morning b

Aquatics
Camp

0
74
142

Beac

gistered for t
ect for the en
the event fro
ookies. The ev

were a big s
luded North 
at 6:30pm. T
pliments abo
sure no one w
opened so th

with building a
ach. This was 
p to race. At 

was a bit col
featured a b
on a large 3

before packin

ch Progr

14 

the annual G
d of school c

om 2:30-6:00
vent also fea

success. The e
Shore Cateri
The fireworks

out the firewo
was allowed 
hat the boath

a boat out of
the second y
the end of th

d and windy
big bonfire, d
5’ screen. Fa
ng up and he

Sailing
Camp

63
64
141

ram Part

JHP Beach B
celebration. M
0pm. North sh
atured DJ Fam

evening festiv
ing, LaCocinit
s were set of
orks display. 
down while f

house could o

f solely cardb
year this even
he event awa

y that night bu
dinner provid
amilies enjoye
eading out.    

ticipatio

 

ash held at G
Most of the p
hore catering
mos. 

vities at Lakef
ta, Dippity D
ff from the be
During the d
fireworks set
operate on a

board and du
nt took place
ards were pre

ut the event h
ed by North 

ed breakfast 

Total

63
138
283

on

Glencoe Beac
articipants ca

g grilled burg

front Park kic
Dog, and Resu
each by Melr
ay, staff was
-up was goin
n adjusted sc

uct tape to ra
e and it was v
esented for b

had great at
Shore Cater
consisting of

 

 

ch on 
ame 
gers and 

cked off 
urrection 
rose 
s 
ng on. The 
chedule 

ace 
very 
both 

ttendance 
ring, 
f assorted 



 

 

 
S
W
t
a

F
E
f
p
N
o
c
g
s
r

 

 

September 16
Well over 40
ennis balls, b
able to swim 

FEEDBACK
Each year a s
feedback on 
potential area
Noted areas 
overall exper
compared to 
guards showe
scoring high m
rentals. Below

6 - Doggie D
0 dogs and th
bandanas, an
and run alon

K AND SU
survey is sent
their experie
as for improv
of concern in
rience during
76% in 2017

ed as 92% of
marks include
w are some o

Dip 
heir owners/f
nd frisbees. S
ng the shore w

URVEY RE
t to beach tok
ence. Staff ap
vement. This y
ncluded conce
 the summer 
7. The continu
f our guests f

ed staff friend
f the overall 

families atten
taff also had
with their fam

SULTS  
ken holders a
ppreciates th
year there w
essions opera
of 2018, 86
uous training 
felt their safe
dliness, atten
survey statis

15 

nded the eve
d crafts for th
milies and oth

as well as ind
his invaluable
were 98 respo
ation, facility 
% of respons
throughout t

ety as a swim
tiveness, and
tics.  

nt. Staff had
he kids, but th
her dogs.  

dividuals who
e information 
onses collecte
cleanliness, a
ses marked e
he entire sum

mmer was eith
d responsiven

 

 doggie give
he big hit wa

o rent boat sp
to assess are

ed, compared
and parking. 
either excelle
mmer by our l
her excellent 
ess, spray gr

e-a-ways incl
as the dogs b

paces to solic
eas of streng
d to 95 in 20
When asked

ent or good, 
lifeguard and
or good. Ot

round and la

 

uding 
eing 

it 
th or 

017. 
d about 

d boat 
her areas 
ke 

 



 

 

16 

 

 

 

 



  

 

17 

 

FINANCIALS AND FUTURE PLANNING 
The summer of 2018 was very positive with many aspects of the operation. With the addition of a new 
facility manager, there was a learning curve on behalf of both the new manager and the returning staff 
members. The beaches management team was able to work with one another in order to streamline the 
processes of the past operation and the vision of new manager and their goals for the beach season.  

Operationally, the beach was at its best right from the beginning of the season. The weather over Memorial 
Day weekend was optimal for beach goers with temperatures in the 90’s, with partly cloudy skies. Our busiest 
day of the season was Memorial Day with 1,444 visiting the beach. Overall, the summer of 2018 had very 
good weather on the weekends, which is by far our busiest time of the season. Statistically, Sundays are our 
busiest day of the week with an average attendance of 782 guests for 2018. Most of our guests came to the 
beach between 11:00am-2:00pm.  

Resident pass sales were only slightly lower in revenue at $35,207 for 2018 compared to $36,804 in 2017. 
Revenue remained steady, as there was a $15 increase in the season pass fee for additional family members. 
The average number of visits per season pass hold was 3.56 over the course of the summer. Daily resident 
guest visits tor 2018 totaled 10,005 visits compared to 19,387 total visits by non-residents. We also had a 
significant jump in resident daily fees from $25,763 in 2017 to $40,288 in 2018. Staff attributes the 
increase in daily fees to the lower number of season passes purchased by residents for the summer of 2018.  

Staff worked hard again this summer in a concerted effort to make sure all available sand rental spaces 
were paid for by our boaters. The slight decrease in revenue for summer storage is due to the loss of sand 
spaces on both the north and south boating beaches. Staff was also able to assign new paddleboard and 
kayak spaces to help offset some of the revenue lost from the loss of sand spaces. Staff will review the layout 
of the sand and rack spaces to make sure all available space is utilized within the current space available.  

In an effort to consolidate training and to insure all lifeguards and boat guards are properly trained, Matt 
Walker will be obtaining his Lifeguard Instructors Certification through the American Red Cross in the off-
season. This will give Matt the opportunity to train lifeguards in house and provide the onsite training 
necessary to work an open waterfront environment. A focus will also be placed on continuing to ensure 
lifeguards exceed standards of training, are the most knowledgeable, and well prepared on the north shore. 
Staff will also continue to review and refine process and procedure to ensure efficient operation and a great 
experience for guests.  

 It will be required again that all lifeguards, boat guards and camp staff have a valid Red Cross Lifesaving 
Certification in order to work on the beach. Matt will also obtain his Powerboat Instructors certification through 
US Powerboating. All boathouse and camp staff will have to pass a 16 hours course in order to operate and 
powerboat owned by the Park District.  

Staff will also look into the concession operation given the current vendor’s agreement is only though 2018. 
One of the areas of concern from our annual beach survey was the concession operation and the same 
concerns were expressed in 2017. Staff will weigh the options of continuing to out-source the operation or 
bring the operation back in house under the direct supervision of Park District staff.  

 

 



  

 

18 

 

APPENDICIES  

Appendix A – Detailed Financial Trends 

 
*Although we saw a decrease in the resident season pass revenue, we did have a large increase in the 
amount of resident daily fees.  

 

*Dai ly Revenues were strong due in part to very hot weather over Memorial Day weekend.  

2015 Actual 2016 Acutal 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Resident $37,920 $42,804 $36,804 $35,207
Non-Resident $5,775 $5,186 $6,421 $7,699
Northbrook Reciprocal $8,793 $8,532 $8,662 $10,017
Total $52,488 $56,522 $54,607 $52,923

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

R
ev

en
ue

Beach Pass Revenue Trends

2015 Actual 2016 Acutal 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Resident $16,100 $19,329 $25,763 $40,288
Non-Resident $148,516 $187,452 $168,910 $184,340
Total $164,616 $206,781 $194,673 $224,628

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

R
ev

en
ue

Revenue From Daily Fees Trend



 

 

*
t
g
J
p

*Faci l i ty an
he lower nu

graduat ion 
June,  so tho
popular we

R
ev

en
ue

20
20
20
20

Ex
pe

ns
es

d equipme
umber of T
part ies we

ose host ing 
ekends in J

$
$5,00

$10,00
$15,00
$20,00
$25,00
$30,00

Trellis
Sun Shelters
Chairs/Umbre
Total

Beac

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

015 Actual
016 Actual
017 Actual
018 Projected

nt rentals  d
rel l i s  renta
re planned
summer pa
uly and Au

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2015 A

$7,2
$6,3

ellas $70
$14,3

ch Facili

Lifeguard

$31,594
$32,831
$31,526
$30,856

Seaso

depend ent
l s  to the un
 for later i
r t ies ,  wedd

ugust .  

Actual 20

299
361
02
362

ity and E

ds Se
Ma

4 $
1 $
6 $2
6 $

onal Staf

19 

ire ly on the
nseasonably
n the summ

dings,  reuni

016 Acutal

$10,336
$8,677
$2,879
$21,892

Equipme

easonal
anagers

12,810
19,334
22,802
17,620

ff Expen

e weather c
y cold and 

mer when th
ons were n

2017 Actua

$13,750
$13,034
$2,967
$29,751

ent Rent

Beach
Operations

Staff
$16,673
$19,460
$20,537
$20,667

nse Tren

 

condit ions .  
wet month 
ey normally
ot able to 

al 20
Proje
$9,
$8,
$3,
$21

al Trend

s
T

$6
$7
$74
$69

nds

Staff attr ib
of June.  M
y take plac
rent  on the

018
ected
091
340
639
,070

ds

Total

1,077
1,625
4,865
9,143

 

 

butes 
ost  
ce in 
 most  

 



  

 

20 

 

Staff salaries were increased by 12% over 2017 wages in order to stay competitive with surrounding 
beach operations. Staff was diligent about watching staff hours on days when the beach was closed for 
high bacteria, inclement weather, or high surf. The month of June was particularly low for staffing costs 
due to the large number of beach closures. 

 

 

 

*The loss of sand spaces on both the north and south beach has played a major role in 
revenue col lect ion.  Staff has maximized the number of sands spaces avai lable and wi l l  
cont inue to monitor the water levels  to determine if  we can accept new boaters off of our 
growing wait l is t .   

($60,000)

($40,000)

($20,000)

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

2015 Actual 2016 Acutal 2017 Actual 2018 Projected

Overall Financial Trends

Swimming (14) Boating (13) Total Net Surplus

2015 Actual 2016 Acutal 2017 Actual 2018 Projected
Winter Storage $9,965 $11,338 $11,300 $12,764
Summer Storage $56,082 $68,678 $83,121 $77,491
Total $66,047 $80,016 $94,421 $90,255

$0
$10,000
$20,000
$30,000
$40,000
$50,000
$60,000
$70,000
$80,000
$90,000

$100,000

R
ev

en
ue

Boathouse Storage Revenue Trends



 

 

*
s
h

 

*
t
s
m

 

*Rental  rev
summer and
heights  pose

* Staff wag
he lack of 

s taff membe
making them

R
To

ta
l E

xp
en

se

enue great
d errored o
ed as stabi

ges are dow
avai labi l i ty
ers are also
m unavai lab

$0
$5,000

$10,000
$15,000
$20,000
$25,000
$30,000

Total

R
ev

en
ue

Bo

$0
$5,000

$10,000
$15,000
$20,000
$25,000
$30,000
$35,000
$40,000
$45,000
$50,000

Leadership St
Boat Guards
Total

ly depends
n the s ide o
l i ty i ssue to

wn in part  t
y of s taff i
o on the Ne
ble to work

 

2015 Actua
$6,325

oat, Kaya

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2015 A

aff $15,2
$32,7
$48,0

Boat Ho

s  on the con
of caut ion w
o kayaks a

to the numb
n the pre a
ew Tr ier sa
k over the w

al 2016 A
$25,

ak, Padd

Actual 20

298 $
728 $
026 $

ouse Sta

21 

ndit ions of 
when condit
nd paddleb

ber of c losu
and post  sea
i l ing teams

weekends.   

Acutal 20
340 $

dleboard

016 Actual

$13,203
$29,683
$42,866

aff Expe

the lake.  S
t ions were 
boards.   

res in  the b
ason.  Many
 and have 

017 Actual
$17,215

d Rental

2017 Actua

$11,848
$30,489
$42,337

ense Tren

 

taff was ve
forecast  to

beginning o
y of our h ig
regattas ov

2018 Projecte
$15,500

l Trends

al 201
Projec
$10,9
$25,0
$35,9

nd

ery caut iou
o change or

of the seaso
gh school  ag
ver the wee

ed

18
cted
988
000
988

 

 

s  th i s  
r  wave 

 

on and 
ged 
ekends 



  

 

22 

 

Appendix B –Attendance Comparisons 

 

 

 

2784

7,221 

10005

34%

1109

18,278 

19387

66%

P A S S

D A I L Y

T O T A L

A L L  B E A C H  V I S I T S

2018 RESIDENT/NON-RESIDENT 
VISITS

Resident Visits Non-Res Visits

3206

4,565 

7771

29%

1069

18,384 

19453

71%

P A S S

D A I L Y

T O T A L

A L L  B E A C H  V I S I T S

2017 RESIDENT/NON-RESIDENT 
VISITS

Resident Visits Non-Res Visits

$40,288 

$25,763 

 $-  $10,000  $20,000  $30,000  $40,000  $50,000

2018 vs. 2017 RESIDENT DAILY 
FEES

2017 2018



  

 

23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$52,923 

$54,530 

1558

1830

2 0 1 8 2 0 1 7

PASS SALES
Total Pass Sales # Pass Sales

$35,207 

$36,804 

1093

1352

 $33,500
 $34,000
 $34,500
 $35,000
 $35,500
 $36,000
 $36,500
 $37,000
 $37,500
 $38,000
 $38,500

2018 2017

RESIDENT PASS SALES

Pass Sales Residents # Pass Sales Residents



  

 

24 

 

 

 

 

674 

782 

328 
254 

198 183 

299 

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

 700

 800

 900

Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Th Fri

2018 DAY 
AVERAGE ATTENDANCE

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

 300

Sat Sun Mon Tue Wed Th Fri

2018 RESIDENT AVERAGE 
ATTENDANCE

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

9am 10am 11am 12am 1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 5pm 6pm 7pm

2018 BUSIEST TIMES



  

 

25 

 

Appendix C – Pricing Comparisons  
Standard Daily Admissions and Passes 

Town Hours Daily Fees Res/NR Individual Pass Res/NR Family Pass for 4 Res/NR 

Glencoe 10:00a–8:00p Adult $7/$14 
Child $5/$10 $95/$132 $140/$219 

Wilmette 9:00a–8:00p 
Adult $6/$10 

Child $4.75/$9.50 
Daily Parking $12/$15 

$45/$115 
Parking Pass $25/$150 

$115/$273 
Parking Pass $25/$150 

Winnetka 9:00a–7:00p Adult $5/$10 
Child $5/$10 $60/$128 $95/$125 

Evanston 10:30a–7:30p Adult $8/$8 
Child $6/$6 $34/$58 $136/$232 

 
Last Daily Rate Increase:  

2002: $1 increase for nonresident only; resident rate remained $4/$6  
2012: $1 increase for nonresident adult fee only to $10 
2017:  $1 increase for residents, $4 increase for non-residents   
2018:  Group rate increased to $10 per person for groups of 10 people or more  

Last Season Pass Increase: 
  2010: $5 increase to all pass types 

2012: New rate created for seniors (age 65 and older) 
2017: $26 decrease for resident first member and $22 decrease for non-resident first member 
2018: $19 increase in additional pass cost 

 
Note: Due to Illinois Department of Natural Resources and the OSLAD Grant the District received in 1996, the 
non-resident rates/fees for the Beach are not allowed to be more than twice the resident rate. 

Sun Shelter and Trellis Rentals 

Town Sun Shelter (12 person) 
3 Hour Rental R/NR 

Sun Shelters (24 person) 
3 Hour Rental R/NR 

Trellis (75-100 person) 
5 Hour Rental R/NR 

Glencoe $20/$40 $40/$80 M-Th $232/$348 
F-Sun $370/$556 

Wilmette Free/$30 Free/$60 Not Available 
Winnetka Not Available Not Available $125/$225 
Evanston Not Available Not Available Not Available 

 
Lake Rentals* 

Town Kayak Res/NR Paddleboard Res/NR Sailboat Rental Res/NR 
Glencoe *$25/$30 * $25/$30 *$40/$50 

Wilmette *M-F $40/$40 
Sa-Su $50/$50 

*M-F $25/$25 
Sa-Su $35/$35 

*M-F $63/$63 
Sa-Su $83/$83 

Winnetka Not Available *M-F Not Available 
Sa-Su $25/$40 Not Available 

Evanston 
(45 min rentals) 

*M-F $25/$35 
Sa-Su $25/$35 

*M-F $25/$35 
Sa-Su $25/$35 

*M-F $50/$60 
Sa-Su $50/$60 

*Prices per hour 



  

 

26 

 

Boat Storage Spaces 

Town Sand Res/NR Rack Paddle Res/NR Winter Sand Res/NR Winter Rack Res/NR 
Glencoe $607/$936 $365/$563 $248/$310 $128/$192 
Wilmette $673/$953 $391/$653 $296/$296 $206/$206 
Winnetka $375/$500 $335/$670 $100/$150 $100/$150 
Evanston $370/$500 $230/$290 Not Available Not Available 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

A
 

Appendixx D – Sammples of  Marketin

27 

ng Materiials 

 

 





































V. Truth in Taxation Hearing &
VI. Approval of Ordinance No. 889: Levying

the Taxes for the 2018 Tax Year

Glencoe Park District
November 2018 Board Meeting



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE NO. 889

 AN ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES FOR THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT,  
 COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR 2018

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners established an estimate of levy, in compliance with 
Section 18-60 of the Property Tax Code, at the Committee of the Whole meeting on October 2, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the estimate of levy determined that the proposed aggregate levy represents a  4.21% 
increase over the 2017 extension of the corporate or special purpose taxes that were levied or abated; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners held a public hearing on November 13, 2018, 
regarding a proposed property tax increase at the Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, Illinois 60022, 
for which the Board caused notice of the public hearing to be published in the Glencoe News, an English 
language newspaper of general circulation published in the taxing district, on November 1, 2018. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, 
Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  The sum of Four Million, Five Hundred Forty Six Thousand ($4,546,000), or so much 
as may be authorized by law, is hereby assessed and levied, for the anticipated objects and purposes specified, 
against all taxable property within the limits of the Glencoe Park District as the same is assessed and equalized 
for State and County purposes, for 2018.  The said taxes, which are hereby levied, are exclusive of the amounts 
previously levied for the payment of bonded indebtedness and interest thereon. 

I. GENERAL CORPORATE FUND  

Personnel Services     $ 940,000 
Utilities and Other Contractual Services    570,000 
Commodities       270,000 
Capital Improvements      500,000 

 Total to be raised by Taxation for 
 Corporate Purposes (70 ILCS 1205/5-1; 5-3 and $        2,280,000 
        Public Act 97-974) 

    II.  RECREATION FUND 

Personnel Services     $  600,000 
Utilities and Other Contractual Services    340,000 
Commodities       110,000 
Fixed Charges/Dues        20,000 
Capital Improvements        25,000 

Total to be raised by Taxation 
for Recreation Fund (70 ILCS 1205/5-2; 5-3a and $        1,095,000 
       Public Act 97-974) 

   III.  SPECIAL RECREATION FUND  

District's share of expenses of providing   
recreational programs for the handicapped 
under joint intergovernmental agreement    $315,000 

Total to be raised by Taxation 
for Special Recreation Fund (70 ILCS 1205/5-8) $    315,000 



    IV.  LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND 

Joint Self-Insurance Premiums    $ 115,000 
Other Risk Management Expenses      45,000 

Total to be raised by Taxation 
for Insurance Fund (745 ILCS 10/9-107)  $ 160,000 

    V.  AUDIT FUND  

Auditing Expenses     $  13,000 

Total to be raised by Taxation 
for Audit Services (50 ILCS 310/9)   $  13,000 

    VI. I.M.R.F. FUND 

Employer IMRF Contributions    $          360,000 

Total to be raised by Taxation 
for I.M.R.F. Fund (40 ILCS 5/7-171)  $          360,000 

VII. SOCIAL SECURITY FUND  

   Cost of participation in the Federal Social 
     Security Insurance and Medicare Program  $ 280,000 

   Total to be raised by Taxation 
   for Social Security Fund  (40 ILCS 5/21-110)  $ 280,000

VIII.  WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND 

Joint Self-Insurance Premiums    $  43,000 

Total to be raised by Taxation for 
Workers' Compensation Insurance Fund  $  43,000 
(745 ILCS 10/9-107) 

  TOTAL AMOUNT TO BE LEVIED-OPERATING FUNDS  $       4,546,000

SUMMARY

Total Tax Levy for General Corporate Fund ......................................... .....  $2,280,000 
Total Tax Levy for Recreation Fund .................................................... ......    1,095,000 
Total Tax Levy for Special Recreation Fund ....................................... ......       315,000 
Total Tax Levy for Liability Insurance Fund ...............................................       160,000 
Total Tax Levy for Audit Fund .............................................................. .....         13,000 
Total Tax Levy for I.M.R.F. Fund ...................................... .........................       360,000 
Total Tax Levy for Social Security Fund……………………………………. .       280,000 
Total Tax Levy for Workers' Compensation Insurance Fund .............. ......         43,000 

TOTAL AMOUNT TO BE LEVIED- OPERATING FUNDS        $4,546,000 



SECTION 2.  Pursuant to Section 4-4 of the Park District Code (70 ILCS 1205/4-4) neither the Budget and 
Appropriation Ordinance of the District for the current fiscal year beginning March 1, 2018 and ending February 
28, 2019 nor any other Budget and Appropriation Ordinance is intended or required to be in support of the tax 
levy made in this ordinance.

SECTION 3.  The unexpended balance of any item or items levied in and by this ordinance may be 
expended in making up any deficit of any item or items in the same general appropriation and levy made by this 
ordinance.  The unexpended balance of the tax for general corporate purposes from the preceding year may be 
accumulated and set aside for the purposes of building repairs and improvements in a capital improvement fund, 
provided that the balance of such fund does not exceed 1.5% of the aggregated assessed valuation of all 
taxable property within the District. 

SECTION  4. That forthwith upon the passage of this ordinance, the Secretary of this Board is directed to 
file in the office of the County Clerk of Cook County, Illinois, a copy of this ordinance properly certified by said 
Secretary as to its enactment accompanied by the certificate of the presiding officer as to compliance with the 
Truth-in-Taxation Law, and said County Clerk is hereby directed to extend taxes sufficient to produce the 
amounts levied herein in accordance with applicable law. 

SECTION  5.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption as required by law. 

ADOPTED this 13th of November, 2018 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: 

________________________________
Lisa Brooks, President 

 Board of Park Commissioners 

 ATTEST:                             

 ________________________________ 
 Lisa Sheppard, Secretary 
 Board of Park Commissioners                            

[SEAL]



 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, Lisa Sheppard, hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 

Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I am keeper of the records, ordinances, 

files and seals of said Park District, and 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of AN

ORDINANCE LEVYING THE TAXES OF THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

FOR 2018, which was adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of 

the Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 13th day of 

November, A.D. 2018.

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said ordinance were 

conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly, that said meeting was 

held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all 

of the news media requesting such notice, that an agenda for said meeting was posted at the location at 

which said meeting was held and at the principal office of the Board at least 48 hours in advance of the 

holding of said meeting, that said meeting was called and held in strict compliance with the provisions of 

the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and with the provisions of the Park District  

Code of the State of Illinois, as amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said 

Act and said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said Park District 

at Glencoe, Illinois, this 13th day of November, 2018. 

________________________________
Lisa Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners 
Glencoe Park District 

[SEAL]



 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

TRUTH IN TAXATION 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

I, Lisa Brooks, hereby certify that I am the presiding officer of the Glencoe Park District, Cook 

County, Illinois, and as such presiding officer I certify that the levy ordinance, a copy of which is attached, 

was adopted pursuant to, and in all respects in compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Property Tax 

Code - Truth in Taxation Law, 35 ILCS 200/18-60 through 18-85(2002).

This certificate applies to the 2018 levy. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed my name in my official capacity as the President and 

presiding officer of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 

13th day of November, 2018. 

________________________________
Lisa Brooks, President 
Board of Park Commissioners 
Glencoe Park District 

[SEAL]

C: \My Documents\Levy\2018\LevyOrdinance.2018



VII. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
November 2018 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
October 2018

As of As of As of
10/31/2016 10/31/2017 10/31/2018

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 2,579,591 2,638,784 (1) 2,775,543
Wages (438,258) (457,610) (467,394)
Contractual (933,848) (984,247) (969,007)
Supplies (72,281) (25,441) (1) (88,281)
     Net Surplus 1,135,204 1,171,486 1,250,861

Day Care Department
Revenue 583,878 618,398 784,978
Expense (454,220) (481,142) (652,963)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 129,658 137,256 132,015

Fitness Department
Revenue n/a n/a 26,275
Expense n/a n/a (24,818)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) n/a n/a 1,457

Beach Department
Revenue 323,937 318,034 321,353
Expense (223,194) (220,999) (204,335)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 100,743 97,035 117,018

Boating Department
Revenue 105,517 113,338 105,495
Expense (91,540) (108,905) (127,238)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 13,977 4,433 (21,743)

Beach/Boating Dept Total: 114,720 101,468 95,275

Watts Department
Revenue 11,697 5,189 11,550
Expenses (88,312) (97,109) (98,745)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (76,615) (91,920) (87,195)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 19,940 22,660 22,088
Expense (671,848) (754,955) (788,478)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (651,908) (732,295) (766,390)

Parks Department
Revenue 27,463 2,585 17,117
Expense (688,579) (737,911) (742,379)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (661,116) (735,326) (725,262)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 1,118,220 1,143,867 1,206,026
Expenses (1,372,929) (2,296,242) (1,741,088)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (254,709) (1,152,375) (535,062)

(1) ELC revenue that was miscoded to supplies was not corrected until November.



VIII. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
November 2018 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

November 2018 

2018 Levy Ordinance 
Based on the Board’s approval of the aggregate levy amount, the Truth-in-Taxation resolution 
was approved at last month’s board meeting.  Based on the 4.21% increase in the operating levy 
amount, the Levy Ordinance was prepared and reviewed by legal counsel.  A copy of the 
ordinance is included in your packet and is scheduled to be approved by the Board at this 
November 13 regular meeting after the levy hearing is held.  It will then be filed with the County 
Clerk’s Office by the deadline of Tuesday, December 25.

FY 2019/2020 Budget and Capital Project Proposals 
Staff has been busy preparing, completing, and inputting budget worksheets for the upcoming 
new budget year.   Capital project proposals have also been submitted for consideration, and are 
in the process of being finalized/prioritized by the executive management team.   

Health Insurance Renewal 
Staff attended the PDRMA Health Program Benefit Coordinator seminar in early October, and 
staff’s recommendation was approved by the Board at the last Board meeting. The full-time staff 
meeting to discuss the 2019 health insurance plan renewal, including plan benefit changes and 
employee contribution amounts, was conducted with employees on November 6. The open 
enrollment period for PDRMA Health Program is October 29 – November 20, and staff is 
assisting employees in completing all required paperwork by the end of this month, as well as 
answering their questions. 

Front Office Operations 
Residents have started to purchase their Watts Ice pass/tokens….like last year, they can renew 
online if they had a pass last year.   Office staff has been gearing up for the Winter/Camp 
program registration that will kick off with the mailing of the District’s Winter/Camp Brochure 
around November 12.  The real-time online winter registration for residents will be on November 
28 at 7:00am. Walk up registration will begin at 8:00am. 

Meetings/Events Attended 
October 25 – Boo Bash special event 
November 6 – PATH Wellness Screening webinar 
November 7 – PDRMA Council Meeting webinar 

Unclaimed Property Report 
Due to a change in the law effective January 1, governmental agencies are required to complete 
the Annual Report for 2018 by November 1, 2018 and remit any unclaimed assets (primarily 
payroll) to the state after applicable rules on trying to contact the payees for reissuing of checks. 
Staff has submitted report and unclaimed checks for 2018 as required. 

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance and Human Resources 



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

November 2018 

Recreation Department Report: Bobby Collins
The Recreation Team submitted the first draft of its FY2019/20 budgets to the Finance 
Department on Friday, October 26. Staff also finished the final proof of the winter brochure, 
while also hosting the ever popular Boo Bash on October 25. Stephani, Jess, Adam, and Liz 
attended the New Tier Jobs Fair in October and collected over 30 interest forms from prospective 
seasonal employees.

On October 8, players from JJsList conducted an excellent, relevant, and hands-on disability 
awareness training. All who attended gained valuable insight and skills to improve recreation 
experiences for those with disabilities.

Adam is busy preparing for the opening of Watts on Friday, November 23. We are already 
benefiting from splitting the Beach/Watts facility manager position. Adam and Erin designed and 
mailed a Watts flyer in Early October. Watts’s program enrollment is currently at 54, while we 
did not have any enrollment at the same time last year.   

Arts and Youth: Stephani Briskman 
New this winter session, we are offering Minecraft Networked Adventure, Robotics Club, Game 
Designing and Coding, Digital Design and STEM, and Build/Program Your Own Robot. STEM 
students will use computing skills to create digital ideas, games and brings apps to life. These 
classes will be offered at Takiff Center. 

We are continuing with summer 2019 planning. Stephani is working with Camp Docs to 
integrate our camp paperwork into households for participants to update forms, allergies, and 
medications. We began planning staff orientation and training days for our summer 2019 camp 
staff. 

Following District 35’s institute days and holidays, we have three “School Day Off” programs 
during the month of November. The children will be traveling to Arctic Splash, Libertyville 
Sports Complex and Pump It Up. We expect enrollment in be consistent with last year.  

School Day Off Enrollment 
2018

as of 11/2/18 2017

September 10 44 September 21 32 
September 19 45 October 6 47 
October 8 25 October 9 34 
November 8 39 November 9 49 
November 9 48 November 10 38 
November 21 16 November 23 26 
Total 217 Total 226 



Early Childhood: Jessica Stockl 
With fall moving quickly, our children and staff have been enjoying exploration of nature. We 
have been opening pumpkins, coloring with leaves, and going on nature walks around Takiff. 
The children loved the Preschool Spooktacular Halloween Event in the Takiff Center gym. We 
had twenty-five families volunteer to decorate tables and hand out treats for a safe trick or 
treating experience. 

All of the early childhood staff attended a full day of training on Columbus Day. We spent the 
morning discussing the need for kindness in the classroom and the workplace. The teachers 
created mock lesson plans and discussed their favorite parts of their jobs. The afternoon was 
spent with Ericka Farag from Kohl Children’s Museum discussing the need for processed art in 
the classroom. 

Children’s Circle is continuing to see an increase in the waitlist for our youngest classrooms. We 
have twenty infants on the Jellyfish waitlist, nine toddlers on the Frog waitlist, three 2 year olds 
on the Turtle waitlist, and seven 3 year olds on the Dolphin waitlist.  We are keeping the Frog 
class small as more than half of the Jellyfish (infants) will need to move up in the next three 
months. The mid-year openings in Jellyfish are already full with many current families expecting 
their second child.

Children’s Circle Enrollment 
as of 9/6

2018 2017 

Jellyfish 8 15 
Frogs 10 14 

Turtles (NEW) 14 0 
Starfish 13 17 

Dolphins (NEW) 15 0 
Belugas 17 21 
Total 77 67 

There has been an increase in inquiries about Early Learning Center including young families 
looking to be in the program for the next school year. October has been the first full month of 
Early Learning Center using the Brightwheel app. It has been a great success. The families love 
to see updates of their little ones during the school day. They can take that information and 
continue the learning at home! 

ELC Enrollment 
as of 9/4

2018-2019 2017-2018

2’s classes 14 19 
3’s classes 17 19 
4’s classes 26 42 

Kindergarten Readiness
(Replaced ELC 4s PM) 7 7 

Total 64 87 



Athletics/Sports/Teen Camp: Chris Pietrini  
Chris held the travel basketball parents meeting, as well as the scheduling meeting for the 4th and 
5th grade boys travel teams.  For our house league, Chris met with neighboring communities to 
review rules and to start laying out schedules for the cooperative leagues. Clinics began the first 
week of October. 

Outdoor programming came to an end in early October and we have moved all classes indoors. 
The structure of SNAG Golf was changed to give more access to children immediately after 
school, which has led to the increase in enrollment.  We have seen some enrollment shifts in 
some athletics programs this fall. The rec team is planning to conduct focus groups this winter to 
better understand the interests and needs of the community.   

Fall Athletics Enrollment 2018 2017 
SNAG Golf 4-8 year olds* 25 12 
Fencing * 16 31 
Little Dribblers 22 24 
Hot Shots Basketball 9 12 

* 2 sessions in fall 

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
On Friday, October 19, the Park District hosted the first seasonal Art Show. Over sixty adults 
including art instructors, adult class participants, along with their family and friends came to see 
the first Takiff Center Art Gallery instillation. A new hanging display and a display case was 
installed in the Takiff lower lobby.  The Park District has received numerous compliments from 
patrons loving the new Art Gallery. The next Art Show will be held on Friday, January 18 with 
all new artwork.    

Special Event Attendance 2018 2017 
Friday, Oct 19 – Art Show  ~ 60 Not offered 
Thursday, Oct 25– Boo Bash 413 440 
Saturday, Nov 3 – Nerf Battle 44 23 

Upcoming Fall events:  
November 19 – Snoopy Thanksgiving 
November 23 – Watts Center Opening 
December 1 – Winter Express 
December 14 – Teen Ice Night 

Ceramics/Art Enrollment 
as of 11/1

2018 2017 

Adult Ceramics 39 57 
Youth Ceramics 47 54 
Adult Art Programs 88 33 
Adult Art Workshops 2 7 
Teen Programs 15 9 



Adult Ceramics enrollment is still low comparted to this time last year. The second session of 
fall Ceramics began the week of October 29; therefore, some participants are still enrolling. 
Adult Art is still going strong and several new participants enrolled in second session of fall 
classes. Sculpt & Sip was cancelled due to low enrollment.  

Takiff, Fitness, & Watts: Adam Wohl  
Facility rentals in 2018 continue to trend consistently above 2017. Switching to facility rentals 
versus birthday party packages has helped streamline the process. We have booked quite a few 
large rentals that are helping to improve our numbers overall. This has saved a large amount in 
administrative time as we no longer coordinate the party themes and packages themselves. We 
also are no longer paying out to contractors 75% of the revenue for those packages. 

Takiff Center Rental 
as of 11/1/2018 2018 2017 

Facility Rentals $65,667 $51,666 

Glencoe Fitness 
Glencoe Fitness continues to grow in membership. Below is our current active member totals. 

During the month of September, we ran a back to school special for all Children’s Circle, ELC, 
and GJK parents. A total of 10 parents were able to try our fitness center for the entire month of 
September for free. Out of those 10 parents, 4 of have become full annual members. 

We will be surveying fitness center members and preschool parents during the month of 
November to find out how Glencoe Fitness can continue to meet the needs of the community. 

Watts Recreation Center & Ice Rinks
The Watts Recreation Center & Ice Rinks are scheduled to open on Friday, November 23 for the 
2018-19 season. We are finalizing staff including Zamboni Drivers, Managers, Cashiers, Party 
Attendants, Skate Guard, and Learn to Skate Instructors. Training for all staff is scheduled to 
begin on November 14. 

During the month of October, we sent out a Watts Ice Rinks mailer that included pass 
memberships, skating classes, and rental information. This has been a huge success in getting 
registration started earlier for classes and passes with both going on sale beginning on October 1. 

Active Fitness Members 
as of 11/1/2018 Fees

202 $57,265 



Watts Center Rental 
as of 11/1 2018 2017 

Room Rentals $2,936 $2,378
Party Ice Rentals $1,202 $596 

Misc. Hockey Rentals $6,173 $1,408

Watts Skating 
Classes
as of 11/1

2018 2017 
Enrollment Fees Enrollment Fees 

Snowplow Sam 41 $3,591 0 $0.00 
USFS Skating 8 $722 0 $0.00 
Minor Hawks 5 $418 0 $0.00 

Watts Pass Sales 
as of 11/1

2018 2017 
# Passes Fees # Passes Fees 

Individual Pass 2 $128 0 $0.00 
Family Pass 10 $402 0 $0.00 
Combo Pass 1 $180 0 $0.00 

Beach: Matt Walker 
The Boathouse officially closed for the season on Sunday, October 14. The beach staff moved 
boats to higher ground. Staff is following up with boaters who have not paid for winter storage.  
Any boat found to be delinquent or abandoned will be handled according to the Glencoe Park 
District policy regarding delinquent and abandoned boats. The winterization of the Beach House 
and spray ground has been completed and the winterization of the Boathouse will happen as soon 
as our powerboat fleet has been prepared for winter.   

Submitted by: 
Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation and Facilities 



Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Maintenance Report 

November 2018 

Administrative 
I have continued to work with Altamanu relating to the playground replacement projects and 
Takiff parking project. I am continuing to coordinate with ACG relating to the Watts’ RTU 
replacement project. We are expecting the new rooftop units to be installed in late November 
early December. 

I was invited to join the PDRMA Risk Management Committee; I will serve as a representative 
for Glencoe and for Parks Departments throughout the PDRMA membership.   

Grounds/Horticulture
The horticulture crew has been busy maintaining planting beds throughout the District. Staff 
created the seasonal display at Takiff. Additionally, staff has been planting spring bulbs 
throughout the district. Staff has spent considerable time assessing the condition of outlying 
planting beds to prepare for next year. 

Based on the weather conditions and its effect on the grass, we extended the contractual mowing 
agreement by two weeks to ensure that the grass was cut for fall. 

Staff has been busy top dressing and seeding areas where stumps where ground. 

Parks Maintenance & Construction 
Parks staff has been busy making repairs and improvements throughout the District. Staff 
installed the Woodlawn playground drinking fountain’s waterline. 

During routine inspections of Lincoln & Crescent playground and Milton Park staff discovered 
several pieces of equipment had degraded. Upon consultation with PDRMA, the tire swing was 
removed from Lincoln & Crescent playground. Milton Park is being evaluated this week and 
staff will update the Board on the status after the inspection. 

Staff has continued to balance seasonal tasks with routine maintenance such as trash removal, 
grass cutting, park grooming, and beach cleaning. 

Facilities 
Facilities staff has been focusing on seasonal preparations at the Watts Ice Rinks & Community 
Center. Staff is working on repairing the ice rink boards and touching up paint throughout the 
building.

At the beach, staff has begun the winterizing process by turning off the water and taking down 
the shade covers.  



Athletic
With the closing of the baseball season, staff had the exciting opportunity to partner with the 
professional grounds crew from the South Bend Cubs. Parks staff worked side by side with the 
ground crew from South Bend to perform end of season maintenance to the ballfield at Watts 
Park. The field was tilled, the mound and home plate were rebuilt and clay was added 
throughout. It was an exciting opportunity to share expertise and staff appreciated the additional 
volunteer labor support. 

Staff has continued the process of fall aerating, fertilizing, and over seeding. Each park site takes 
about four hours to aerate seed and fertilize. This is the third season with this new approach and 
we have begun to see the dividend of healthy turf grass that holds up to heavy use better than in 
previous season.

AYSO Soccer and Glencoe Baseball Associations’ outdoor seasons have concluded for 2018. 

Equipment
In preparation for cold weather, trucks have been serviced and snow equipment has been 
inspected. We have been focusing on staff training, to continue to familiarize staff with all facets 
of equipment and District operations. 

Shared Services 
Village and Park District staff continue to partner thru the shared services agreement. The 
Village of Glencoe delivered rock salt to the parks yard in preparation for the snow season.  

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Social M
We ende
month w
Twitter a
followers

We sent 

Date

29 Oct
18 Oct
17 Oct
17 Oct
11 Oct
8 Oct
6 Oct
2 Oct

Glencoe
We are w
2019.

Special E
I worked
Harvest F
creating f
and even
email bla
pitched th

Art Publ
In late su
targeted l
Glencoe.
blasts to 
the adult 
the Takif
postcards
publicity
email bla

Media/Email
d the month
ith 55,540 im

and 1,055 fol
s on Faceboo

out several t

Subject

Nerf Battle
Dance Show
Boo Bash
Basketball
Art Show
ELC Septem
Fitness Cen
Harvest Fe

Fitness Ret
working on n

Events
d closely with
Fest, Tails &
flyers, webs

nt signage for
asts and soci
he events to 

licity
ummer, an ar
list of adults
 We also sen
promote cla
classes pres

ff Center. Stu
s to share wi

y plan also in
asts, in addit

Ma

l
of October 

mpressions).
llowers on In
ok.

targeted ema

e
wcase

mber 18
nter & Parking
st/Tails & Ale

tention
new material

h the Recrea
& Ales, Art S

ite graphics,
r the event. I
al media pos
local report

rt brochure w
s within a 3-m
nt several art

ass enrollmen
sented their f
udents were 
ith friends an
ncluded flyer
ion to target

Glenco
arketing/Co

Nov

with 42,314
. We now ha
nstagram. G

ail blasts, pri

Tot
Sen

g Lot 2
es 5

ls, challenge

ation Departm
Show, and B
, posters, ban
I also genera
sts, as well a
ters. 

was sent to a
mile radius o
t class email
nt. This mon
first Art Sho
given stack

nd family. T
rs, posters, a
ted social me

e Park Dist
mmunicatio

vember 2018

4 Facebook im
ave 1,546 fol
Glencoe Beac

imarily focu

tal
nt

Open
Rate

453 48.00
110 83.50
547 55.70
531 43.50
149 55.50
80 73.40

136 48.90
5090 35.30

s, and signag

ment to mark
oo Bash by
nners, 
ated
as

a
of
l

nth,
ow at 
s of 

The
and
edia ads.

trict
ons Report
8

mpressions (
llowers on F
ch has 1,918

sed on fall a

Click
Rate

0% 13.50%
0% 0.00%
0% 11.30%
0% 11.80%
0% 12.30%
0% 8.60%
0% 3.10%
0% 10.30%

ge to drive G

ket

(in 2017, we
Facebook, 85
8 and Watts 

activities and

Link

% https://c
% https://co
% https://co
% https://co
% https://co
% https://co
% https://co
% https://co

Glencoe Fitn

e ended the 
52 followers
has 190 

d special eve

onta.cc/2Q5k
onta.cc/2EEve
onta.cc/2Evm
onta.cc/2COZ
onta.cc/2yAg
onta.cc/2OGG
onta.cc/2Pfr0
onta.cc/2IvXh

ness retention

s on 

ents. 

kOoK
eds

mlmN
ZHUz
Hcv
GYQD
0tT
hdv

n in 



Winter B
I am now
mailed to
on summ
and Glen

Watts Pu
A four-pa
househol
A numbe
promote 
We are n
in prepar

Submitte
Erin Clas

Brochure 
w working on
o residents in

mer camp pro
ncoe Fitness 

ublicity
age folded m
lds in Octobe
er of social m
registration

now working
ration for the

ed by: 
ssen, Superin

n the Winter
n mid-Novem
ograms, wint
information

mailer was se
er to promot

media posts h
on Instagram

g with the fac
e new season

ntendent of M

r Brochure, w
mber. It inclu
ter programs
.

ent to all Gle
te Watts’ cla
have been de
m, Facebook
cilities team 
n.

Marketing an

which will b
udes inform
s, special eve

encoe 
asses and pas
esigned to 
k, and Twitte

to update si

nd Commun

e
mation

ents,

sses.

er.
igns

nications



SAFETY AND WELLNESS COMMITTEE 
Agenda and Minutes 

Thursday, October 25, 2018 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 11:03 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Carol Mensinger, Chris Leiner, Bobby Collins, Jessica Stockl, Matt Walker, Adam Wohl, 
Liz Visteen, and Lorise Weil.  Absent: Liz Stowick     

2.   Review of the Minutes:  The Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting Minutes from September 5, 2018 were 
reviewed and accepted.     

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported on the accident/incident reports for the past month.  There were 
(7) participant accident/incident reports and (1) employee injury.     

4. Facility and Park Inspection Review:   
a) One of the benches on the tote stool table, located at the Takiff playground, requires repair.  Chris
     noted that materials have been ordered.   
b) Chris stated that the tire swing has been removed at Lincoln and Crescent, per PDRMA’s direction.   

5. Open Claims:   The underground storage tank Property Loss claim is still open.  In addition, there are (7) 
Worker’s Comp claims and (4) Property claims that are open.     

6. Carry Over Items:  
a) Lorise stated that GJK asked if we could possibly incorporate “Fire Stop Signs” during one of our 

future fire drills.  Chris stated that they will definitely take a look at this, i.e., when Public Safety 
comes out to assist us on determining multiple evacuation points.   

b) Lorise asked about the Safety Data Sheet binders, and provided Chris with A-Z indexes for the 
multiple areas that will be storing Safety Data Sheets, e.g., Parks, Beach, Watts, and the Early 
Childhood wing.  Bill and Matt are working on this project. 

   
7. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information, as requested.  The COIs should be updated on a monthly basis.  Carol went over the COIs that 
are still needed.

8. New Items:   
a) Since the red pallet is now in place, Carol is hoping that the shredding of documents will take place 

sometime in November.   
b) It was decided that monies received from the Hazard Hunter Contest will be put toward personal 

protection equipment for the Boating staff for next year.   
c) Carol briefly went over OSHA’s reporting requirements.   
d) Chris will research pamphlet material on slips, trips and falls, which we can provide the staff with at  

our scheduled, December 6, 2018, staff meeting.   
e) Chris asked Jessica to conduct a mock fire drill, to try out a new evacuation route for the EC wing.   
f) Chris noted that we need to have a tornado drill conducted, so that everyone knows where they need 

to go to in case of this type of emergency.  This will be a topic at our next Lunch and Learn.   
g) Chris stated that we need to check our PA system every August, when the building is closed, to 

verify that everyone can hear the PA in every room. 
h) Our current Footwear Policy was briefly discussed.  Boat Guards are required to wear shoes; we do 

supply them, but on a borrowed-basis.  However, next year, Boat Guards will be required to wear 
their own closed-toe water shoes.  Matt will be overseeing this.

i) It was mentioned that hearing tests have been scheduled. 
j) An extra phone must be available for the custodians to reach staff in an emergency.  Lorise checked 

the Trimline Phone, which is stored in her office, and found out that it works with the (fax) pots line.   

9. Wellness Initiatives:  No information on this at this time, as we are waiting on Liz’s return.        

        Adjourn:  11:55 a.m.   

The next Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 14, 2018  
at 11:00 a.m.



IX. Executive Director Report

Glencoe Park District
November 2018 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Executive Director’s Report 

November 2018 

Watts Recreation Center & Ice Rinks 
Staff is preparing Watts Recreation Center & Ice Rinks for opening day! Adam is going through 
operational procedures and programming with a fine toothcomb. They are also working on a 
staff training schedule. Chris’s team has been busy preparing the facility for the season.  

We are watching the weather carefully. It is a little warm to be making ice, but we are in 
Chicagoland so that changes daily. Weather permitting; we will open for the season the day after 
Thanksgiving. We will be holding a day long Black Ice Friday event at Watts on Friday, 
November 23! Before or after the Village Lights event, come and enjoy this unique and special 
skating facility. 

Glencoe Fitness 
Adam and Erin have developed new promotions for Glencoe Fitness.  As the weather gets colder 
we are seeing more visitors return to the center.  Some of the promotions are “Renew now and 
lock in your 2018 prices,” “Bring a friend and if he/she joins and get a month free,” and “19 
healthy habits in 2019” that starts in January. 

Glencoe Park District Team Holiday Party 
The Customer Service Committee has been busy planning for our annual agency appreciation 
party. The event is Friday, December 7 at Pinstripes in Northbrook. We hope to see you there!  

Freedom of Information Report 
There were two FOIA requests during September through October. 

Sheet Metal Workers LU73 requested information on new construction/renovation/ 
maintenance work planned on October 4 and was responded to on October 11. 
IIIFFC requested Hacienda Landscaping documents regarding the 2018 playground and park 
renovations on October 24 and was responded to in full on October 31. 

IPRA Conference 
The IPRA Conference is coming up in January; please send me an e-mail if you would like to 
attend the conference.  Glencoe Park District will receive its Distinguished Accreditation plaque 
at the conference luncheon. 

Trails 
We have provided a link to area trails on our website. The links are available in the 
“downloadable maps” section: http://www.glencoeparkdistrict.com/Parks. This includes Map of 
Glencoe run/walk routes, Cook County Forest Preserve Trail maps and City of Chicago Bike 
Map.

Village of Glencoe Sesquicentennial  
To kick-off the celebration of Glencoe's 150th birthday in 2019, the Village of Glencoe, the 
Glencoe Historical Society, and the Glencoe Chamber of Commerce have partnered to make the 
annual Light the Lights event bigger and better than ever before!



2

Get in the holiday spirit on Friday, November 23 from 4-7 p.m., in downtown Glencoe with a 
lighting ceremony, a “Wine and Beer Stroll,” caroling, photos with Santa, live reindeer petting, 
trackless train rides through our beautiful downtown, and more. And to get your holiday 
shopping started, many of our downtown businesses are starting Small Business Saturday 
specials a day early and will stay open late for the event.  

The Park District will be joining in on the Sesquicentennial by having students and residents 
make 150 bowls to be sold at next year’s Harvest Fest and will include a Glencoe restaurant 
certificate in them. The proceeds will then be given to the food pantry.   

We will also be working with the Village to expand our Fourth of July celebration with enhanced 
fireworks, entertainment, food trucks, and a beer garden. All proceeds from the beer garden will 
go back into the Fourth of July fund. 

South Bend Cubs and Glencoe Park District 
The South Bend Cubs field crew came out to Glencoe to help out our Parks team with some fall 
maintenance on our Watts Park baseball field.  This was at no cost to the Park District and 
provided some much need support to our parks team.  We have a small but mighty team and we 
don’t always have enough time to do end of the season improvements before the cold weather 
hits.

Readers are Leaders 
I had the opportunity to attend South School’s Readers are Leaders event and speak to the 
children about the Park District and read them The Giving Tree.

Future Meetings or Events 
November 17 10:00-11:30am Snoopy Thanksgiving 
November 24 10:00am-8:00pm Black Ice Friday | Watts open for the season 
December 1 1:00-4:00pm Winter Express | 4 time slots beginning at 1:00pm (new) 
December 4 7:00pm  Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
December 7 6:00pm Glencoe Park District Appreciation Party 
December 14 6:30-8:30pm Teen Ice Night 
December 18 7:00pm Regular Board Meeting  
December 21    5:00pm Winter Solstice – Light up the Green Bay Trail 

Submitted by: 
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 



X. Action Item A
Acceptance of the Glencoe Active

Transportation Plan

Glencoe Park District
November 2018 Board Meeting



November 2018

Active Transportation Plan
GLENCOE



Active Transportation Plan Steering Committee

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

About the Consultants

Phil Kiraly, Village Manager

Anna Kesler, Village Engineer

Lis

Scott Padiak



GLENCOE

Introduction 4

1.1   Why Active Transportation Matters 5

1.2  Vision 6

1.3   Planning Process & Plan Overview 7

Existing Conditions 8

2.1   Overview   9

2.2   Destinations 10

2.3   Sidewalks 12

2.4   Multi-Use Trails & Paths 14

2.5   Bikeways 16

2.6   Active Transportation Use 18

2.7   Pedestrian & Bicycle Crashes 20

Public Engagement 22

3.1   Overview 23

3.2   What People Told Us: Walking 24

3.3   What People Told Us: Biking 26

3.4   What Parents Told Us:   

Walking & Biking to School 28

Active Transportation Plan

Recommendations   32

4.1   Overview 33

4.2   Toolbox 34

4.3   Dundee Road 42

4.4   Forestway Drive 44

4.5   Green Bay Road (North Section) 46

4.6   Green Bay Road (Central Section) 48

4.7   Green Bay Road (South Section) 50

4.8   Sheridan Road 52

4.9   Lake Cook Road 54

4.10   Sidewalk Network on Local Roads 56

4.11   Intersection Improvements on   

Local Roads 58

4.12    Bike Network Improvements on   

Local Roads 60

4.13   Trail Improvements 62

4.14   Community-Wide Walking &   

Biking Campaign 63

Implementation    68

5.1   Overview 69

5.2   Infrastructure Implementation 73

5.3   Walking & Biking   

Campaign Implementation 78

Resources     79



4 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Active transportation 
includes walking, biking, 
and other physically 
active forms of travel. 
Why does it matter to 
Glencoe?

INTRODUCTION

1



5CHAPTER 1  |  INTRODUCTION

1.1   WHY ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION MATTERS

•  

lifestyles and chronic disease on the rise, 

•  

•  

• 

• 

• 

biking or transit reduces greenhouse gas 



6 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

1.2 VISION

Imagine a Glencoe 
where people of all 
ages are encouraged 
to walk and bike to its 
many amenities. Its 
streets and sidewalks 
are packed with 
children each day on 
route to schools and 
parks. Its downtown 
bustles with activity 
as people shop, 
eat and linger. Its 
lakefront bike racks 
are full on summer 
days. Its trails burst 
with walkers, runners, 
and bikers of all ages 
and abilities.

Mission

Sustainability Task Force, and the Village of 

Actions We Will Take

local destinations and link to the neighboring 

cyclists

Vision



7CHAPTER 1  |  INTRODUCTION

1.3 PLANNING PROCESS & PLAN OVERVIEW

The steering committee met 
seven times to define goals 
and priorities and review 
recommendations. 

See Chapter 1.

STEP 2:

REVIEW EXISTING 
CONDITIONS

The project team conducted 
field observations, reviewed 
previous plans and analyzed data 
to understand opportunities and 
constraints. 

See Chapter 2.

STEP 3:

ENGAGE THE 
COMMUNITY

STEP 4: 

DEVELOP 
RECOMMENDATIONS

STEP 5:

ACCEPT & IMPLEMENT

STEP 1:

FORM STEERING 
COMMITTEE

Glencoe community members 
informed recommendations 
online and at public events. 

See Chapter 3.

The project team used the data 
gathered to address many of the 
community’s challenges while 
working within physical and 
jurisdictional constraints. 

See Chapter 4. 

Following community review and 
board adoption, the plan will live 
on as the partners implement it. 

See Chapter 5.



8 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

What is Glencoe’s active 
transportation network 
like today?

EXISTING 
CONDITIONS

2



9CHAPTER 2  |  EXISTING CONDITIONS

2.1 OVERVIEW

West School students cross with bikes at Dundee at Hohlfelder. Source: David Rongey



10 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

•  

•  

District building, is centrally located, but is 

•  

the schools are age-centered, the distance a 

2.2 DESTINATIONS

• 

good access to one of the three Metra Stations 

• 



11CHAPTER 2  |  EXISTING CONDITIONS

Travel Times and Distances from Key Destinations

5 walk/1.5 bike

10 walk/3 bike

20 walk/6 bike

30 walk/9 bike

40 walk/18 bike

More than 40 walk/18 bike

0 1.50.75
Miles

*Based on an average walk time of 20 minutes/mile and an average bike time of 10 minutes/mile

Walking and Biking Distance to/from 
destinations in minutes

Data Source: American Community Survey 2012-2016 5-year estimates for Glencoe by Block Group



12 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

2.3 SIDEWALKS

Concrete sidewalk on Park Avenue with replaced segments

Newer brick sidewalk on Tudor Court

Sidewalk ends on Grove Street



13CHAPTER 2  |  EXISTING CONDITIONS

Sidewalk Network

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE S

T

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
A Y

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNO
N AVE

GREE

GREENW
OO

D AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
O

K L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E
 C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E L M
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R T H

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K

G
A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T U R NB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LA
KE

O
LD

E
L

M
LN

M
A

Y
F

A
I R

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

0 0.50.25
Miles

Existing Sidewalk

Data Source: Village of Glencoe



14 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

•  The Friends of the 

•  

2.4 MULTI-USE TRAILS & PATHS

Local Access Paths

Green Bay Trail at Hazel



15CHAPTER 2  |  EXISTING CONDITIONS

Multi-Use Trails and Paths

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
O

OD AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
OK L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E LM
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R TH

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID E

T
E

R
R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T URNB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D
HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

OL D
E

L
M

LN

M
A

Y
F

A
IR

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

0 0.50.25
Miles

Designated Trail

Pathway

Bike Lane

Data Sources: CMAP Bicycle Inventory System, Q2, 2018, Village of Glencoe Sidewalk Inventory, Active Transportation Alliance



16 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

2.5 BIKEWAYS

• 

and a future trail on the south end of Lake 

•  

• A Phase III 

Heat map of bike routes frequently used by Strava app users. 

Source: Strava.com/heatmap



17CHAPTER 2  |  EXISTING CONDITIONS

Planned & Existing Local and Regional Bikeways

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
O

OD AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
OK L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E LM
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R TH

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID E

T
E

R
R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T URNB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D
HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

OL D
E

L
M

LN

M
A

Y
F

A
IR

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

0 0.50.25
Miles

Existing Path or Trail

Planned Path or Trail

Bike Lane

Bike Lane, Planned

Bike Route, Planned

Data Source: CMAP Bicycle Inventory System, Q2, 2018



18 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

2.6 ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION USE

Percent Bike Riders by Block Group
0%

0-3%

3-6%

Percent Transit Riders by Block Group

0-19%

19-39%

39-58%

Percent Walkers by Block Group

0-2%

2-10%

10-18%

Where People in Glencoe Work How People in Glencoe Get to Work

Data Sources: American Community Survey 2011-2016 Means of Transportation to Work Estimate and U.S. Census Bureau, 

Longitudinal- Employer Household Dynamics Program.



19CHAPTER 2  |  EXISTING CONDITIONS

0 0.450.225
Miles

Percent of Glencoe Commuters who Bike to Work by Block Group

0% of Glencoe Commuters

0.01% - 0.4% of Glencoe Commuters

0 0.450.225
Miles

Percent of Commuters who Walk to Work by Block Group

0% of Glencoe Commuters

.01 - .20% of Glencoe Commuters

.21% - .30% of Glencoe Commuters

.31-.40% of Glencoe Commuters

.41-.60% of Glencoe Commuters

0 0.450.225
Miles

Percent of Commuters who Ride Transit to Work by Block Group

Less than 1.5% of Glencoe commuters

1.6% - 2% of Glencoe commuters

2.01% - 3% of Glencoe commuters

3.01% - 4% of Glencoe commuters

4.01% - 5% of Glencoe commuters

Data Source: American Community Survey 2011-2016 Means of Transportation to Work Estimate.

Commuters that Walk to Work

Commuters that Bike to Work

Commuters that Take Public Transit to Work



20 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

2.7 PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE CRASHES

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
O

OD AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
OK L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E LM
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R TH

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID E

T
E

R
R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T URNB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

OL D
E

L
M

LN

M
A

Y
F

A
IR

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

0 0.50.25
Miles

Injury

Property Damage

Pedestrian Crashes

Data Sources: Illinois Department of Transportation Crash Datasets, 2010-2016.



21CHAPTER 2  |  EXISTING CONDITIONS

Bicycle Crashes

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
O

OD AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
OK L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD
B

L
U

F
F

R
D

E LM
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R TH

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID E

T
E

R
R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T URNB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

OL D
E

L
M

LN

M
A

Y
F

A
IR

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

0 0.50.25
Miles

!( Bicycle Injury Crash

!( Bicycle Property Damage Crash

Data Sources: Illinois Department of Transportation Crash Datasets, 2010-2016.



22 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

What did residents and 
stakeholders say about 
walking and biking in 
Glencoe?

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

3



23CHAPTER 3  |  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

•

•

•

•
to identify challenging routes, intersections 

•

3.1 OVERVIEW

Steering committee members discussing infrastructure 

opportunities and challenges.



24 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Where do people walk? 

•

•

•

•

•

•

Why do people walk?

•  

•  

•   

•  

3.2 WHAT PEOPLE TOLD US: WALKING

What factors influence peoples’ decision to 

walk?

•

•

•

•

Where would people walk if improvements 

were made?

•

•

•

•

•

•

What discourages people from walking?

•

•

•

•



25CHAPTER 3  |  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
O

OD AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
OK L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E LM
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R TH

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID E

T
E

R
R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T URNB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

OL D
E

L
M

LN

M
A

Y
F

A
IR

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

0 0.50.25
Miles

Barriers to Walking Number of Votes
1

5

10

Desired Walking Routes Number of Votes
1-2 votes

2-5 votes

5-9 votes

9-14 votes

14-21 votes

Public Engagement Results - Walking



26 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Why do people bike?

•

•

•

•

What factors influence peoples’ decision to 

bike?

Where do people bike?

•

•

•

•

•

3.2 WHAT PEOPLE TOLD US: BIKING

What discourages people from biking?

•

•

•
street bike facilities

•

•

Which destinations would more people bike 

to if improvements were made?

•

•

•

•

•

•



27CHAPTER 3  |  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
O

OD AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
OK L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E LM
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R TH

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID E

T
E

R
R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T URNB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

O
L D

E
L

M
LN

M
A

Y
F

A
I R

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

0 0.50.25
Miles

Barriers to Biking Number of Votes
1

5

10

Desired Bike Routes Number of Votes
1 - 2

3 - 5

5 - 9

10 - 14

15 - 21

Public Engagement Results - Biking



28 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

3.3  WHAT PARENTS TOLD US: WALKING & BIKING TO 

SCHOOL

 

39%

21%

40% South School
West School
Central School

Distribution of Responses by School

Bike racks at Central School Dismissal at South School



29CHAPTER 3  |  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Trip to School By Mode

Comparison of Mode of Travel Used to Get to School by Glencoe School District, and 
Nationwide*

Walk to 
School

Bike to 
School

School Bus 
to School

Carpool to 
School

Drive alone 
to School

Total

South School 21% 1% 31% 1% 45% 100%

West School 12% 0% 33% 12% 43% 100%

Central School 19% 9% 5% 3% 65% 100%

District-Wide 18% 4% 21% 4% 53% 100%

National 

Average

15% 2% 30% 1% 52% 100%

Comparison of Mode of Travel Used to Get to School by Glencoe School District, and 
Nationwide*

*Percentages for District 35 reflect the responses provided by the 200 parents who responded to the survey and may not 

capture all student travel behavior.



30 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Trip from School By Mode

Comparison of Mode of Travel Used to Get from School by Glencoe School, District, 
and Nationwide

Walk from 
School

Bike from 
School

School Bus 
from School

Carpool 
from School

Drive 
alone from 
School

Total

South School 22.1% 1.3% 28.6% 1.3% 46.8% 100%

West School 16.7% 0.0% 35.7% 2.4% 45.2% 100%

Central School 36.3% 7.5% 5.0% 1.3% 50.0% 100%

District-Wide 27% 4% 21% 2% 48% 100%

National 

Average

18% 2% 34% 1% 45% 100%

Comparison of Mode of Travel Used to Get from School by Glencoe School, District, and 
Nationwide

*Percentages for District 35 reflect the responses provided by the 200 parents who responded to the survey and may not 

capture all student travel behavior.



31CHAPTER 3  |  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Top Barriers Reported by Parents

Top Factors that Influence Glencoe Parents’ Decision to Allow Children to Walk or 
Bike to School*

Top Factors that would that Influence Glencoe Parents’ Decision to Allow Children to Walk or 
Bike to School if Improved*

*Numbers for District 35 reflect the responses provided by the 200 parents who responded to the survey and may not capture 

all student travel behavior.



32 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

What can be done to 
increase walking and 
biking trips in Glencoe?

RECOMMENDATIONS

4



33CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

access destinations on foot and by bike, both 

strategies for addressing a further build-out of the 

are focused on building bicycle facilities 

4.1 OVERVIEW



34 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Pedestrian Network Tools

that obstruct sightlines on corners and encroach 

4.2   TOOLBOX

Wide sidewalk in downtown Glencoe

Standard residential sidewalk

Proper vs. improper landscaping maintenance. Source: 

Village of Glencoe



35CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

School Crossing Pavement Marking. Source: Ulster County 

Transportation Council

School zone pavement marking. Source: Traffic Safety Store



36 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Intersection Tools

Signs

Lines

Standback line. Source: Mike Cynecki

Waiting area. Source: Mike Cynecki

Bicycle crossing sign

Stop for pedestrians signage. Source: MUTCD



37CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

raises the intersection using a gradual incline to 

Reduced corner radii. Source: NACTO

Pedestrian crossing island

Bump-outs/curb extensions

Raised crosswalkRaised Intersection. Credit: NACTO



38 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Bicycle loop detector

Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB)

Bicycle intersection pavement markingsBicycle crosswalk

Pedestrian countdown signal



39CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

Trail Information & Wayfinding Signage

Distance, destination and direction sign for on-street use. Signage at a junction between two trails.

Trail system map can be posted on trail signs or on kiosks. Branded trail signs can be used along off-street portions of 

trails.

Information kiosks can be posted at access points and 

can include a roof to provide shelter from the sun.



40 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Bicycle Network Tools

Sharrow

Bike boulevard

“De facto” bike lane

Bike lane



41CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

U-shaped bike racks

Sidepath



42 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Key Issues

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

4.3   DUNDEE ROAD

Recommendations

•

•

•

install bollards at northeast, southeast and 

•

•

•

•

•



43CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

n VA LLE
Y

R
D

VERNON AVE

D
G

E
B

R
O

O

K L NDUNDEE RD

LO
N

G

U
F

F
R

D

D
R

APPLETREE
LN

N
C

O
E

D
R

M
A

Y

S
K

O D
R

D

F
A

IR
F R

 R
D

0 0.250.125
Miles

Sidewalk Installation

kj kj kjkjkj
kj

n VA LLE
Y

R
D

VERNON AVE

D
G

E
B

R
O

O

K L NDUNDEE RD

LO
N

G
 U

F
F

R
D

D
R

APPLETREE
LN

N
C

O
E

D
R

M
A

Y
F

S
K

O D
R

D

F
A

IR
F

E
R

 R
D

0 0.250.125
Miles

kj Proposed Intersection Improvement

n VA LLE
Y

R
D

VERNON AVE

GREENW
OO

DG
E

B
R

O
O

K L NDUNDEE RD

D

APPLETREE
LN

D
R

0 0.250.125
Miles

Existing Trail Proposed Sidepath Proposed Sharrow

Proposed Sidewalk Improvements - Dundee Road

Proposed Intersection Improvements - Dundee Road

Proposed Bikeway Improvements - Dundee Road



44 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Key Issues

•

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

4.4   FORESTWAY DRIVE

•

•



45CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

kj

kj

n VA LLE
Y

R
D

L N

P IN

L

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R RED

APPLETREE
LN

TOWER
FP

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

C O

kj Proposed Intersection Improvement

Sidewalk Installation

0 0.250.125
Miles

Proposed Sidewalk and Intersection 
Improvements - Forestway Drive

n VA LLE
Y

R
D

L N

P IN

L

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R RED

APPLETREE
LN

TOWER
FP

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

C O

Existing Trail

Proposed Trail

Proposed Paved Shoulder

0 0.250.125
Miles

Proposed Bikeway Improvements - 
Forestway Drive



46 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Key Issues

•

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

4.5   GREEN BAY ROAD (NORTH SECTION)

•

•

Crossing at the Takiff Center with “de facto” bike lanes.

Approaching the Takiff Center crossing from the south on 

Green Bay Road



47CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

"Á

PI
N

E 
C

T

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

B
L

U

E L M
R

ID
G

E
D

H

R
O

C K
G

A

T
E

L
N

COUNTY LINE RD

T IM B E R L N

T U R NB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

E S TA T E D R

G
L A

D
E

R

G
L

E
NY

F
A

I R
L

N

K
O

K
IE

R
ID

G
E

D
R

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
F

I E
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER

Existing Trail

Proposed Sidepath

Existing Bike Lane

Proposed Signed Route

0 0.250.125
Miles

kj kj

PI
N

E 
C

T

M
EA

D
O

W

B

E LM
R

ID
G

E

R O
C

K
G

A
T

E
L

N

T IM B E R L N

U
L

L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

E S TA T E D R

G
L A

D
E

R
D

G
L

O
LD

E
L

M
LN

A
I R

L
N

L A

K
IE

R
ID

G
E

D
R

E A S TW
O

OE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

kj Proposed Intersection Improvement
0 0.250.125

Miles

Proposed Bikeway and Sidewalk Improvements - Green Bay Road North Section

Proposed Intersection Improvements - Green Bay Road North Section



48 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Key Issues

•

•

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

•

4.6   GREEN BAY ROAD (CENTRAL SECTION)

•

Mid-block crossing by Metra station on Green Bay road

Striped “de facto” bike lanes on Green Bay road



49CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

n

"Á

A LLE
Y

R
D

VERNON AVE

GREENW
OO

D AVE

LINCOLN 

AVE

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

RAVINE
GLADE

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E
D

R H O G A R T

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

P
R

A
IR

IE

HAWTHORN AVE

L
L

E
Y

S
T

L
E

N
C

O
E

D
R

SOUTH AVE

D
D

R

PALO
S R

O
D

R
D

ADAMS AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

Widen Sidewalk

Existing Trail

Existing Bike Lane

Proposed Signed Route

0 0.250.125
Miles

kjkjkj

kj
kj

n

"Á

A LLE
Y

R
D

VERNON AVE

GREENW
OO

D AVE

LINCOLN 

AVE

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

RAVINE
GLADE

BEACH RD
B

L
U

F
F

R
D

E
D

R H O G A R T

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN
P

R
A

IR
IE

HAWTHORN AVE

L
L

E
Y

S
T

L
E

N
C

O
E

D
R

SOUTH AVE

D
D

R

PALO
S R

O
D

R
D

ADAMS AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

kj Proposed Intersection Improvement
0 0.250.125

Miles

Proposed Bikeway and Sidewalk Improvements - Green Bay Road Central Section

Proposed Intersection Improvements - Green Bay Road Central Section



50 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Key Issues

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

4.7   GREEN BAY ROAD (SOUTH SECTION)

Bike club on Green Bay Road

Bus shelter on Green Bay Road



51CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

n

n

G
R

O
VE

 ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

LINDEN AVE

HARBOR ST

HAZE T
E

R
R

REDWOOD
LN

JEFFERSON AVE

SCOTT AVE
IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

HAWTH
V

A
L

L
E

Y
S

T

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

MONROE AVE
PALO

S RD
MARY

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

V
E

Existing Trail

Existing Bike Lane

Proposed Signed Route 0 0.250.125
Miles

kjkjkj

kj

kj

kj

n

n

G
R

O
VE

 ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

LINDEN AVE

HARBOR ST

HAZE T
E

R
R

REDWOOD
LN

JEFFERSON AVE

SCOTT AVE
IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

HAWTH

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

MONROE AVE

PALO
S RD

MARY

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

V
E

kj Proposed Intersection Improvement 0 0.250.125
Miles

Proposed Bikeway Improvements - Green Bay Road South Section

Proposed Intersection Improvements - Green Bay Road South Section



52 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4.8   SHERIDAN ROAD

bike lanes along the street and bike intersection 

Key Issues

•

•

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

intersection to create 90 degree angles in the 

•

Bike lane on Sheridan Road



53CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

kj

kj
n

n

Á

"Á

LE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GREENW
O

OD AVE

LINDEN AVE

LINCOLN 

AVE

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

HARBOR ST

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

H O G A R T H

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

ASBURY AVE

R
O

C K
G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

JEFFERSON AVE

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

O
LD

E
L

M
LN

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

O A K K
T

E

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

kj Proposed Intersection Improvement

Install Sidewalk

Existing Trail

Existing Bike Lane

Proposed Sharrow

Proposed Signed Route

0 0.250.125
Miles

Proposed Bikeway, Sidewalk, and Intersection Improvements - Sheridan Road



54 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4.9   LAKE COOK ROAD

Key Issues

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

Pa
th

: N
:\N

O
R

TH
BR

O
O

K\
16

00
24

\G
IS

\E
xh

ib
its

\P
ro

je
ct

 L
oc

at
io

n 
M

ap
.m

xd

PROJECT LOCATION

Voltz Rd

Ravinia
Festival
Grounds

Willowhill
Golf

Course

Sunset
Ridge

Country Club

Skokie
Country

Club

Glencoe
Golf
Club

Lake Shore
Country

Club

Northmoor
Country

Club

Green Acres
Country

Club

Northbrook Court
Shopping CTR

S
kokie R

iver

C
hicago

R
iver N

Branch
W

Fork

C
hicago R

iver

Skokie
Creek

Middle
Fork

N
BC

R
iver

ST43

ST68

£41

§̈¦94

Old Briar Rd

Revere
D

r

Ivy Ln

Rudolph Rd

Braeside Rd

R
ed

 O
ak

 L
n

Rosemary Ln

Gregg Rd

Jeffery C
t

Angle

N
orth

Ln

Erin
Ln

Asto
r P

l

Charal Ln

Old Farm Rd

Ed
gewood

Ln

C
aryn Ter

S
he

ld
on

 L
n

D
ar

yl
 L

n

Sunset Ct

S unset Ln

Turnb e rr
y

Ln

Park Dr

Chestnut Ln
W

hite
h

all Dr

Elder Ln

Carriage Ln

P
op

la
r R

d

Leslee Ln

Seto n Rd

Valley Way

Lewis Ln

Hedge RunFlora Pl

Holly Ct

H
em

lo
ck

 L
n

B
rid

le
w

oo
d

Ln

Sheridan
R

d

Nyo da Pl
Melvin Ln

Marion Ave

Long Mea d ow
R

d

W
in

on
a 

R
d

Chipili Dr

Park Ave

W
oo

dl
a r

k
D

r

Country Ln

Buttonwood Ln
Hickory Ln

A
co

rn
 L

n

Willow Tree Ln
Appletree Ln

South Ave
Elder Ct

Carter Ct

W
en

dy
 D

r

Braeburn R
d

TerraceCt

Westwood Ln

Wood la nd Rd

Delta Rd

Antique Ln

Southgate Dr

Glenoak Ln

Cherokee Rd

Illinois Rd

P
ra

iri
e 

A
ve

Ferndale Ave

Bitters w ee
tD

r

Oakwood Rd

No
rfork Rd

B
al

la
n t

ra
e

D
r

Clarid
ge L n

Sum
m

erf
i e ld Rd

W
ind y Hi ll L

n

M a rcee
L

n

La
w

re
nc

eLn

Ed
ge

b r
oo

k Ln

Maple Row

D
rif

twood Ln

Burr Oak Ln

B
rid

lewood Rd

Stonegate Ter

Blackhawk Rd

Milto
n Ave

Elm Ave

Pleasant Ave

Broadview Ave

Eastwood Ln

B
ria

r 
Ln

M
ay

fa
ir

Ln

O
rc

ha
rd

 L
n

Lamb ert Tree Rd

Sycamore Ln

Rid ge
wood Dr

Sou
th

Ln

H
ighlan

d

P lA
spen

Ln

O
ldHunt Rd

Sunset Dr

Maple Ave

P
ie

rc
e

R
d

S
tra

w

b erry Hill Dr

Oakla
nd Dr

Valley
Rd

Westley Rd

F
ounders

Dr

Bluff St

Lo
ng

m
ea

do
w

 L
n

Morrison Ln

Rosemary Rd

Church
S

t

Li
nc

ol
n w

oo
d

R
d

Williamsburg Dr

Fa
irf

ie
ld

R
d

Cha
pe

l C
t

Sum
ac

R
d

Le
e 

R
d

Barberry
R

d

SunsetR
idge

R
d

Eas twood
R

d

Barnsley
P l

Waterford
L n

M
idw

ay
Rd

C
lave

y Ln

M
a

g nolia Ln

Trails
E d g e Dr

M
id

dle
fork

R
d

W
indyHill D

r

C
ar

ol
Ln O

ld
Elm

Ln

H
iaw

atha
Trl

Ti
m

be
r 

Ln

Lar ksp
urD

r

Oak K no
ll

Te
r

Longaker
R

d

Vo l tz

R
d

B
ra

es
id

e
Ln

La
ke

si
de

 P
l

Timber Hill R d

H
as

ti n

gs A ve

H
oh

lfe
ld

er
 R

d

Henrici D
r

H
ill

si
de

D
r

W
hitfield

R d

Roya l Ri d ge

D
r

D
ell R

d

G
ra

nt
 R

d

R
idge R

d

Clavey Rd

Forestw
ay

D
r

North br ook Ct

Happ
R

d

Dundee Rd

W

Frontage
R

d

Clavey Rd

Lake Cook Rd

Techny Ct

G
reen

B
ay

R
d

Walters Ave

Tower Rd

Le
e 

R
d

S herm
er Rd

Voltz Rd

W
aukegan Rd

Skokie
B

lvd

Techny Rd

Skokie
Valley

Rd

S
un

se
t 

R
id

ge
 R

d

TITLE:

DSGN.

CHKD.
FILE:

DWN.

PROJ. NO.

DATE:

SHEET     1     OF    1

DRAWING NO.

EXH

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

160024

04-11-16

I
0 2,000 4,0001,000

Feet
1 inch = 2,000 feet

SCALE:                     1:24,000
AUTHOR:

Project Location Map
PLOT DATE:              10/7/2016

DWALTERS

VILLAGE OF
NORTHBROOK

CLIENT:

Map of proposed extension of the Skokie Valley Trail. Source: 

Village of Northbrook



55CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

Path to South School



56 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4.10  SIDEWALK NETWORK ON LOCAL ROADS

Key Issues

•

•

•

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

•

•

•



57CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GREEN

GREENW
O

OD AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
OK L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E LM
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A R TH

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T URNB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D
HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

OL D
E

L
M

LN

M
A

Y
F

A
I R

L
N

MONROE AVE

V IN E S T

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

OLD FARM LN

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A F
A

V
E

Average Sidewalk Condition by Block*

0 0.50.25
Miles

Average Sidewalk Condition on Block*
A

B

C

D

F

* Represents the mean score collected on sidewalk segments between 2016 and 2017. Condition data has not been collected 
for all sidewalk segments.

Data Source: Village of Glencoe, IDOT, CMAP, Cook County Forest Preserve District

A

B

C

D

F



58 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4.11   INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ON LOCAL ROADS

Key Issues

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

•

In-road school crossing sign on Vernon

Vernon Avenue bump-out



59CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

kjkjkj
kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kjkjkj

kj

kj

kjkj

kj
kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj

kj
kj

kj

kj

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE

 ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
A Y

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
OO

D AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
O

K L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E L M
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A
R T H

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T U R NB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

O
LD

E
L

M
LN

M
A

Y
F

A
I R

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A
F

A
V

E

0 0.50.25
Miles

kj Proposed Intersection Improvement

Existing Trail

Proposed Intersections for Improvement- Village Wide



60 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4.12 BIKE NETWORK IMPROVEMENTS ON LOCAL ROADS

Key Issues

•

•

•

Recommendations

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Sheridan Road



61CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

"Á

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
VE

 ST

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
A Y

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GR

GREENW
OO

D AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
O

K L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E TR
E

EL N

PI
N

E 
C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

EA
D

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E L M
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A
R T H

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

ASBURY AVE

R O
C K G

A

T
E

L
N

LAKE COOK RD

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T U R NB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D

HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LAKE

O
LD

E
L

M
LN

M
A

Y
F

A
I R

L
N

MONROE AVE

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

T

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFELD

ER
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A
F

A
V

E

0 0.50.25
Miles

Existing Trail

Proposed Trail

Proposed Sidepath

Existing Bike Lane

Proposed Sharrow

Proposed Paved Shoulder

Proposed Signed Route

Proposed Bike Network - Village Wide



62 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4.13   TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS

Key Issues

•

•  The trail is both on- and off-street through the 

•

•

Recommendations

•  

•  

•  

•   Install green bicycle 

•   
feasibility of realigning the trail to the east and 

•  

southeast corners to reduce the crossing 

•  

such as realigning the trail and installing 

•  

•  

•

•

Green Bay Trail at Maple Hill Road



63CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

4.14   COMMUNITY-WIDE WALKING AND BIKING CAMPAIGN

35, Sustainability Task Force and Village can 

counting bikes locked to bike racks and 

Helmet fitting instruction

Bike mechanics lessons



64 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Education Campaign Ideas

What  can the Village and Sustainability 
Task Force do?

What can the District 35 do? What can the Park District do?

Continue to blog and post on 

social media about the benefits 

of walking and biking.

Continue to offer bicycle 

safety training to South School 

students and begin to offer 

walking safety education.

Offer learn to ride classes for 

adults.

Distribute information to 

residents about the importance 

of landscaping maintenance 

and winter sidewalk 

maintenance.

Continue to offer biking safety 

to West School students.

Offer bike maintenance classes 

for people of all ages.

Teach residents about rights 

and responsibilities when 

walking, biking, and driving. 

Themes could include: must 

stop for pedestrians, biking 

with lights at night, bike helmet 

fitting, teaching your children 

walking and biking safety, share 

the trail and road tips.

Teach bike maintenance at 

Central School.

Provide helmet fitting 

information.

Continue to educate residents 

on landscaping maintenance 

issues that impact active 

transportation.

Educate parents about the 

benefits of walking and biking 

to school.

Educate Park District users 

about the benefits of walking 

and biking to park programs.



65CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

Walking and Biking Safety Tips for Parents and their Children

1. Obey all traffic signs and signals.

2. Choose routes that have fewer cars driving at lower speeds. 

3. Look for cars at all driveways and intersections.

4. Where possible, cross at intersections with traffic signals or stop signs. 

5. When crossing, stop at the curb and look for cars in all directions (left, right, left, to the front and behind). 

6. Wait until no traffic is coming and start crossing; keep looking for traffic as you cross the road.

7. Always walk across the road. Do not run.

8. Wear reflective gear if it is dark or conditions limit visibility, such as rain or snow.

9. Talk with your child about what you’re doing and why as you walk.

1.   Wear a helmet. The Village’s ordinances require every person under the age of 16 to wear a helmet to protect from 

injuries during a fall.

2.   Be aware on sidewalks. Children should ride on sidewalks until they gain skills to ride on streets around the age of 12. 

Teach them to be aware of driver blind spots such as shrubs, fences, and buildings and when crossing driveways.

3. Walk your bike in crosswalks: When crossing at a crosswalk, children should dismount and walk their bike.

4.   Stop first and look. Teach children to look left, right, and left again for approaching traffic. Emphasize that they have 

to turn their head when looking for traffic.

5.   Ride in the direction of traffic. Riding against the flow of traffic on a street or pathway is a major contributing cause of 

bicycle crashes for children.

6.   Ride in a straight line. Teach your children not to swerve or weave in and out of parked cars when riding on streets.

7.   Buy the right size bike. Your child should be able to stand over the top bar of the bike with their feet flat on the ground 

with an inch or two of clearance over the top bar.

8. Check their bike frequently. Inspect your child’s bike and perform regular “quick checks.” 

1.   Have limited judgment, making it hard for them to know 

where or when it is safe to cross the road.

2. Cannot gauge the speed of oncoming traffic.

3. Can be impulsive and lose concentration easily.

4.   Have a hard time staying focused on one task, such as 

crossing the road.

1.   Need supervision as they learn more complicated safety 

skills.

2.   Can begin to identify safe crossing sites with help and 

practice.

3.   Can begin to learn how to identify traffic and stay 

focused while crossing the street with help and 

practice.

1.    Need specific instruction and modeling as they learn 

more complicated safety skills.

2.   Can identify safe crossing sites with help and practice.

3.   With help and practice, can identify traffic and stay 

focused while crossing the street.



66 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Encouragement Campaign Ideas

What  can the Village and Sustainability 
Task Force do?

What can the District 35 do? What can the Park District do?

Continue to partner with 

community agencies and 

groups on special events and 

activities.

Continue to host Bike Safety 

Rodeo and Summer Safety.

Continue to host Bike Safety 

Rodeo

Co-host a community-wide 

walking and biking challenge, 

offer rewards or incentives 

to encourage participation. 

Participants can track miles 

through an app, get stamps for 

walking/biking to- and from- an 

event or local business.

Co-host a community-wide 

walking and biking challenge, 

and offer rewards or incentives 

to encourage participation. 

Participants can track miles 

through an app, get stamps 

for walking/biking to/from and 

event or local business.

Co-host a community-wide 

walking and biking challenge, 

offer rewards or incentives 

to encourage participation. 

Participants can track miles 

through an app, get stamps for 

walking/biking to and from an 

event or local business.

Encourage residents to walk/

bike to-from events held 

throughout the year.

Encourage students/parents to 

participate in walk/bike to-from 

events held throughout the 

year.

Encourage Park District visitors 

to participate in walk/bike to-

from events held throughout 

the year. E.g., bike to the beach, 

walk/bike to camp.

Update school and park 

walking route maps as 

infrastructure is improved.

Distribute school walking route 

maps to all parents at the 

beginning of each school year. 

Distribute park walking route 

maps to all families enrolled in 

Park District activities and to 

parents of preschoolers at the 

Takiff Center. 



67CHAPTER 4  |  RECOMMENDATIONS

n

n

n

n

n

n

"Á

"Á

èé

èé

èé

èé

èé èé

ÅÆÇ

ÅÆÇ

ÅÆÇ

ÅÆÇ
ÅÆÇ
ÅÆÇ

VA LLE
Y

R
D

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T

O
L D

G
R E

E
N

B
AY

R
D

R
A

N
D

O
L

P
H

S
T

VERNON AVE

GREEN

GREENW
OO

D AVEE
D

G
E

B
R

O
O

K L N

LINDEN AVE

DUNDEE RD

LINCOLN 

AVE

TOWER RD

P IN E T R
E

EL N

PI
N

E
 C

T

L
O

N
G

W
O

O
D

A
V

E

F
O

R
E

S
T

W
A

Y
D

R

RAVINE
GLADE

EDENS EXPW
Y

HARBOR ST

LO
N

G
 M

E
AD

O
W

BEACH RD

B
L

U
F

F
R

D

E L M
R

ID
G

E
D

R H O G A
R

T H

L N

HAZEL AVE

L A
K E

S
ID

E
T

E
R

R

ASBURY AVE

R
O

C K
G

A

T
E

L
N

REDWOOD
LN

T IM B E R L N

CHATFIELD RD

JEFFERSON AVE

T U R NB
U

L
L

W O
O

D

WESTLEY RD

SCOTT AVE

E S TA T E D R

APPLETREE
LN

PARK AVE

DENNIS LN

G
L A

D
E

R
D

TOWER
RD FP

IVY LN

E
U

C
L

ID
A

V
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
R

D
HAWTHORN AVE

V
A

L
L

E
Y

S
T

G
L

E
N

C
O

E
D

R

G
L E

N

W
O O D A V E

SOUTH AVE

C O U N TR Y L N

LA
KE

O
LD

E
L

M
LN

M
A

Y
F

A
I R

L
N

MONROE AVE

V T

L A K E W O
O

D
D

R

PALO
S RD

SYCAMORE LN

EDGEWOOD LN

S
K

O
K

IE
R

ID
G

E
D

R

MARY

E A S TW
O

O
D

R
D

OAKDALE AVE

ADAMS AVE

F
A

IR
F

IE
L

D
R

D

H
O

H
LFE

LD
E

R
 R

D

DREXEL AVE

MADISON AVE

G

R
E E

N
L E

A
F

A
V

E

0 0.50.25
Miles

ÅÆÇ Crossing Guard

èé TrafficSignal

4-Way Stop Sign

3-Way Stop Sign

2-Way Stop Sign

1-Way Stop Sign

Primary Route

Secondary Route

Off-Street Path

¯

Suggested School and Park Walking Routes for Glencoe



68 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Which strategies 
can be used to fund 
and prioritize active 
transportation?

IMPLEMENTATION

5



69CHAPTER 4  |  IMPLEMENTATION

5.1   OVERVIEW

Best Practices in Implementation

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•  Train Sustainability Task Force, staff and 



70 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

•

•

•

Seek out grant funding

• 

• This 

• 

• The 



71CHAPTER 4  |  IMPLEMENTATION

Federal, State, and Regional Grants

Application 

Process 

Transportation 

Enhancements 

(ITEP) 

Safe Routes to 

School (SRTS)

Highway Safety 

Improvement 

Program (HSIP)

Section 402- State 

and Community 

Highway Safety Grant 

Program

Program Purpose To foster 

cultural, historic, 

aesthetic and 

environmental 

aspects of our 

transportation 

infrastructure.

To enable and 

encourage children 

to walk and bike to 

school through the 

5 Es.

To fund highway 

infrastructure safety 

projects aimed at 

reducing fatalities and 

serious injuries.

To create safety 

programs aimed 

at reducing traffic 

crashes.

Program 

Administrator

IDOT IDOT IDOT Division of Traffic 

Safety

IDOT Division of Traffic 

Safety

Eligible Projects Bike/ped facilities, 

safety education 

programs and 

encouragement 

incentives. 

Bike/ped facilities, 

safety education 

programs and 

encouragement 

incentives. 

Bike lanes, paved 

shoulders, Trail/

Highway intersection 

improvements, 

crosswalks, signal 

improvement, and 

curb cuts as well as 

safety education and 

awareness programs.

Enforcement 

campaigns to improve 

bike/ped safety, 

helmet promotion, 

educational materials, 

and training. 

Key Project 

Requirements

Must relate 

to surface 

transportation.

Can only be spent 

within 1 ½ miles of a 

school. 

Must address goals 

written in State 

Highway Safety Plan.

Must address goals 

written in State 

Highway Safety Plan.

Application 

Process 

Next anticipated 

call for projects 

Spring 2018.

Irregular schedule at 

call of IDOT.

Generally there is an 

annual update to the 

Plan at call of IDOT 

Division of Traffic 

Safety.

Generally each spring 

at call of IDOT Division 

of Traffic Safety.

Local Match 

Required

Typically 20% 20% 10% No match required

Eligible Applicants Local 

governments

Any governmental 

entity

Any governmental 

entity or non-profit

Any governmental 

entity or non-profit



72 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Federal, State, and Regional Grants

Application 

Process 

Recreational Trails Program 

(RTP)

Congestion Mitigation and 

Air Quality (CAMQ)

Surface Transportation 

Block Group Set Aside 

(formerly TAP)

Program 

Purpose

To develop and maintain 

recreational trails and facilities 

for both motorized and non-

motorized users.

To improve air quality and 

reduce traffic congestion in 

areas that do not meet air 

quality standards.

To support non-motorized 

modes of transportation.

Program 

Administrator

IDNR CMAP CMAP

Eligible 

Projects

Trails, Trail/Highway intersection 

improvements, trailheads, 

educational materials, and 

training.

Bike/ped facilities, safety 

education programs and 

encouragement incentives, 

active transportation plans, 

bike/ped maps, bike/ped 

coordinator position.  

Bicycle and pedestrian 

facilities, streetscaping

Key Project 

Requirements

30% allocated to non-motorized 

trail project, 30% for motorized, 

40% for diversity of trail use.

1) Must be spent in non-

attainment and maintenance 

areas. 2) Will be evaluated 

on air quality emissions.

1) Phase I engineering 

must be nearly complete. 

2) Project must be included 

in a local, sub-regional 

or regional plan that was 

formally adopted.

Application 

Process 

Irregular schedules at call of 

Illinois Department of Natural 

Resources.

Generally, an annual call for 

proposals.

Generally, an annual call for 

proposals in tandem with 

CMAQ announcement.

Local Match 

Required

Typically 20%, some 50% Typically 20% 20%

Eligible 

Applicants

Any governmental entity or non-

profit

Local or state governmental 

agencies 

Local governments



73CHAPTER 4  |  IMPLEMENTATION

Infrastructure Implementation Matrix

5.2   INFRASTRUCTURE IMPLEMENTATION

Destination: West School

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Corridor Name/ 

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Dundee Road Fill in sidewalk gaps Medium District 35

Dundee Road Mark crosswalks on side streets Low

Dundee Road Create stand back areas at Hohlfelder 

Road

Low District 35

Dundee Road Install school zone pavement markings Low District 35

Dundee Road Conduct traffic study for additional 

pedestrian crossing

Low

Dundee Road Install “sharrows” Medium

Dundee Road Partner with IDOT west of Hohlfelder Road N/A IDOT



74 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Infrastructure Implementation Matrix, continued

Destination: North Branch Trail

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Forestway Drive Improve trail between Little House of 

Glencoe and Forestway Drive and improve 

crossing at Forestway Drive

Medium Cook County Forest 

Preserve District, 

IDOT

Forestway Drive Fill in sidewalk gaps Medium IDOT, abutters

Forestway Drive Install warning signs on Skokie Country 

Club path

Low Skokie Country Club

Forestway Drive Improve gravel shoulders High IDOT

Forestway Drive Improve trail between Little House of 

Glencoe and Forestway Drive and improve 

crossing at Forestway Drive

Medium Cook County Forest 

Preserve District, 

IDOT

Forestway Drive Fill in sidewalk gaps Medium IDOT, abutters

Forestway Drive Install warning signs on Skokie Country 

Club path

Low Skokie Country Club

Forestway Drive Improve gravel shoulders High IDOT

Forestway Drive Improve trail between Little House of 

Glencoe and Forestway Drive and improve 

crossing at Forestway Drive

Medium Cook County Forest 

Preserve District, 

IDOT

Forestway Drive Fill in sidewalk gaps Medium IDOT, abutters

Forestway Drive Install warning signs on Skokie Country 

Club path

Low Skokie Country Club

Forestway Drive Improve gravel shoulders High IDOT

Destination: Takiff Center

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Green Bay Road Conduct traffic study on Takiff Center 

crossing

Low Glencoe Park District

Green Bay Road Remove NW corner curb ramps at Takiff Low Glencoe Park District

Green Bay Road Re-grade hill at Takiff Center Low Glencoe Park District



75CHAPTER 4  |  IMPLEMENTATION

Infrastructure Implementation Matrix, continued

Destination: Green Bay Trail

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Trail Improvements Install consistent informational and 

wayfinding signage on Green Bay Trail

Low Glencoe Park District

Trail Improvements Install “sharrows” on on-street segments 

(near-term) and explore feasibility of 

creating an entirely off-street trail (long- 

term)

Low - High

Trail Improvements Reapply limestone screening on the Green 

Bay Trail north of Maple Hill Road

Medium

Trail Improvements Install bicycle crosswalks, ladder 

crosswalks, and trail crossing signs at all 

grade crossings along the Green Bay Trail

Medium

Trail Improvements Explore feasibility of realigning the Green 

Bay Trail at Maple Hill Road to the east

High

Trail Improvements Install bump-outs on the northeast and 

southeast corners of the Green Bay Trail 

and Park Avenue

Medium

Trail Improvements Implement Toole Design Study 

recommendations at Green Bay Trail and 

Hazel Avenue

High

Trail Improvements Soften the angle of the sidewalk that 

connects to the Green Bay Trail on the 

southwest corner of South Avenue

Low

Trail Improvements Improve trail access points at Wentworth 

and Woodlawn Avenues

Low

Trail Improvements Explore options for improving lighting on 

Green Bay Trail at night

TBD

Trail Improvements Coordinate with Glencoe Park District on 

Linear Park.

High Glencoe Park District 

(lead agency)

Lake Cook Road Install wayfinding signage Low Highland Park, Cook 

County

Lake Cook Road Study ways to connect to the Des Plaines 

River Trail

Medium Cook County, 

Highland Park, 

Northbrook



76 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Infrastructure Implementation Matrix, continued

Destination: Downtown Glencoe

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Green Bay Road Widen sidewalk between Tudor Court and 

Hazel Avenue

Medium Glencoe Chamber of 

Commerce

Green Bay Road Improve Metra Crossing with trimming and 

RRFB

Low

Destination: South School

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Green Bay Road Install school crossing pavement markings 

at South Avenue

Low District 35

Green Bay Road Make pedestrian and bicycle crossing 

improvements at Harbor Street (loop 

detectors, crosswalk, widen stand back 

area)

Medium

General Improvements: Prioritize areas around schools, parks, and downtown Glencoe

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Sidewalks on Local 

Roads

Continue to work with neighborhoods that want 

sidewalks

TBD

Sidewalks on Local 

Roads

Continue to fund sidewalk replacement TBD

Sidewalks on Local 

Roads

Continue to educate residents on landscaping 

encroachment

N/A

Sidewalks on Local 

Roads

Evaluate options for a new sidewalk shoveling 

policy

N/A

Sidewalks on Local 

Roads

Consider expanding the CIP to fund additional 

sidewalk repairs each year

TBD

Sidewalks on Local 

Roads

Review curb ramp placements that have no 

functional receiving curb ramp on the other side 

of the street

Low

Intersections on 

Local Roads

Develop standards for pavement markings and 

signage

N/A

Intersections on 

Local Roads

Identify crossing or traffic calming improvements 

for Vernon at Hazel, Park, Madison, Monroe, and 

Jefferson

Low - High

Intersections on 

Local Roads

Move crosswalk at Village Court and Hazel Low



77CHAPTER 4  |  IMPLEMENTATION

General Improvements: Prioritize areas around schools, parks, and downtown Glencoe

Corridor Name/

Category

Recommendation Cost Coordinating 

Partners

Bike Network 

Improvements on 

Local Roads

"Install “sharrows” with the option to include 

bike boulevard improvements on Vernon Avenue, 

South Avenue, Park Avenue, Hohlfelder Road, 

Bluff Street, 

Sunset Lane, Woodlawn Avenue, Maple Hill Road 

and Westley Road"

Medium - High

Bike Network 

Improvements on 

Local Roads

Install wayfinding signage on Vernon Avenue, 

South Avenue, Park Avenue, Hohlfelder Road, 

Bluff Street, Sunset Lane, Woodlawn Avenue, 

Maple Hill Road, Westley Road, Old Green Bay 

Road, Scott Avenue, South Avenue and Woodlawn 

Avenue

Low

Bike Network 

Improvements on 

Local Roads

"Install additional bike parking at the Glencoe 

Library, near Grand Foods, at the Metra Station, 

near the Glencoe Post Office, near Park 

and Vernon Avenues, at the Takiff Center, at 

Walgreen’s, at the 

Lakefront Park and upgrade the bike racks at 

South School. Educate residents on preventing 

bicycle thefts."

Low Glencoe Park 

District, District 35, 

Glencoe Chamber of 

Commerce

Bike Network 

Improvements on 

Local Roads

Establish a system for residents to report areas 

that need bike rack to be installed or improved

Low Glencoe Park 

District, District 35, 

Glencoe Chamber of 

Commerce

Sheridan Road Partner with private landowners to install 

sidewalks

High

Sheridan Road Install countdown signal at Park Avenue signal Medium

Sheridan Road Improve intersection at south with green paint or 

re-aligning geometry

Low - High

Sheridan Road Partner with private landowners to install 

sidewalks

High

Sheridan Road Install countdown signal at Park Avenue signal Medium

Sheridan Road Improve intersection at south with green paint or 

re-aligning geometry

Low - High

Green Bay Road Improve crossing at Linden Avenue with refuge 

island, crosswalk, and RRFB

Medium - High Glencoe Chamber of 

Commerce

Green Bay Road Trim back landscaping at Linden Avenue and 

Green Bay

Low

Infrastructure Implementation Matrix, continued



78 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Walking & Biking Campaign Implementation Matrix

Step Agency Timeline

Establish a coordinating committee 

across all agencies

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 35

Month 1-2

Develop an approach for collecting 

baseline data

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Month 1-2

Identify additional partners to 

include in campaign initiatives

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Month 1-2

Collect baseline data Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Months 3-6

Identify campaign branding, 

messaging, and logo

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Months 3-6

Create schedule of events for 

campaign to target

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Months 3-6

Research and identify educational 

materials to use in conjunction with 

the campaign

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Months 3-6

Purchase collateral materials and 

giveaways 

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Months 3-6

Launch Campaign Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Month 7

Track Campaign Progress through 

surveys, counts, and other data 

collection methodologies developed 

in months 3-6.

Village, Sustainability Task Force, 

Glencoe Park District, School 

District 3

Months 7+

5.3   WALKING & BIKING CAMPAIGN IMPLEMENTATION



79RESOURCES

RESOURCES



80 GLENCOE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Design Guidance

Facilities, 4th Edition

 

Professionals

Edition

Design Manual

for Planning 



81RESOURCES

Education and Encouragement Resources

Professionals



I M P R O V I N G  O P T I O N S  F O R  WA L K I N G ,  B I K I N G ,  A N D  T R A N S I T  A C C E S S



��������	
��

�����������������������������������
�� !"� �#$%&�'()*%("*



��������	
���	�
�������
������	�������������
�������������� !�" #��$%��&'"(�� !�" #���)*!�' �'+ , �-�.'!(�/0"#��'�1�2 ,,'3��045# ',!�#'6���03����"��0�
#"�'���'�,0�37��"6�8 ! 0��40"� �#"�'! �3������*6+�"�04�,0#',��" 9!��'(���8 '�:',( �3�'�1�+ ( �3;�.� !�
9,'��!*66'" <�!�����8 ! 0���!�"'��3 �!��30',!�'�1�9" 0" � �!�0*�, ��1�+-�����'3��# �!�'�1�+-�"�! 1���!�
��'��9"08 1�1�4��1+'#(�1*" �3�����9,'�� �3�9"0#�!!;����!�0*,1�+��*!�1�'!�'�3* 1 �3�10#*6�����0�
 69,�6����#�'�3�!� ��������'"7�'�1�,0�37��"6;�.�'�(�-0*��0�����40,,0: �3�9�09,��:�0�80,*����"�1�0��
����9,'��'!�!���" �3�#066 �����6�6+�"!�'�1��0�����=,��#0��&'"(�� !�" #���� !�" #��$%�'�1�2 ,,'3��04�
=,��#0��>0'"1!�40"�+" �3 �3��� !�9"0?�#���0�4"* � 0�@�

ABCDEFGHIJKHDLM

�N�O���P������O��
���
Q#� 8��."'�!90"�'� 0��Q,, '�#�� !�'�#0', � 0��04�9�09,��:�0�:'���!'4�"����',�� �"�'�1�60"���R* �'+,��
�"'�!90"�'� 0��#�0 #�!;�S����8 ! 0��:',('+,��#066*� � �!�����:0"(!�04��"' ,!�'�1�0���"��-9�!�04�+ (�:'-!��
"�, '+,���"'�! ��'�1�!'4��'�1��'!-�+ ( �3;�T*"�!�'44� �#,*1�!��9,'�� �3�'�1�90, #-��U9�"�!�:�0�1�8�,09�1�6'�-�
04�����+�!��9"'#� #��9"03"'6!�'�1�"�#066��1'� 0�!� �#,*1�1� ���� !�9,'�;

2 ,,'3��04�=,��#0��V�9"�!���'� 8�!

WXYZ�[Y\]Ẑ_�̀YZZ]ab�c]d]ab\

Q1'6�e',,��f'�'3�6����Q�',-!�

gdd]�[bhZb\_�̀YZZ]ab�idaYdbb\

V #�'"1�S� ��"����9*�-�j� �4�04�&0, #�

� !�" #��$%�V�9"�!���'� 8�!

j'���" ���S'�3��)*9�" ����1���

�";��'8 1�V0�3�-��&" �# 9',��S�!��)#�00,

=,��#0��&'"(�� !�" #��V�9"�!���'� 8�!

k !'�>"00(!��&"�! 1���

l0!��k*��0���j066 !! 0��"

mYh'�)��99'"1��nU�#*� 8��� "�#�0"

>0++-�j0,, �!��� "�#�0"�04�V�#"�'� 0�o/'# , � �!

=,��#0��)*!�' �'+ , �-�.'!(�/0"#��
V�9"�!���'� 8�!

n,!'+p�)#� 66�,9��� �#(�8'��1�"�T-��

qrstt�W]uY]v

k'""-�V� ,,-

V�! 1���!

f'" !'�> �3�'6

f0,,-�> �3�'6

k !'�)',<6'��w',!0�"�9"�!��� �3�� !�" #��$%x

V0+�"��>"� !+,'��

e'"" ��e*3��!

>'"+�&'1 '(

j08�"�9�0�0!�#0*"��!-�04�2 ,,'3��04�=,��#0�



���������	
�����
��

������������� �

����������� !"#$�%&'()*+&!'!"+(�,'!!$&)�-

��.��/")"+(� 0

��1���23'(("(4�2&+ $))�5�23'(�6#$&#"$7�8

9:�;���<�=��������;� >

.�����?$)!"('!"+()��� @

.�.���A"B$7'3C)� DE

.�1���,F3!"GH)$�%&'"3)I�2'!�)I�� �
5�J"C$7'�)� DK

.�L���M(!$&)$ !"+()� DN

.�O�����'!�2$+*3$�%+3B�H)P�� �
�'3C"(4�5�J"C"(4�!+�2'&C)� D0

QR��SSR��T����;� � � UV

1�����WBF '!"+(�M("!"'!"#$)� KD

1�.��W( +F&'4$X$(!�M("!"'!"#$)� KK

1�1���M(Y&')!&F !F&$�Z$ +XX$(B'!"+()�KN

[\]̂_̀�abcdefgb]c]̂gd�hicd

�SjkRSR��T������ � � lU

L����J$)!�2&' !" $)�"(�MX*3$X$(!'!"+(�mm

L�.���M(Y&')!&F !F&$�MX*3$X$(!'!"+(� m0

L�1����'3C"(4�5�J"C"(4�� �
n'X*'"4(�MX*3$X$(!'!"+(� ND

QR;����R;�� � � � �l



� ��������	�
����
	����
	
������	�

����������������������

������������ ��!"�#� ��!�

������$����$%������%�

�������&��'���&�������(�

)$%���������'������&���

*������+����� �,

-./01234/-1.



��������	
		�		����������

��������������	
�������������������
�

������������������������������������������������������ ������!�"����#�$������������������������"��
%��%"����������%������&�"'������$���'���������������$��"(���������)�*(������������#����$����#�����"��
��$�&�"'�+�����������������$��������+��������������������������������&�"'������$���'�������%�����
�����"�+�%��'�+����������$�&��')�,������������(����"��+������"���$���!���������"�����-���������������
��&�"'��"�+���'���"����������(+�&�����."�������������"� ������������%"������������#������%"��)

/��!�$������#������������%��'����������%����������%������������"$�����������!����$���#����������()�
,����%"����$$���������"������&�(������$$�����������������&�"'������$���'�������%��'����$�����������
�����"���������$�����!����������$�����&�(�%��%"�����������������."�����)�

,���."������0���������"��(�,��'�1����+�2��������34+�."������/��'�2����������$�5�""�����#�."������
������� ��������%���������#�$�������������������(������%������������!�������%�����������$�����
����-���������������$���!�$)�,����%"���������� ����������"�����"���$��(������#�����������$����������
��$���������(�����������$�%��!�$�����#����&��'�#�����!���������#��&��$)�6������������$������
��������(����&��$����#�����������"������#�."���������#������������!����$����#����!�")



� ��������	�
����
	����
	
������	�

����������

����������� ��!"��
#$�%��&�"& ��"'��  �
���(��%����!")%���*�
+"�#� ,���*�-�,��+"��+(�
���.������+��(���+(�
(+%��+(���*�(�*�#� ,(�
�%��&�!,�*�#�+$�
!$� *%�����!$�*�.�"��
%")+��+"�(!$"" (���*�
&�%,(���+(�*"#�+"#��
-)(+ �(�#�+$��!+�/�+.�
�(�&�"& ��($"&0�
��+���*� ����%���+(�
 �,�'%"�+�-�,��%�!,(�
�%��')  �"��()���%�
*�.(���+(�+%�� (�-)%(+�
#�+$�#� ,�%(0�%)���%(�
��*�-�,�%(�"'��  ����(�
��*��-� �+��(�

1233245

6789:;<�7;=�>:9:;<�7?@�A@78BAC�7;=�DE;�FG=@H�
GD�B?7;HIG?B7B:G;�DG?�I@GI8@�GD�788�7<@HJ�>EB�
K8@;LG@�?@H:=@;BH�=G�;GB�C@B�A7M@�LGFI8@B@�
7LL@HH�BG�788�7LB:M@�B?7;HIG?B7B:G;�GIB:G;HN�OC�
PG?9:;<�BG<@BA@?�BG�>E:8=�7�LG;H:HB@;B�;@BPG?9�
GD�H:=@P789HJ�>:9@�D7L:8:B:@HJ�H7D@�L?GHH:;<H�
7;=�:;L?@7H:;<�7P7?@;@HH�GD�B?7;HIG?B7B:G;�
GIB:G;HJ�BA@�Q:HB?:LB�RSJ�K8@;LG@�T7?9�Q:HB?:LBJ�
UVWXYZ[Y\Z]ZX̂�_YẀ�abcde�Y[f�Xge�hZ]]Yie�bj�
K8@;LG@�L7;�I?GM:=@�BA@�BGG8H�;@L@HH7?C�BG�?@7LA�
GE?�M:H:G;�7;=�=@?:M@�BA@�F7;C�>@;@kBH�GD�7�
P789:;<�7;=�>:9:;<�D?:@;=8C�LGFFE;:BCN�lA@H@�
:;L8E=@m

n��o�>@BB@?�pE78:BC�GD�8:D@�

n��qFI?GM@=�IE>8:L�A@78BA�

n��r@=EL@=�;@<7B:M@�:FI7LBH�BG�BA@�@;M:?G;F@;B

n��s@P�GIIG?BE;:B:@H�DG?�@LG;GF:L�=@M@8GIF@;B

tuv2453�wx�w2yy�z{|x

lA@�<G78�GD�BA:H�I87;�:H�BG�L@F@;B�I7?B;@?HA:IH�
7L?GHH�8GL78�:;HB:BEB:G;H�BG�L?@7B@�7;�@;M:?G;F@;B�
7;=�HCHB@FH�BA7B�HEIIG?B�7;=�@;LGE?7<@�7LB:M@�
B?7;HIG?B7B:G;�EH@�BG�HLAGG8HJ�I7?9H�7;=�GBA@?�
K8@;LG@�=@HB:;7B:G;HN�lA:H�I87;�GEB8:;@H�7�
LGFI?@A@;H:M@�8:HB�GD�7LB:G;H�BG�7BB7:;�BA@�M:H:G;�
7;=�F:HH:G;�lA@�7LB:G;H�8:HB@=�:;�BA:H�I87;�7?@�
<?GEI@=�:;BG�BA@�DG88GP:;<�L7B@<G?:@Hm

n��OE:8=�7�LGFI?@A@;H:M@�;@BPG?9�GD�LGFDG?B7>8@�
H:=@P789H�:;�<GG=�?@I7:?

n��}?@7B@�7�;@BPG?9�GD�>:9@P7CH�BA7B�LG;;@LB�BG�
]bdY]�feWXZ[YXZb[W�Y[f�]Z[̀�Xb�Xge�[eZig\bcZ[i�
LGFFE;:B:@H�

n��}?@7B@�H7D@�L?GHH:;<H�DG?�I@=@HB?:7;H�7;=�
d̂d]ZWXW

n��Q@M@8GI�7�LGFFE;:BC~P:=@�L7FI7:<;�BG�
I?GFGB@�P789:;<�7;=�>:9:;<

�23245



��������	
		�		����������

���	��������	�������	�	����	� �� ��!

"#$	%&$$'()*	+,--(&&$$	-$&	
%$.$)	&(-$%	&,	/$0()$	*,12%	
1)/	3'(,'(&($%	1)/	'$.($4	
'$+,--$)/1&(,)%5	

6$$	7#13&$'	85

�9��	:;

�� ��!	�<��9���	
���=�9����

"#$	3',>$+&	&$1-	,?%$'.$/	1''(.12	
1&	&#$	"1@(00	7$)&$'A	&,B'$/	&#$	
*',B)/%	1)/	.(%(&$/	&#$	,&#$'	
31'@%	&,	(/$)&(0C	&'1)%3,'&1&(,)	
,33,'&B)(&($%	1)/	+#122$)*$%5	
6$$	7#13&$'	D	0,'	0()/()*%5

�9��	E;

������	9F�	
��GGH��9I

�9��	J;	

=� ����	
����GG��=�9����

�9��	K;

�����9�	�G���G��9

�9��	L;

M��G	�9������	
��GG�99��

N2$)+,$	+,--B)(&C	-$-?$'%	
()0,'-$/	'$+,--$)/1&(,)%	
,)2()$	1)/	1&	3B?2(+	$.$)&%5	

6$$	7#13&$'	D5

"#$	3',>$+&	&$1-	B%$/	&#$	/1&1	
*1&#$'$/	&,	1//'$%%	-1)C	,0	&#$	
31'@	/(%&'(+&O%	+#122$)*$%	4#(2$	
4,'@()*	4(&#()	3#C%(+12	1)/	
>B'(%/(+&(,)12	+,)%&'1()&%5	

6$$	7#13&$'	P5	

Q,22,4()*	+,--B)(&C	'$.($4	1)/	
?,1'/	1/,3&(,)A	&#$	321)	4(22	2(.$	
,)	1%	&#$	31'&)$'%	(-32$-$)&	(&5	

6$$	7#13&$'	R5

STUVW	XY	Z	Y[\\Z]̂	V_	̀aT	ỲTbY	̀ZcTd	e[]Xdf	̀aT	bUZddXdf	b]VgTYYh	̀aT	b[]bVYT	V_	TZga	ỲTb	Zde	̀aT	
WẐ	X̀	]TUZ̀TY	̀V	̀aT	gaZb̀T]Y	Xd	̀aXY	bUZdi



� ��������	�
����
	����
	
������	�

�������������������������

������������������ ��!�

��!����"�#$

%&'()'*+�

,-*.')'-*(



��������	
		�		������	��������

��������	��	������	�������� 	�!	���	"�!�	�#���	����!$��������	��%��!��������&	#��	��	�!	�'!�	�#���	
(�����	�	���)	��*&	)��!�� 	��)	)�!���#�����	�%	)�!��������!	�(��	���	����!!�#'�+	,����)�)	�(��	�(�	
#��'�	�����������	�!	-�'.���	��)	#�.���	%����)' &	��!�	$��$'�	���	-�''���	��	-�'.	���/(�'%	��'�	��	�	
)�!��������	��)	��� 	���	-�''���	��	-�'.	���/��'�	��	�#���	01/������!	��)	21/������!	��!$������' +	
,��$'�	���	-�''���	��	#�.�	%���(��&	�#���	�(���/��'�!	��	21/������!+	3'�����	�'���) 	(�!	�	!�����	
%���)�����	��	-��.	-��(4

3'�����	�!	(���	��	25	$��.!	�(��	���	)����)	�����)	�(�	�������� 	-��(	�	������ 	�%	$����������	
��)	��%��!��������+	6���	�(��	789	�%	3'�����	��!�)���!	'���	-��(��	:	��'�	�%	�	$��.+	;(�	;�.�%%	
������&	3'�����<!	����	$��.	)�!�����	#��')���&	�!	������'' 	'�����)&	#��	�!	�(�''������	��	����!!	���	
-�'.���	��)	#�.���	)��	��	��!	$��*���� 	��	3����	=� 	>��)	��)	�(�	?,/@	���'���)	����.!+

ABC	DEFGHIJGHKIF

LMNOPQ	LRSPT	NUV	WRTXNUYPT	XZ	[PTRVPUYPT	\MZS	]PQPYX	̂QPUYZP	_NM̀T

a�.�%����	,��.	b������	c��� ;�.�%%	������	b������	c���

d���!	,��.	b������	c���

e	fghijkle	mnio

kp	fghijq	mnio

rp	fghijs	mnio

qp	fghijt	mnio

up	fghijkv	mnio

wxyo	z{g|	up	fghijkv	mnio

} ~��}���
�����

�����	��	��	�������	����	����	� 	¡¢£���¤���	
¥��	����	���	¦���	����	� 	§	���¤���	¥��	����̈

©ª«¬®̄	ª®°	±¬®̄	²³́ª®µ¶	́·̧¹º·»	
°¶³́®ª́·®³	®	»®¼́¶³



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

������	�������	���	�	������	������ 	�!	�"#��#��	
�#$���� �%	��&�	#�	���	������ 	���	�����#'��(	
#)&���	��� #��	��$	*#�(��#��	��#&�	��	&�� �+

,"#��#��	-#$���� �

���	.#�����	)�#���#��	/01)#���	�!	�#$���� �+	
�����	���	#����)#�����	��&�	����������	���	
.#�����%	#����$#��	,�)	2#$��	3�#'�%	- � #�	2#$��	
3�#'�%	.����(	2��$%	-��������	3�#'�%	4� 	3�#'�%	
5���!��$��	2��$%	6� �	7�� 	2��$%	4�$	,�)	
6���%	8�������(	3�#'�%	7�����(	6���	��$	&����	
�!	-���#$��	2��$%	�����	9�(	2��$%	3��$��	
2��$	��$	���'�	-�����+	���	&�� �	���	#)&����$	
*(	�#)#��$	�#$���� 	�������#'#�(%	���	&�� 	��	
�����	9�(	2��$	��$	-����	:'�	���	��	�#$���� 	
��	#��	�����	�#$�	��$	����������$	�#$���� �	��	
3��$��	)� �	&��&��	���'��#��	��	;#����	<�� 	
!��)	���	����	)���	�����	���	������	��#��+

-#$���� 	7��$#�#��	:�����)���

=�	�$$#�#��	��	#��	�#$���� 	#�'�����(%	�������	
���	�	$���*���	�!	�#$���� 	���$#�#���	����	
#����$��	���)����	#�	���$	�!	�&$��#��+	���	
.#�����	����	)�#���#��	�	&�����	!��	���#$����	��	
��&���	��������	�*���	�#$���� �%	��#��	!��$	#��	
#�'�����(+	���	#�'�����(	#����$��	)��(	�������	
!��	�#$���� 	��&����)���%	����	��	����$#��	
�����%	��� 	�!	:3:	��)&�%	��#&	��>��$�%	���� �%	
�&��$�$	*(	����	�����	��$	���)*�#��	��������+	
,���	��&����$	#����	#�	'#�����(	#��&����$	��$	#�	
�'������$	��	������	���	��'��	�!	��>��$+

-#$���� 	2�&����)���

���	.#�����	�#��	��&����	?0%000	�@����	!���	�!	
�#$���� 	��#�	(���	�������	#��	?0AB	7�))��#�(	
=)&��'�)���	<�����)	C7=<D	��$	�#)�	��	��&����	
�	&���������	�!	#��	#�'�����(	����	(���+	=�	
�$$#�#��	��	.#�����1!��$�$	�#$���� 	��&����)���%	
���#$����	)�(	����	�&�	��	��&����	�	�#$���� 	
�$E�����	��	���#�	���	&��&���(	��	����+	8#����(%	
�������F�	?0AB	7=<	���������	G/H%000	��	�������	
*�#� 	&�'���	��	<�� 	:'����	*������	�����	9�(	
2��$	��$	.�����	:'����+

IJI	KLMNOPQRK

STUVWXYX	Z[\X]̂ _̀	TU	âẀ	bcXUdX	][Ye	WXf_̂VX\	ZXghXUYZ

iX]XW	jW[V̀	Z[\X]̂ _̀	TU	kd\TW	STdWY

l[\X]̂ _̀	XU\Z	TU	mWTcX	lYWXXY



���������	
		�		������	��������

��������	�������

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 
� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 
� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

!"

!"

!"

#$%%&
'
(
)

*
(
+
#
&
	,
-

+
%
)
*
(

&
&
.
/
$
'
(
)

(
$
.
)
+
%
0
1
,
-

#
&
(
.
+
.
	$
#
&

*
(
&
&
.
2
+
+
)
	$
#
&

&
)
*
&
/
(
+
+

3%.

%4.
)
&
.
	$
#
&

)5.)&&	()

-+2&(	()

04.& -(
&
&%.

0
4.
&
	6
-

%
+
.
*
2
+
+
)
$
#
&

7
+
(
&
,
-
2
$
'
)

(

($#4.&
*%$)&

&
)
&
.
,
	&
8
0
2
'

1$
(/
+(
	,-

%
+
.
*
	9
&
$
)
+
2

/&
$6
1	
()

/
%
5
7
7
(
)

&
%
9
(
4)
*
&
)
( 1+

*
$
(
-
1

%.

1$
:&
%	$
#&

%
$
3
&
,
4)
&
-
&
(
(

$,/5('	$#&

(
+
6
3
*
$

-
&
%
.

6+5.-'	%4.&	()

(&)2++)
%.

-49
/&
( %.

61$-74&%)	()

;&77&(,+.	$#&

-5(./
5
%
%

2 +
+
)

2&,-%&'	()

,6+--	$#&

&,-
$-& )(

$00%&-(&&
%.

)&
..
4,
	%.

*
%
$

)
&
(
)

-+2&
(

()	70

4#'	%.

&
5
6
%
4)
$
#
&

0
(
$
4(
4&

(
)

1$
2
-1
+(
.	
$#
&

#
$
%
%
&
'
,
-

*
%
&
.
6
+
&
)
(

*
%
&
.

2
++)

$#&

,+5-1	$#&

6+5. -(' %.

%
$
3
&

9
$
'
7
$
4(
%
.

9+.(+&	$#&

%$
3&
2 ++

)
)
(

0
$
%
+
,
	(
)

-

&)*&2++)	%.

,
3
+
3
4&
(
4)
*
&
)
(

9$
('

&$,-2
+
+
)
(
)

+$3)$%&	$#&

$)$9,	$#&

7
$
4(
7
4&
%
)
(
)

1
+
1
%
7
&
%
)
&
(
	(
)

)(&8&%	$#&

9$)4,+.	$#&

*

(
&

&
.
%
&
$
7
$
#
&

< <=><=?>
@ABCD

&EFGHFIJ	,FKLMNOP

)NHN	,QRSTLU	#FOONJL	QV	*OLITQL



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�������	��	����	��	���	�����	�� �����	������	����	
�!�	�����"��!��	���� 	���	����	��#	����	��#�	�$	
���	%���� �	&	���	�����	'�(	)����	��#	���	*����	
'�����	)����+	)��	*����	'�����	)����	��	����,�#	
$���	���	����#������	�����	��#	�����$���	��	���	��	
�#���	��!��	��	������	�������-�	.��/�+	

)��	�����	'�(	)����	

)��	�����	'�(	)����	�!��	$���	�����	��	��!��	
���� 	���	0����	1���2�	*����	�������#	����/�+	
3�	�!��	4���	��&	��#	�$$&������	����! �	�������+	
)��	��&������	.�������	���	4������	3#�	1����	��#	
5�6��	7,��!�	��#	���	�$$&������	�� �����	���	
$���	5�6��	7,��!�	��	���	��������	%���� �	�����	
��#	8�!��	7,��!�	��	���	��!�����	%���� �	�����+	
)��	��&������	�� �����	��,�	��#����/�	��	���	
����	��#�	�$	���	������	$��	��!#����	��	!��+	7��� 	
���	��� ��	�$	���	�����9	������� �	���!�	��#&4���/9	
�����	��/�	����	#�$2�!��	$��	(�!� 	��#	����	
���2#���	.�#��������	��#	�(������+	)��	������	
.��,�#�	 ��#	������	��	���(	�$	�������-�	.��/�9	
����!#�� 	���	)�/�$$	:�����9	%�������-	;�������	
1��/9	<��/	1��/	��#	8������	1��/+	

=>?@A	B??CDD	E@FGD

)����	���	��,����	�����	������	.����	����! �	
�������	.��/�	����	4���2�	���	����,�	
�����.��������	������/9	�!��	��	%�������-	
;�������	1��/9	<��/	1��/9	H����	:�����	��#	
:������	1��/+	)����	���.	��#!��	���	#��������	
��I!���#	$��	.�#��������	��#	�(������	��	���/	��#	
.��,�#�	�	���&������	�J.�������+

KLM	NOPQRSOTU	QVWRPTX	YWQZTX	[	\R]Û W_T

àbbc	def	gaehi	ej	kelbi

àbbc	def	gaehi	ej	mbjbaecno	pbqrahei	seat

u����	'�/���(�

�������	���	���	#�#�����#	4�/�	����	��	8����#��	
v��#	4������	8�!��	7,��!�	��#	w�����	x��,�+	
)��	������	��	�	.�.!���	��!��	$��	�(������	��#	
����!#��	������������	���/�� �	��#	.��,�#��	 ��#	
������	��	���	u�/�$����	1��/	��#	�������	'����+	

7��� 	�����	'�(	v��#9	���	%���� �	���	����.�#	�	
�����&$���	��#�	����	��	������	���	,������	���,��	
�����+	)����	�����	���,�	��	�	#�	$����	4�/�	��!��	
��#	���.	��	����	���$2�+	)���	4���2��	�(������	
���#�� 	��	���	)�/�$$	:�����+



��������	
�

�

�������
����������

���������
������
� !
"��#�

$

$

$

$

$

$

%&

%&

%&

'())*
+
,
-

.
,
/
'
*

0
1

/
)
-
.
,

*
*
2
3
(
+
,
-

,
(
2
-
/
)
4
5
0
1

'
*
,
2
/
2

('
*

.
,

.
,
*
*
2
6
/
/
-

(
'
**

-
.
*
3
,
/
/

7)2

)82
-
*
2

(
'
*

-92-**
,-

)82
:/
)2



('
*

1/6*,
,-

482* 1,
*
*)2

4
82
*

:
1

)
/
2
.
6
/
/
-
(
'
*

;
/
,
*
0
1
6
(
+
-

,

,('82*
.)(-*

*
-
*
2
0

*
<
4
6
+

5(
,3
/,

01

)
/
2
.

=
*
(
-
/
6

3*
(:
5

,-

3
)
9
;
;
,
-

*
)
=
,
8-
.
*
-
, 5/

.
(
,
1
5

)2

5(
>*
)
(
'*

)
(
7
*
0
8-
*
1
*
,
,

(039,+
('*

,
/
:
7
.
(

1
*
)
2

)(7*
://7
,-

,*-6//-
)2

18=
3*
, )2

:5(1;8*)-
,-

?*;;*,0/2
('*

19,23
9
)
)

6 /
/
-

6*01)*+
,-

0:/11
('*

*01
(1* -,

(44)*1,**
)2

4(
,7

('
*

-*
22
80

)2

.
)
(

-
*
,
-

1/6*
,

,-
;4

8'+
)2

*
9
:
)
8-
(
'
*

4
,
(
8,
8*
,
-

5(
6
15
/,
2
(
'*

'
(
)
)
*
+
0
1

.
)
*
2
:
/
*
-
,

.
)
*
2

6
//-

('*

0/915
('*

:/92 1,+ )2

)
(
7
*

/
)
-
*
)
=

)2

=
(
+
;
(
8,
)
2

=/2,/*
('*

)(
7*
6 //

-
-
,

4
(
)
/
0

,
-

0+:(=/,*
)2

1

*-.*6//-
)2

0
7
/
7
8*
,
8-
.
*
-
,

=(
,+

*(016
/
/
-
,
-

/(7-()*
('*

(-(=0
('*

;
(
8,
;
8*
)
-
,
-

5
/
5
)
;
*
)
-
*
,

,
-

-,*<*)
('*

=(-80/2
('*

.

,
*

*
2
)
*
(
;
(
'
*

@ @AB@ACB
DEFGH

*IJKLJMN
4OLP
QR
1ROJS

4SOMMTU
4OLP
QR
1ROJS

3JVT
)OMT

3JVT
)OMTW
4SOMMTU

3JVT
,QXLTW
4SOMMTU

YZ[Z
\]̂_̀abc
defg
hìj̀ka
lmnam[]_j
\jb[aop
qrp
strup
vikkZwa
]x
ykam̀]a
\iza{Zk|
lmnam[]_jp
f̀[ina
}_Zmb~]_[Z[i]m
fkkiZm̀a



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

���	�������������

���	� !"#"$%	&' &	( #)	 *+	,")$	&�	- �)%.	&'$	
/�*&��##$+	/��%%"*0%	/ *	'$#-1	2'$�$	 �$	! *3	
%&�-	/�*&��##$+	"*&$�%$/&"�*%	"*	4#$*/�$.	
+�/5!$*&$+	"*	&'$	! -	�*	- 0$	671	2� �8/	
%"0* #%	 �$	#�/ &$+	 &	95*+$$	:� +	 *+	&'$	*��&'	
$*&� */$	&�	&'$	;'"/ 0�	<�& *"/	4 �+$*.	95*+$$	
:� +	 *+	=�'#�$#+$�	:� +.	>'$�"+ *	:� +	 *+	
? �)	@A$*5$.	4�$$*	< 3	:� +	 *+	? �)	@A$*5$.	
4�$$*	< 3	:� +	 *+	= �,��	>&�$$&.	4�$$*	< 3	
:� +	 *+	B )$	;��)	:� +	 *+	4�$$*	< 3	:� +	
 *+	>/�&&	@A$*5$1	C*	 ++"&"�*.	 &	&'$	2 )"��	
;$*&$�.	&'$�$	"%	 	-5%'D /&"A &$+	/��%%( #)	 &	&'$	
�*	4�$$*	< 3	:� +	*$ �	E$�*�*1	

FGHI	JGKKLM	NOKPQNKRS	OTLHHUNVW	NK	XNWPYY	ZRMKRT

FRSRHKTPNM	OTLHHPM[	HP[MH	NK	XNWYPY	ZRMKRT



��������	
�

�

��������
����������

�

�

�

�

�

�

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

�� ��

���

���

���

���
���
���

�����
 
!
"

#
!
$
�
�

%
&

$
�
"
#
!

�
�
'
(
�
 
!
"

!
�
'
"
$
�
)
*
%
&

�
�
!
'
$
'

�
�
�

#
!
�
�
'

#
!
�
�
'
+
$
$
"

�
�
�

�
"
#
�
(
!
$
$

,�'

�-'
"
�
'

�
�
�

".'"��
!"

&$+�!
!"

)-'� &!
�
��'

)
-'
�

/
&

�
$
'
#
+
$
$
"
�
�
�

0
$
!
�
%
&
+
�
 
"

!

!��-'�
#��"�

�
"
�
'
%

�
1
)
+
 

*�
!(
$!

%&

�
$
'
#

2
�
�
"
$
+

(�
�/
*

!"

(
�
.
0
0
!
"

�
�
2
!
-"
#
�
"
! *$

#
�
!
&
*

�'

*�
3�
�
�
��

�
�
,
�
%
-"
�
&
�
!
!

�%(.! 
���

!
$
/
,
#
�

&
�
�
'

/$.'& 
�-'�
!"

!�"+$$"
�'

&-2
(�
! �

'

/*�&0-��"
!"

4�00�!%$'
���

&.!'(
.
�
�

+ $
$
"

+�%&�� 
!"

%/$&&
���

�%&
�&� "!

�))��&!��
�'

"�
''
-%

�'

#
�
�

"
�
!
"

&$+�
!

!"
0)

-� 
�'

�
.
/
�
-"
�
�
�

)
!
�
-!
-�

!
"

*�
+
&*
$!
'

��
�

�
�
�
�
�
 
%
&

#
�
�
'
/
$
�
"
!

#
�
�
'

+
$$"

���

%$.&*
���

/$.' &! �'

�
�
,
�

2
�
 
0
�
-!
�
'

2$'!$�
���

� &

��
,�
+ $

$
"
"
!

)
�
�
$
%

!
"

�"#�+$$"
�'

%
,
$
,
-�
!
-"
#
�
"
!

2�
! 

��%&+
$
$
"
!
"

$�,"���
���

�"�2%
���

0
�
-!
0
-�
�
"
!
"

*
$
*
�
0
�
�
"
�
!

!
"

"!�1��
���

2�"-%$'
���

#

!
�

�
'
�
�
�
0
�
�
�

5 5675687
9:;<=

��� />?@@ABC
#DE>F

�� &>EGGAH%ACBEI

JK+EL
%M?N
%ACB

OK+EL
%M?N
%ACB

PK+EL
%M?N
%ACB

QK+EL
%M?N
%ACB

$GGK%M>RRM
)EMS

TUVWWXY
ZX[\V]̂_
Z̀ab
ZX[\̂
V\c
ZYdaa]
eUâ X̂\[
fgVUĉ



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

���		����	������	����	���	��� !"#	$	%! !"#	��	��& �

'()	*+,,-.)	/0	1,)23/)	4)25	-2	/2,+2)	4678)9	5/	-,,	7)4+:)254	-4;+2.	-</65	=-,;+2.	-2:	<+;+2.	57+>4	
5(-5	>)/>,)	5-;)	-2:	<-77+)74	5/	5(/4)	57+>4?	@2	5/5-,A	BCC	>)/>,)	7)4>/2:):	5/	5()	4678)9	-2:	-2	
-::+5+/2-,	BCD	3/EE)254	=)7)	+23,6:):	/2	-2	/2,+2)	E->?	F)8)7-,	5()E)4	)E)7.):	07/E	5()	4678)9	
7)4>/24)4	-</65	=-,;+2.	-2:	<+;+2.	5/	>-7;4A	=(+3(	-7)	46EE-7+G):	<),/=?	

HIJKLM

NIJKLMHIJKLM

OIJKLM

PQRST UVVWST XVSYZ[ \V]V̂

_̀	a	bcdefag	hìbj	kebj	̀efl	klabjlmn	jik	iobl̀	pi	ciq	kagrsterl	bi	damruv

wxyz{{	|}~���	������{{

�x�{z��z��	��	����}��	��x}~



��������	
�

�

��������
����������

���
��
������
����
���
��� �
��
������
����!


"#$%
&'()*$+'$,(
,*
,-'
(.&/'%
&')*&,'+
0#123$4
5*&
'6'&73('
'3,-'&
+#31%
89:;<
*&
0''21%
89=;<>

"*&'
,-#$
9?;
*5
&'()*$+'$,(
(#3+
,-'%
0*.1+
0#12
?@=
A31'(
#$+
BB;
#&'
03113$4
,*
C32'
=
*&
A*&'

A31'(D
A'#$3$4
A#$%
*5
E1'$7*'F(
)#&2(
#&'
03,-3$
#
&'#(*$#C1'
0#123$4
*&
C323$4
+3(,#$7'
5*&
,-'('

&'()*$+'$,(>


E1'$7*'F(
)#&2(
)1#%
#$
3A)*&,#$,
&*1'
3$
)&*/3+3$4
()#7'
5*&
)-%(37#1
#7,3/3,%
#$+
'6'&73('>
"*&'

,-#$
G:;
*5
,-'
(.&/'%
&'()*$+'$,(
&')*&,'+
0#123$4
#$+H*&
C323$4
,*
,-'
I#2'5&*$,
J#&2>
K&3'$+(

J#&2
#$+
L#,,(
J#&2
0'&'
#1(*
5&'M.'$,1%
A'$,3*$'+
C%
E1'$7*'>

N������O�P
 ���Q��
Q�
����R�O
���
SR�R�O
Q�
�� �P

T-'
7&*((3$4
#,
,-'
T#2355
U'$,'&
$'#&
V'&$*$
0#(
5&'M.'$,1%
A'$,3*$'+
C%
(.&/'%
&'()*$+'$,(>

W)'73X7
7*AA'$,(
3$71.+'Y

Z

T-'
4&#(('(
$'#&
"#)1'
[311
#$+
E&''$
\#%
]*#+
*C(,&.7,
+&3/'&
/3'0(
*5
)'+'(,&3#$(

Z

J'+'(,&3#$(
7#$$*,
,'11
0-'$
̂#(-3$4
134-,
#,
E&''$
\#%
]*#+
#$+
V'&$*$
3(
#7,3/#,'+

Z

_&3/'0#%
7*$X4.&#,3*$(
#,
,-'
T#2355
U'$,'&
A#2'
7&*((3$4
,-'
(,&'',
+35X7.1,
5*&
)'+'(,&3#$(

Z

_&3/'&(
7#$F,
(''
7%713(,(
3$
,-'
A*&$3$4
+.'
,*
,-'
#$41'
*5
,-'
(.$
*$
E&''$
\#%
]*#+

Z

̀''+(
A*&'
C32'
)#&23$4
#,
,-'
T#2355
U'$,'&

Z

̀''+
#
7.&C
&#A)
#,
,-'
a#&1%
U-31+-**+
'$,&#$7'
#+b#7'$,
,*
,-'
7&*((0#12

c++3,3*$#1
7*AA'$,(
C%
)'*)1'
#C*.,
)#&2(
3$71.+'+Y

Z

T-'
I#2'5&*$,
J#&2
$''+(
A*&'
C32'
&#72(
,*
#77*AA*+#,'
7%713(,(
/3(3,3$4
,-'
C'#7-
3$
,-'

(.AA'&>

Z

T-'
V311#4'
#$+
J#&2
+3(,&37,
(-*.1+
)#&,$'&
*$
3$(,#113$4
#
(3+'0#12
*$
d1+
a1A
I#$'
3$

7*$b.$7,3*$
03,-
&'7*$(,&.7,3*$
*5
,-'
d1+
a1A
J#&2
#$+
J1#%4&*.$+>

Z

e,F(
+35X7.1,
,*
7&*((
_.$+''
]*#+
#,
E&''$0**+
,*
4',
,*
"31,*$
J#&2
C'7#.('
+&3/'&(
#&'
,&#/'13$4

,**
5#(,>

"#)(
+')37,3$4
,-'
7*AA'$,(
&'7'3/'+
#&'
5'#,.&'+
*$
)#4'(
?f
#$+
?g>



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��

��

��

�����
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
!
"
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
#
�
�
�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
 
�
�
�

$��

�%�
�
�
�
	�
�
�

�&����	��

�%�
'�
��
	

��
�

��#��	��

!%�� ��
�
���

!
%�
�
	'
�

�
�
�
�
#
�
�
�
�
�
�

(
�
�
�
�
�
#
�
�
�

�

���%��
�����

�
�
�
�
�
	�
)
!
#
�

"�
� 
��
	��

�
�
�
�
	*
�
�
�
�
#

 �
�'
"	
��

 
�
&
(
(
�
�

�
�
*
�
%�
�
�
�
� "�

�
�
�
�
"

��

"�
+�
�	�
��

�
�
$
�
�
%�
�
�
�
�
�

�� &��	���

�
�
'
$
�
�

�
�
�
�

��$�	'��$	��

���#���
��

�%*
 �
� ��

'"��(%���	��

,�((�����	���

�&�� 
&
�
�

# �
�
�

#������	��

�'���	���

���
��� ��

�!!������
��

!�
�$
	��
�

��
��
%�
	��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

��#�
�

��	(!

%��	��

�
&
'
�
%�
�
�
�

!
�
�
%�
%�
�
�

"�
#
�"
��
�	
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
'
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

#
���

���

��&�"	���

'�&� ��� ��

�
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
*

��

*
�
�
(
�
%�
�
�

*�����	���

��
$�
# ��

�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
	�
�

��'�*���	��

�

����#���	��

�
$
�
$
%�
�
%�
�
�
�
�

*�
��

����#
�
�
�
�
�

��$����	���

���*�	���

(
�
%�
(
%�
�
�
�
�

"
�
"
�
(
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�

���)��	���

*��%���	���

�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
(
�
�
�

- -./-.0/
12345

67889:8;	<=	>7?@9AB	CDEF:8	=G	H=<:;

I

J

IK

L:;98:M	>7?@9AB	N=D<:;	CDEF:8	=G	H=<:;

IOP	QRSTU

POJ	QRSTU

JOV	QRSTU

VOIW	QRSTU

IWOPI	QRSTU

XYZ[\]	̂_̀àbcb_d	ebfY[df	g	ha[i\_̀



��������	
�

�

��������
����������

�

�

�

�

�

�

��

��

��

�����
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
!

�
��
�
�

�
�
"
#
�
�
�
�

�
�
"
�
�
�
$
%
 
!

�
�
�
"
�
"

��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
"
&
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
#
�
�
�

'�"

�("
�
�
"

�
�
�

�)"���
��

�("
*�
�"



��
�

!�&��
��

$("� !�
�
��"

$
("
�

*
!

�
�
"
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�
 
!
&
�
�
�

�

���("�
�����

�
�
�
"
 

�
,
$
&
�

%�
�#
��

 !

�
�
"
�

-
�
�
�
�
&

#�
�*
%

��

#
�
)
+
+
�
�

�
�
-
�
(�
�
�
�
� %�

�
�
�
!
%

�"

%�
.�
�
�
��

�
�
'
�
 
(�
�
!
�
�
�

� #)��
���

�
�
*
'
�
�

!
�
�
"

��'�
*��'
��

���&���
�"

!(-
#�
� �"

*%�!+(���
��

/�++�� �"
���

!)�"#
)
�
�

& �
�
�

&� !���
��

 *�!!
���

� !
�!� ��

�$$��!���
�"

$�
�'

��
�

��
""
( 

�"

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

!�&�
�

��
+$

(��
�"

�
)
*
�
(�
�
�
�

$
�
�
(�
(�
�
�

%�
&
!%
��
"
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
 
!

�
�
�
"
*
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
"

&
���

���

 �)!%
���

*�)" !�� �"

�
�
'
�

�
�
�
�
�
-

�"

-
�
�
+
�
(�
�
"

-�"���
���

��
'�
& �

�
�
�
�

$
�
�
�
 

�
�

 �*�-���
�"

!

����&���
�"

 
'
�
'
(�
�
(�
�
�
�
�

-�
��

�� !&
�
�
�
�
�

��'����
���

���- 
���

+
�
(�
+
(�
�
�
�
�

%
�
%
�
+
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

���,��
���

-��( �"
���

�

�
�

�
"
�
�
�
+
�
�
�

0 0120132
45678

9:;;<=;>
?@
9<A<BC
DEFG=;
@H
I@?=>

J

K

JL

M=><;=N
9<A=
O@E?=>
DEFG=;
@H
I@?=>

J
P
Q

R
P
K

K
P
S

JL
P
JT

JK
P
QJ

UVWXYZ
[\]̂]_̀ _\a
b_cVXac
d
eYfY\]



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

����	���	��	����	��	

������	����	������	��	

� �����	!��"�#

$%&'((%)*+,-').



��������	
�

�

	������������

���

���������
���������� 

!"#$%&'()
*++(,&-
%,*
$,'&'$%.
&(
$,*%&')/
%
-%+*

01234516017
854
90:0;743<1;
<1:
=>=?3;7;
58
<??

<@0;
<1:
<A3?3730;B
C:D=<7351
088547;
;E5D?:
A0

+($#-*"
()
%..
#-*,-
(+
&F*
,(%"
"#,')/
-$F((.

7360G31=?D:31@
657543;7;H
AD;
:43204;H
I<?J04;

<1:
=>=?3;7;B
K??
45<:
D;04;
100:
75
D1:04;7<1:

7E034
43@E7;
<1:
40;951;3A3?3730;
75
01;D40
7E0

;<807>
58
57E04;B
L<4017;
I3??
A010M7
A57E
8456

0:D=<7351
51
;<80
:43231@
94<=73=0;
<1:
51
I<>;

75
9<473=39<70
31
I<?JN
54
A3J0N75
;=E55?
31373<7320;O

;7D:017;
I3??
A010M7
8456
A3J0
<1:
90:0;743<1

;<807>
74<3131@O
<1:
7E0
=566D137>
<;
<
IE5?0

I3??
A010M7
8456
0P95;D40
75
<1:
<I<4010;;B


Q1:04
7E0
<D;93=0;
58
7E0
=566D137>NI3:0

=<69<3@1
854
I<?J31@
<1:
A3J31@H
7E0
85??5I31@

0:D=<7351
;74<70@30;
<40
40=56601:0:
854
7E0

R?01=50
L<4J
S3;743=7T

U8804
V0<41
75
W3:0
X?<;;0;
854
K:D?7;

V0<41
75
43:0
=?<;;0;
=<1
E0?9
<:D?7;
@<31
7E0

=51M:01=0
75
93=J
D9
A3=>=?31@
854
7E0
M4;7
7360

54
75
40N?0<41
75
43:0B
YE0>
=<1
<?;5
E0?9
?0;;

=51M:017
=>=?3;7;
@<31
7E0
;J3??;
75
43:0
51N;74007B


U8804
A3J0
6<31701<1=0
=?<;;0;
854
9059?0
58

%..
%/*-

Z<1>
9059?0
?07
7E034
A3J0;
;37
8<??5I
<8704

@07731@
<
[<7
7340
54
0P904301=31@
<157E04
63154

6<31701<1=0
3;;D0B
U880431@
A3J0
60=E<13=;

=?<;;0;
=<1
E0?9
@320
9059?0
7E0
=51M:01=0
75
MP

3;;D0;
<1:
@07
A<=J
51
7E034
A3J0;B

S3;743AD70
318546<7351
<A5D7
945904

 

E0?607
M7731@

K1
3??NM7731@
E0?607
=<1
40;D?7
31
<
E0<:
31\D4>
38

<
=>=?3;7
8<??;B
Z<1>
<:D?7;
<1:
=E3?:401
:5
157

J15I
7E0
A<;3=;
58
<
945904?>
M770:
E0?607B
YE0

L<4J
S3;743=7
=<1
E0?9
A>
E<231@
[>04;
51NE<1:

<7
37;
AD3?:31@;
7E<7
:0;=43A0
7E0
<9945943<70


70=E13]D0;B
YE0>
=<1
<?;5
=51731D0
75
9<47104

I37E
7E0
̂=E55?
S3;743=7
_̀
51
A3J0
;<807>

74<3131@;B

C:D=<70
9<4J
:3;743=7
D;04;
<A5D7
7E0
A010M7;

58
I<?J31@
a
A3J31@
75
9<4J;


R?01=50
E<;
6<1>
A0<D738D?
9<4J;
7E<7
<40

=512013017
75
I<?J
<1:
A3J0
75B
YE0
L<4J
S3;743=7

=<1
=51731D0
75
01=5D4<@0
37;
9<7451;
75
I<?J
54

43:0
75
?5=<?
9<4J;
4<7E04
7E<1
:4320B
YE0>
=<1

:5
7E3;
A>
:3;743AD731@
7E0
I<?J31@
45D70
6<9;

4080401=0:
31
;0=7351
_BbH
?07731@
9<7451;
J15I

IE040
A3J0
4<=J;
<40
<1:
31=?D:31@
60;;<@31@
31

37;
<115D1=06017;
<A5D7
945@4<6631@B

cdefdg
higgijk
ijlgmnogipj

qird
fdostjiol
edllpjl



�� ��������	�
����
	����
	
������	�

������������������������������

 !"#$%&'()(!*�+*%&*(',(+�*-.,"&//-�,!0#/0(�1$!�
(0(!*+�&!2�&"*,0,*,(+�2(+,'!(2�*#�'(*�3/(!"#(�
1&),/,(+�*#�*(+*�#$*�&!2�"(/(4%&*(�5&/6,!'�&!2�
4,6,!'�*#�.&%6+7�89(-�&%(�#1*(!�/#5:"#+*�#%�!#:
"#+*�&!2�&%(�&�'%(&*�5&-�1#%�&�"#))$!,*-�*#�
+*&%*�,)./()(!*,!'�&�"#).%(9(!+,0(�+&1(�%#$*(+�
*#�.&%6+�,!,*,&*,0(7�89(+(�,!,*,&*,0(+�+9#$/2�4(�
,)./()(!*(2�$!2(%�*9(�"#))$!,*-:5,2(�5&/6,!'�
&!2�4,6,!'�"&).&,'!�&!2�"##%2,!&*(2�5,*9�
;,//&'(�&!2�<"9##/�=,+*%,"*�>?�(11#%*+@

A#!*,!$(�*#�9#+*�4,6(�+&1(*-�%#2(#�&!2�
<$))(%�<&1(*-

B!�CDEFG�,!�.&%*!(%+9,.�5,*9�*9(�=,+*%,"*�>?�&!2�
H$4/,"�<&1(*-G�*9(�<"9##/�=,+*%,"*�>?�,!0,*(2�IJK�
"9&).,#!�J&**�L,/9(/)�*#�*(&"9�4,6(�+&1(*-G�
9(/)(*�M**,!'�&!2�%$!�&�4,6(�#4+*&"/(�"#$%+(�
1#%�+*$2(!*+�,!�'%&2(+�N:O7�89(�&'(!",(+�+9#$/2�
"#!*,!$(�*#�"#:9#+*�*9,+�(0(!*7�

A#:9#+*�&�"#))$!,*-:5,2(�5&/6,!'�&!2�
PQRQST�UVWXXYSTY

ZQ[\]QU\�̂_̀�\VY�aQXXWTỲ�bW]R�ZQ[\]QU\�WSc�
<$+*&,!&4,/,*-�A#)),++,#!�"&!�.&%*!(%�*#�
"9&//(!'(�*9(�(!*,%(�"#))$!,*-�*#�*%&"6�),/(+�
5&/6(2�&!2�4,6(27�d(5&%2+�&!2�,!"(!*,0(+�"&!�4(�
#11(%(2�*#�(!"#$%&'(�.&%*,",.&*,#!7�H&%*,",.&!*+�
"&!�*%&"6�),/(+�*9%#$'9�&!�&..G�'(*�+*&).+�
1#%�5&/6,!'e4,6,!'�*#e1%#)�&!2�(0(!*�#%�/#"&/�
4$+,!(++7�

 !"#$%&'(�.&%6�2,+*%,"*�0,+,*#%+�*#�.&%*,",.&*(�
,!�5&/6e4,6(�*#:1%#)�(0(!*+�9(/2�*9%#$'9#$*�
*9(�-(&%7�

89(�3/(!"#(�H&%6�=,+*%,"*�"&!�(!"#$%&'(�.&*%#!+�
*#�5&/6�&!2�4,6(�*#�.&%6+�)#%(�1%(f$(!*/-�4-�
4%&!2,!'�5&/6+G�+$"9�&+�L&/6eI,6(�*#�*9(�I(&"97

=,+*%,4$*(�.&%6�5&/6,!'�%#$*(�)&.+�*#�
.&*%#!+�&!2�.&%(!*+�#1�.%(:+"9##/(%+

89%#$'9�*9,+�.%#g("*G�+$''(+*(2�5&/6,!'�&!2�
4,6,!'�%#$*(�)&.+�5(%(�2(0(/#.(2�1#%�*9(�8&6,11�
A(!*(%�&!2�3/(!"#(�I(&"97�A#.,(+�#1�*9(�)&.+�
"&!�4(�2,+*%,4$*(2�*#�.&%(!*+�&*�%(',+*%&*,#!�&!2�
"&!�4(�,!"/$2(2�#!�*9(�.&%6�2,+*%,"*�5(4+,*(7�
h+�"9&!'(+�&%(�)&2(�*#�,!1%&+*%$"*$%(�,!�*9(�
"#))$!,*-G�*9(�;,//&'(�&!2�H&%6�=,+*%,"*�+9#$/2�
5#%6�*#'(*9(%�*#�(!+$%(�*9&*�*9(�%#$*(+�&%(�$.�
*#�2&*(�&!2�+&1(�1#%�+*$2(!*�5&/6(%+7�<((�*9(�
d(+#$%"(+�+("*,#!�1#%�*9(�)&.+7

ijkl�jm�nopqrsp�tpjru



��������	
�

�

	������������

���������
�������
���
 �����
!"����
#
$������
"%
&���'"�

(

(

(

(

(

(

)*

)*

)*

+,

+,

+,

+,

+,

+, +,

-��

���

���

���
���
���

�����
�
	



�
	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
	�
�
�
�
��
	



	
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
	
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
	
�
�
�

�
	
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�


�
�
�
	
�
�

���

���


�
�
�
�
�


��
��	


���
��
��


��
�

����		


�����	
�
���

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
	
�
�
�
�
�
�



	

	�����
���
�

�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
	�
�	
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�

��
��
�
	


�
�
�
�
�
	



���
	
�

�
�


	

�
�
	
�
�
�
�

��
��
	
��

��

��
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
	
	

����	����

	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

����������	


	�
���

��

���
��
	��

��������
	


�����	������

��	��
�
�
�

��
�



�������	


��������

������
	

������	��
��

��
	�
��
�


�
��
��
��

�
��



�
	



�
�
�
�
�
�
�

����
	

	
��

�����

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
	
�
�	
��
	



��
�
��
�	
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�


�
�

	


�
�
�
�
�
�
�


	

�
�
�
�

�
��
���

��������

�����	���

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�

���	�����

���� �

��
��
���





	

�
�
�
�
�
	



�
	
�
�
�
��

�	


�
�����
��

�
�
�
�
��
	
�

�
�


	

��
	�

�����
�
�


	



�
��������	


���
������

�
������

�
�
�	
�
��
�


	



�
�
�


	

�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
	
	




	�������

��
�������

�

	
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �� ��! 
"#$%&

��� �'())*+,�-.'/

01 �'.22*3�*,+.4

56�.7�8(9�*,+

:6�.7�8(9�*,+

;6�.7�8(9�*,+

<6�.7�8(9�*,+

�'*=.'7	(-8>

�>3(+/.'7	(-8>

�226�8'>>8�.8?

@



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

���	�������	������	����� ��������	!���	
��������	�	��" ����	����	�#	����""��$������	#��	
���	%����&�	��	�" ��"���'	����	 ���	#���(���	�	����	
�#	���	&������	��#�����(��(��	�����	����""��$�$	
#��	�������'	)��������	�#	 �� ���$	
�" ����"����	���	����$	��	�������'	

*+,+-./012	3+.45/6	7558-

9������	:�;	<�$�;��=�

>����	 ����?��@	�������	��$�;��=�	��	��	�����	
���	��$�	�#	����	?���=	��$	����	��$�	��	������A	
�������$	���$�'	>���	#����?��@	;��=	;���	 ������	
 �� ���A	�;����	��	?(��$	��$�;��=�	;����	��	
 (?���B��&��B�#B;�A	��	������?��'	<�$�;��=�	���(�$	
?�	��	�����	CD	;�$�@	?(�	EBFGD	��	 ��#����$	��	
�����	;���	��&�	 �$�������	#���	���#H�'	9$����A@	
��$�;��=�	;���	����($�	?(##��	�����	��	 ����$�	
�$$�������	 ���������	#��"	�������	�����@	�(��	
��	 ��=��&	�����	��	#(����(��	I����'	<�$�;��=�	
���(�$	������(�	������	��""������	$����;�A�	
��	?�����	$�H��	���	 �$�������	� ���'	JKLMLNOP	
QLRSTULVNW	XLKONTYSZ	[L\T]	L̂	_QPOK	̀L\KTa	XLKONTYSZ	
bOTYOOV	[ZRScLKO	dSVO	SVP	̀]ONTV\T	dSVO	SVP		
e\VPOO	fLSP	bOTYOOV	gKOOV	hSZ	fLSP	SVP	gKOOVYLLP	
ijOV\Ok	lV	SPPUTULVa	YLKm	YUT]	MKUjSTO	QSVP	LYVOKN	LV	
nQP	_Qc	dSVO	SVP	UV	T]O	[mLmUO	fUPoO	VOUo]bLK]LLP	TL	
POTOKcUVO	LMTULVN	̂LK	b\UQPUVo	VOY	NUPOYSQmNk	

p�����(�	��	>��=	;���	q���$����	��	9" ����	
)��$��� ��&	p��������

�������D�	 ����A	&(�$��	 ������	 �� ���A	�;����	
��	"�������	��$	���"	?��=	�����	��$	���$��� ��&	
rstr	uvwrxyzr	w{|sr}{~�w	u~	zux~�xw	t~�	�~zxutzs	
��	��$�;��=�'	��	������	����@	���$��� ��&	���	?�	
��	��&���	����	�G�	��	�	F��F�D	����'	<��(?�	��$	
?(����	���(�$	?�	���""�$	?��=	FB#���	#��"	���	
�$&�	�#	 (?���	��$�;��=�	��$	���""�$	( 	��	����;	
�	"���"("	�#	ED	�#	��������	���������'

���			��������������	���������������

����	��������	��	���� ���	¡���¢��

£ ����¤�	¤������ ���	��������

¥¤�¦�¤	§�̈	�©¦¤�¦�¤	�����¢�¦��ª	©��� ����¢�̈	£�«¤¢�¬	
����ª�	�®	¡���¢��



��������	
�

�

	������������

�������
������
���
������
����� �!
"�#��

$%&'()*+

,�-#.#��
.��/ �!�
0��- �#
�
- �1��
21#1#
��

�� -#��
��
�#. ��
��#.
����
��#3
��#
�00����� �!

�
������
4��#
��
������
����� �!5
6�#3
�#�0

�# �7���#
� !��!#
8� ��
 �
��.#� .#�
9���/#�
��

� 7:�1��
��
�0��
8�#�
�� - �!5
6�#3
����
0��- �#

�
- �1��
21#1#
��
�� -#��
 �
��-���#
�7
�
������

4��#
��
������
����� �!
��
���0
7��
��1�#��

0#�#��� ���
���
��#
#�� #�
7��
�� -#��
��
�##
����

� !��!#
��
�����
8 ��
� !�#�
-#� ��#
�0##��5

;<=>=?@A
B=CDEF=G?
FGCBHA@I
JHGA@@
K=DA
G@D<
L@?E

MCN==B
DGA
O<@@G
PDQ
K=DA
G@D<
M=HEN
RS@GH@T

UVWXXY
Z[X\\]̂_
̀abcdĉe
fa[g]̂_h
UXi[Vcj
kY\ec[
ZXîel

m[â\nX[eae]X̂
ZXîV]Y

UVWXXY
oX̂c
nabcdĉe
da[g]̂_h
UXi[Vcj
m[app]V
Uapcel
UeX[c



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

������������	�����

���� !!	"#$%	& '(�)	* +�,!-	. /�	0	
"$1��2 !3�

45#,(	 !!	,��-$�-+�,1��	2,�6	%,7/,$-+�,1� !	+#$%	
$ '(�	826-$-	9-1'-�$:	 !!12�;)	/-�-+� %!-	
2 $�,�9	( /�	 �/	+$1��2 !3�<	���-$� �,1� !	
1$	! //-$	��:!-	+$1��2 !3�	�61#!/	%-	#�-/	 �	
�,9� !,=-/	+$1��,�9�)	',/7%!1+3	+$1��,�9�)	�+611!	
 �/	( $3	+$1��,�9�	 �/	 !1�9	�+611!	 �/	( $3	
2 !3,�9	$1#�-�<	>-+1$ �,?-	+$1��2 !3�	' :	
%-	#�-/	,�	(! +-	1@	! //-$	��:!-	+$1��2 !3�	,�	
%#�,�-��	/,��$,+��<	A� �/ $/	+$1��2 !3�	+ �	%-	
#�-/	 �	 !!	1�6-$	,��-$�-+�,1��<	BCDEFGG	F	CHI	DJKLLG	
JMLDDNCO	FE	PQJFRLMH	SFCH	FCT	ULMHDEIFQ	VMNWHX

Y(/ �-	A+611!)	.-/-��$, �	 �/	Z,+:+!-	
"$1��,�9	A,9��	 �/	���� !!	26-$-	[--/-/

Z,+:+!-	+$1��,�9	�,9��	2 $�	/$,?-$�	�6 �	 	�+611!)	
(-/-��$, �	1$	%,+:+!-	+$1��,�9	,�	 6- /<	\6-�	
#�-/)	�6,�	�$- �'-��	�61#!/	,�+!#/-	 �	 /? �+-/	
2 $�,�9	�,9�	 �/	 	�,9�	 �	�6-	+$1��,�9<

��7$1 /	�,9��	$-',�/	/$,?-$�	 �/	%,+:+!,���	1@	�6-	
!-9 !	$-5#,$-'-��	�1	9,?-	(-/-��$, ��	�6-	$,96�7
1@72 :	 �	,��-$�-+�,1��<	*6-:	�61#!/	%-	(! +-/	,�	
@$1��	1@	+$1��2 !3�	1�	�217! �-	$1 /�	 �/	' :	%-	
'1#��-/	,�	��$--��	1$	'1? %!-<

.-/-��$, �	\ ,�,�9	]$- �	 �/	A� �/% +3	
_̂̀ab

A� �/% +3	!,�-�	 �/	+1�+$-�-	2 ,�,�9	 $- �	
($1?,/-	 	%,99-$	�( +-	@1$	! $9-	9$1#(�	1@	
��#/-���	�1	2 ,�	26-�	+$1��,�9	�6-	��$--�<	*6,�	
�$- �'-��	,�	6-!(@#!	 �	+$1��,�9�	 /c +-��	�1	
�+611!�	1$	 �	�$ @d+	�,9� !�	26-$-	! $9-	9$1#(�	
+1�9$-9 �-<	\6-$-	�( +-	(-$',��)	($1?,/-	 	
! $9-$	+1�+$-�-	( /	@1$	��#/-���	�1	9 �6-$<	]�	
� $$12-$	+$1��,�9	 $- �)	+1��,/-$	,��� !!,�9	
%1!! $/�	1$	( ,��,�9	 	�� �/% +3	!,�-<	eMLfLDHT	
GLJFENLCDg		VhCTHH	iLFT	FCT	jLKGkHGTHM	iLFT	FCT	
lMHHC	mFQ	iLFT	FCT	PLhEK	nWHChHX

opqrstquv	wxryz	o{|}uy~	�xvy	��ryuvx

�qxpxr�	q}yqz	o{|}uy~	�xvy	��ryuvx

�xu�uwy	u}{��xr�	�x�r

op{�	�{}	�ysy�p}xqr�	�x�rq�yz	o{|}uy~	�����



��������	
�

�

	������������

�������
������
�����

�������
������
�����
������
���
 !���
�"
��#��$
������#
%����&� 
���
���
��&!
!��%���
���������&

 !���
"��
���  ��#
!��� ����� 
��
'���
'����
��#��

�"
'�(
� 
&�)����*
+,-.-/01
2-3456-78
90/520:
;470

471
<,007
=4:
>-41?

@��� �����
���  ��#
A &��� 

��"�#�
� &��� 
B�""��
���
!������
!��� ����� 

���
�(�&� � 
���  ��#
'���
��
B� (
 ����� C

���B&��#
���)
��
���  
��
�'�
 ��#� *
D����

!�  �B&�C
���(
 ���&�
B�
'���
����#�
��

����))�����
���
&��#��
�"
�
 �������
B��(�&�*

+,-.-/01
2-3456-78
90/520:
;470
471
<,007
=4:
>-41E

<,007
=4:
>-41
471
;67107
FG07H0?

I�)!$��� J���B
KL��� ��� 

I�)!$��� 
 &�'
���"M�C
!��%���
 ������
���  ��#

�� ����� 
"��
!��� ����� 
���
�)!��%�
 �#��&��� 

"��
B���
���%�� 
���
!��� ����� *
@��!� ��

&������� N
+,-.-/01
2-3456-7/8
<,007
=4:
O,462
45

P4Q02
471
+4,R

��� ��
���  '�&S 

��� ��
���  '�&S 
��&)
���"M�
��
!��� �����

���  ��# 
B(
��� ��#
���
���  '�&S
��
���
���#��
�"

���
���B*
T �
�
#�����&
���&���
��
������
�  �� 

"��
!&�' *
+,-.-/01
2-3456-7/8
U0,7-7
FG07H0
45
P4Q02E

+4,RE
U0,7-7
471
V0WW0,/-7?

��� ��
A���� ������ 

X�)�&��
��
���
�����!�
�"
�
��� ��
���  '�&SC
��

YZ[\]\
̂_]
[̀̂]Y\]â[b̀
c\[̀d
Z
dYZecZf
[̀af[̀]
̂b

��&)
���"M�
��
!��� �����
���  ��# *

ghijkhi
klmnhm
moippq
rljmkhs
tuvwx

yhihz{mpon
kmlzzpn|
pz}oni

~j���lj{z�kjm�
h�{hnzplnz

gopzhi
kmlzz�o}�gopzhi
�n{hmzhk{plnq
vmhip{s
tuvwx



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�������	����	��������

����	���������	���	� !����	�� ����	� �"��	���#$�	
��% ���	��	����% �&�	'���� %	��������	'(�	��	 ��	
���%%��	��� ����	���#$�	��% ���)	*+,-,./0	1,2345,6.7	
8+//6	93:	;,30	34	<3+=,+	>?/6@/	360	*3+A	>?/6@/B

C�������� 	D�E ���' 	F�% ��

C�������� 	��E ���' 	��% ���	%�G�	������	
������ %	� #��H���� 	�"�E�	�(�	�H�E �	�#	��H�	
�(��	(�G�	��#�	��	�����)	F�% ���	�(�E��	"�	��H��	
��	����'	��	�����	I)JK	���	���� �	��	�����	��#���)	
*+,-,./0	L,2345,67	MN/+5036	;,30	360	*3+A	>?/6@/B

O���� %E���	O����	P���(� %	����� �	QOOP�R

OOP��	� �"��	��������� �	� �	��������	��	����G���	
�	'�� � %	"���� 	��	H��!"���S	��	E ��% ���&��	
������ %�)	T(��	�� 	"�	�����	�� �������	��	���E��	
� ��������� 	����	� �	��H���U���)	*+,-,./0	L,2345,67	
8+//6	93:	;,30	V/+6,6	>?/6@/	360	4N/	W/4+3	M4345,6X	
-,..5=1/	,4N/+	1,2345,6	,6	Y@60//	;,30	360	Z,+/.4[3:B

�������	\ ��������� 	D����� %	]��S� %�

�������	� ��������� 	������ %	H��S� %�	%E���	
��������	�(��E%(	� 	� ��������� )	T(��	�� 	"�	
(�%(��%(���	� 	%��� 	��� �	��	� ������	G���"�����)	
*+,-,./0	1,2345,67	MN/+5036	;,30	360	M,@4N	>?/6@/X	
8+//6	93:	;,30	360	M,@4N	>?/6@/B

�������	D����'��S

�������	�����'��S�	���	������	��̂��� �	��	
��������� 	�����'��S�	'(���	������_	�������(�	� �	
���������	"�S�	�� ��	� �������	�������)	T(��	�� 	"�	
(�%(��%(���	� 	%��� 	��	� ������	G���"�����)	*+,-,./0	
1,2345,6.7	>11	8+//6	93:	̀+351	.4+//4	2+,..56a.B

bcdedfg	fhhi	jgkgdkhl

mgdknopqfnl	mnicj	rfnstcop	bgndho	ummrbv

bcdedfg	cokglsgdkcho	inwgxgok	xnlycopsbcdedfg	dlhssznfy

{gjgsklcno	dhqokjhzo	scponf



��������	
�

�

	������������

�����
�����������
�
�� ���!��"
#�"��"$

%&'()
(*+,&-'.(,*
'*/
0'12*/(*3
4(3*'35
65)7
845&4
*'9(3'.5
.&'()
:8*;.(,*4
'*/
,*<4.&55.
7,&.(,*4

,+
.&'()
414.5-4=
/(&5;.(*3
.65-
.,
7,(*.4
,+
(*.5&54.
,++
,+
.&'()4>
?5),0
'&5
4,-5
5@'-7)54
,+
.&'()

(*+,&-'.(,*')
'*/
0'12*/(*3
4(3*'35
.6'.
;'*
A5
845/
(*
B)5*;,5>
CDEFEGHI
JEKLMNEOGP
LJJ
DHKEQQHOIHI

RNSH
DETMHGU
LJJ
MDLNJG

VWXYZ[\]̂
_]XYW[ZYẀ[̂
_Wa]\YẀ[
XWb[
c̀a
̀[dXYa]]Y
eX]f gWb[Zb]
ZY
Z
he[\YẀ[
i]Yj]][
Yj̀
YaZWkXf

laZWk
XmXY]n
nZo
\Z[
i]
òXY]_
̀[
YaZWk
XWb[X
̀a
̀[
pẀXpXf qaZ[_]_
YaZWk
XWb[X
\Z[
i]
eX]_
Zk̀[b
̀ccdXYa]]Y
òaYẀ[X
̀c

YaZWkXf

r[c̀anZYẀ[
pẀXpX
\Z[
i]
òXY]_
ZY
Z\\]XX
òW[YX
Z[_

\Z[
W[\ke_]
Z
à c̀
Ỳ
oàsW_]
Xt]kY]a
càn
Yt]
Xe[f



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�������	�������	�����

� !"	#$%"&

� !"	'$%"&	("& )%$*"	$	&+$,"	-./	,0,' &*&	.%	$	/.$(	
$%(	"%,.1/$)"	(/ 2"/&	$%(	,0,' &*&	*.	3"4$2"	
+/"( ,*$3'05	64"0	,$%	/"(1,"	7.*./	2"4 ,'"	
&+""(&	$%(	'.8"/	*4"	/ &!	.-	&"2"/"	,/$&4"&5	9*	
7 % 717:	3 !"	'$%"&	&4.1'(	3"	;<	8 ("5	=$%	3"	
1&"(	 %	,.%>1%,* .%	8 *4	$	/.$(	( "*5	?@ABACDE	
FAGHIJAKL	MD@KAK	NOD	JP	CBHGD	BD@QJICR

ST4$//.8&U

V%&*$''	S&4$//.8&U	.%	&*/""*&	8 *4	4 )4	3 !"	
*/$-W,:	.%X&*/""*	+$/! %)	$%(	' 7 *"(	'$%"	8 (*45	
64"	7$/! %)	 %( ,$*"&	*4"	+/.+"/	'$%"	+.& * .%	
-./	,0,' &*&	$%(	,$1* .%&	(/ 2"/&	*.	"Y+",*	,0,' &*&	
.%	*4"	/.$(5	?@ABACDE	FAGHIJAKCL	MD@KAKZ	[A\I]Z	?H@̂Z	
_A]FPDFED@Z	̀F\PPZ	[\KCDI	aAAEFHbKZ	cHBFD	_JFF	HKE	
aDCIFDdR

Se"	f$,*.U	� !"	#$%"

g%	/.$(&	8 *4	'$%"&	*4$*	$/"	*..	%$//.8	*.	
$,,.77.($*"	$	*/$( * .%$'	3 !"	'$%":	31*	$/"	
8 ("/	*4$%	%","&&$/0	-./	2"4 ,'"	*/$-W,:	$	&.' (	
84 *"	' %"	,$%	3"	&*/ +"(5	64 &	*/"$*7"%*	3.*4	
2 &1$''0	%$//.8&	*4"	/.$(	*.	"%,.1/$)"	(/ 2"/&	
*.	&'.8	(.8%	$%(	&"/2"&	$&	$	("	-$,*.	3 !"	'$%"5	
?@ABACDE	FAGHIJAKCL	h@DDK	̀Hd	iAHE	b]D@D	CBHGD	
BD@QJICR

� !"	�.1'"2$/(&

� !"	�.1'"2$/(&	$/"	&*/""*&	("& )%"(	*.	+/ ./ * j"	
3 ,0,'"	*/$2"'	30	,$'7 %)	2"4 ,1'$/	*/$-W,5	k4"%	
("& )%"(	$&	$	%"*8./!:	*4"	/"&1'*	 &	$%	$**/$,* 2":	
&$-"	$%(	,.7-./*$3'"	"%2 /.%7"%*	-./	,0,' &*&	
.-	$''	$)"&	$%(	$3 ' * "&	$%(	7./"	+"$,"-1'	
/"& ("%* $'	&*/""*&5	9&	-$7 '0	-/ "%('0	3 ,0,' %)	 %	
l'"%,."	)/.8&:	*4"	m ''$)"	7$0	8$%*	*.	,.%& ("/	
 %&*$'' %)	3 !"	3.1'"2$/(	*/"$*7"%*&	.%	&"'",*	
/"& ("%* $'	&*/""*&5	?@ABACDE	nAGHIJAKCL	òp	BDKEJKq	
P\I\@D	HKHFdCJCR

rstuuvw

xyz{	|v}~{�tu�

��{	�t��v�	|yz{	~t�{

xyz{	~t�{



��������	
�

�

	������������

��������������

���������
� !
��������
�"
�
�"��
�!�
���
������

���������!�
�!�
#$#�����%
���$
��" ��
&�
��

�����
'(
)���*
& �
#�!
&�
��
)���
��
+,(%
-����

�"���&��*
�
����)��.
��" ��
�����
&�
��"/����

"!
���
"��"����
����
"0
�
�"��
)���
�
��������%

������
���
 � ���$
��1"/��
0�"1
�������*
& �
��/�

��1����
#����#�������#�
�"
���������%
���$
#�!
&�

��/��
"�
 !��/��%
23454678
94:;<=4>?
@=875;<A
4>

B377>
C;D
E4;8
>43<A
4F
G76<H7DI
J3K6A78
H=L76<4>7

<3;=H
7;6<
4F
M2NO
E;=H34;8
<3;:P6
Q7<R77>
S;5H7
T=HH

E4;8
;>8
9;P7
J44P
E4;8
;>8
7;6<
4F
@4K<A
UV7>K7

Q7<R77>
23;=3=7
E4;8
;>8
W4376<R;DI


X�.�
Y��.�!Z

X�.�
���.�!Z
��" ��
&�
/���&��
�!�
��# ��
�!�

��"/����
���" Z�" �
���
[����Z�*
�����# ����$

��
���.�*
�#�""��
�!�
��"���!Z
�����%
\!
�����

)����
��"���
���.
&�.��
�"!Z]���1*
� #�
��
���

^����
�����"!*
#"!�����
�!������!Z
#"/����
&�.�

���.�!Z%
Y�"�"���
�"#���"!�_
�" ��
�#�""�*

�")!�")!
̀��!#"�*
a�.�0�"!�
Y��.*
��.�00

b�!���%

cdef
ghiedjk

ldmfghno



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�����	����������	

���	��	����	��	 ���	

���	!�������"�	����#�	

�����!��������$

%&'()&)*+,+%-*



���������	
		�		������������

���			����	���������	��	������������ �

!"#$	%&'($)("#	)*	+,-.","*$'$)/*

0123452	6738	1954:75;<	=>;745;;5;	14?	
25;7?543;	3@	7ABC5A543	BC14

D		E@4374>5	3@	6@2F	1:2@;;	C@:1C	GC54:@5	
1954:75;	3@	7ABC5A543	25:@AA54?137@4;H

D		I;F	C@:1C	=>;745;;5;	3@	;B@4;@2	5?>:137@4	14?	
54:@>2195A543	74737137J5;H

D		K4J735	B12543;	14?	:@AA>473L	J@C>43552;	3@	
85CB	6738	B2@M5:3;H	NJ543;<	=7F5	21:F	:@>43;	
14?	3217C	:@>43;	:14	=5	:@CC5:35?	6738	385	85CB	
@O	J@C>43552;H

N;31=C7;8	1	;L;35A	O@2	J533749	14?	1BB2@J749	
B2@M5:3;	3813	7AB1:3	2@1?;

D		E@4374>5	3@	B123452	6738	385	P7CC195	14?	
Q:8@@C	R7;327:3	ST	@4	7ABC5A543137@4	@O	BC14	
25:@AA54?137@4;HH

Q53	251C7;37:	14?	A51;>21=C5	9@1C;	O@2	51:8	
74737137J5

K?5437OL	A51;>25;	14?	61L;	3@	321:F	BC14	
B2@925;;<	;>:8	1;U

D		V>A=52	@O	B132@4;	61CF749	14?	=7F749	3@	
5J543;H

D		V>A=52	@O	=7F5;	74	=7F5	21:F;H

K4O@2A	385	:@AA>473L	1=@>3	74737137J5;	14?	
A51;>25	B2@M5:3	7AB1:3;

I3	385	;3123	@O	1	456	74737137J5<	C53	B132@4;	14?	
385	:@AA>473L	F4@6	6813	385	B2@M5:3	7;<	68L	73	
A13352;<	6813	7AB1:3	67CC	73	81J5<	6813	3@	5WB5:3H

X@2	:@4;32>:37@4	B2@M5:3;	3813	67CC	7AB1:3	B12F;<	
6@2F	6738	385	P7CC195	3@	54;>25	3813	45798=@2;	
14?	B12FY9@52;	125	74O@2A5?	1=@>3	385	B2@M5:3	
9@1C;	14?	>4?52;314?	6813	=545Z3;	67CC	=5	
?527J5?	O2@A	73H	

Q55F	@>3	92143	O>4?749	[	B27J135	?@4137@4;

\8525	125	A14L	?5?7:135?	O>4?749	;3251A;	O@2	
=7:L:C5	14?	B5?5;32714	B2@M5:3;H	]5C@6	7;	1	C7;3	
@O	9@J524A543	92143;	3813	125	:@AA@4CL	>;5?	
3@	O>4?	1:37J5	3214;B@23137@4	74O21;32>:3>25H	
I4	@J52J756	@O	385	B2@921A;	1J17C1=C5	74	
4@23851;3524	KCC74@7;	7;	;>AA127̂5?	74	385	31=C5;	
@4	B195;	_̀	14?	_aH

K4	1??737@4	3@	9@J524A543	;B@4;@25?	92143;<	
38525	125	1	814?O>C	@O	O@>4?137@4	92143;	1J17C1=C5	
3@	9@J524A543	5437375;H	\85;5	74:C>?5U

D		0C1:5;	O@2	]7F5;U	I4	144>1C	92143	B2@921A	3813	
B2@J7?5;	>B	3@	b̀c<ccc	74	O>4?749	O@2	=7:L:C5	
74O21;32>:3>25	14?	4@4Y74O21;32>:3>25	B2@M5:3;H	
02@M5:3;	A>;3	=5	;7947Z:143	14?	A>;3	81J5	
1	A13:8H	\85	:1CC	O@2	B2@B@;1C;	7;	3LB7:1CCL	
144@>4:5?	74	R5:5A=52H

D		d@:1C	\5:847:1C	I;;7;314:5	02@921AU	efgh	
B2@921A	B2@J7?5;	O255	BC144749	1;;7;314:5	3@	
:@AA>47375;	74	385	EiI0	2597@4H	IBBC7:1=C5	
B2@M5:3;	74:C>?5	O51;7=7C73L	;3>?75;<	B12F749	
;3>?75;	14?	:@AB25854;7J5	BC14;H	\85	:1CC	O@2	
B2@B@;1C;	7;	3LB7:1CCL	144@>4:5?	74	C135	;B2749H

D		IA527:1	j1CF;	i7:2@	G2143;U	QA1CC	92143;	
>B	3@	b̀<ccc	125	@OO525?	3@	:@AA>47375;	3@	
1?J14:5	61CF749	25C135?	74737137J5;H	

D		E@1;31C	i14195A543	G2143	02@921AU	efk	
KCC74@7;	R5B123A543	@O	V13>25	l5;@>2:5;	
B2@J7?5;	O>4?;	3@	:@AA>47375;	1C@49	d1F5	
i7:87914	3@	7AB2@J5	54J72@4A5431C	7AB1:3;	
14?	=7:L:C5	14?	B5?5;32714	1::5;;H	\85	
B2@921A	7;	:>22543CL	=5749	5J1C>135?	=L	385	
1954:L<	=>3	7;	5WB5:35?	3@	=5	25@B545?	74	385	
45W3	L512H

D		027J135	R@4137@4;U	Q@A5	@O	385	74737137J5;<	
B2@921A;	14?	74O21;32>:3>25	25:@AA54?137@4;	
74:C>?5?	74	387;	BC14	:14	=5	O>4?5?	=L	B27J135	
?@4@2;H	



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

��������	������	���	��������	����� 

!""#$%&'$()	
*+(%,--	

.+&)-"(+'&'$()	
/)0&)%,1,)'-	
23./*4	

5&6,	7(8',-	'(	
5%0((#	257.54

9$:0;&<	5&6,'<	
31"+(=,1,)'	
*+(:+&1	2953*4

5,%'$()	>?@A	5'&',	
&)B	C(118)$'<	
9$:0;&<	5&6,'<	D+&)'	
*+(:+&1

*+(:+&1	*8+"(-, EF	GFHIJK	
LMNIMKONP	QRHIFKRLP	
OJHIQJIRL	OST	
JSURKFSVJSION	
OHWJLIH	FG	FMK	
IKOSHWFKIOIRFS	
RSGKOHIKMLIMKJX

EF	JSOYNJ	OST	
JSLFMKOZJ	LQRNTKJS	
IF	[ON\	OST	YR\J	IF	
HLQFFN	IQKFMZQ	IQJ	
]	̂HX

EF	GMST	QRZQ[O_	
RSGKOHIKMLIMKJ	HOGJI_	
WKF̀JLIH	ORVJT	OI	
KJTMLRSZ	GOIONRIRJH	OST	
HJKRFMH	RS̀MKRJHX

EF	LKJOIJ	HOGJI_	
WKFZKOVH	ORVJT	
OI	KJTMLRSZ	IKOGGRL	
LKOHQJHX

*+(:+&1	
!B1$)$-'+&'(+

abcE abcE abcE	bRURHRFS	FG	EKOGGRL	
dOGJI_

abcE	bRURHRFS	FG	EKOGGRL	
dOGJI_

/#$:$e#,	*+(f,%'- gR\JhWJT	GOLRNRIRJHP	
HOGJI_	JTMLOIRFS	
WKFZKOVH	OST	
JSLFMKOZJVJSI	
RSLJSIRUJHX	

gR\JhWJT	GOLRNRIRJHP	
HOGJI_	JTMLOIRFS	
WKFZKOVH	OST	
JSLFMKOZJVJSI	
RSLJSIRUJHX	

gR\J	NOSJHP	WOUJT	
HQFMNTJKHP	EKORNh
iRZQ[O_	RSIJKHJLIRFS	
RVWKFUJVJSIHP	
LKFHH[ON\HP	HRZSON	
RVWKFUJVJSIP	OST	
LMKY	LMIH	OH	[JNN	OH	
HOGJI_	JTMLOIRFS	OST	
O[OKJSJHH	WKFZKOVHX

ŜGFKLJVJSI	
LOVWORZSH	IF	RVWKFUJ	
YR\JhWJT	HOGJI_P	
QJNVJI	WKFVFIRFSP	
JTMLOIRFSON	VOIJKRONHP	
OST	IKORSRSZX	

j,<	*+(f,%'	
7,k8$+,1,)'-

lMHI	KJNOIJ	
IF	HMKGOLJ	
IKOSHWFKIOIRFSX

mOS	FSN_	YJ	HWJSI	
[RIQRS	n	o	VRNJH	FG	O	
HLQFFNX	

lMHI	OTTKJHH	ZFONH	
[KRIIJS	RS	dIOIJ	
iRZQ[O_	dOGJI_	pNOSX

lMHI	OTTKJHH	ZFONH	
[KRIIJS	RS	dIOIJ	
iRZQ[O_	dOGJI_	pNOSX

!""#$%&'$()	
*+(%,--	

qJrI	OSIRLRWOIJT	
LONN	GFK	WKF̀JLIH	
dWKRSZ	stnuX

aKKJZMNOK	HLQJTMNJ	OI	
LONN	FG	abcEX

vJSJKONN_	IQJKJ	RH	OS	
OSSMON	MWTOIJ	IF	IQJ	
pNOS	OI	LONN	FG	abcE	
bRURHRFS	FG	EKOGGRL	
dOGJI_X

vJSJKONN_	JOLQ	HWKRSZ	
OI	LONN	FG	abcE	bRURHRFS	
FG	EKOGGRL	dOGJI_X

w(%&#	x&'%0	
7,k8$+,B

E_WRLONN_	sty sty nty qF	VOILQ	KJzMRKJT

/#$:$e#,	!""#$%&)'- {FLON	
ZFUJKSVJSIH

|S_	ZFUJKSVJSION	
JSIRI_

|S_	ZFUJKSVJSION	
JSIRI_	FK	SFS}WKFGRI

|S_	ZFUJKSVJSION	
JSIRI_	FK	SFS}WKFGRI



��������	
�

�

������������

��������
������
���
��������
 ����!

"##$%&'(%)*

+,)&-..


/-&,-'(%)*'$
0,'%$.
+,)1,'2

3/0+4

5)*1-.(%)*
6%(%1'(%)*
'*7

"%,
89'$%(:
35"684

;9,<'&-
0,'*.#),('(%)*

=$)&>
?,)9#
;-(
".%7-

3<),2-,$:
0"+4

+,)1,'2

+9,#).-

@A
BCDCEAF
GHB
IGJHKGJH

LCMLCGKJAHGE
KLGJEN
GHB
OGMJEJKJCN

OAL
PAKQ
IAKALJRCB
GHB
HAHS
IAKALJRCB
TNCLNU

@A
JIFLADC
GJL
VTGEJKW
GHB

LCBTMC
KLGOOJM
MAHXCNKJAH
JH

GLCGN
KQGK
BA
HAK
ICCK
GJL

VTGEJKW
NKGHBGLBNU

@A
NTFFALK
HAHSIAKALJRCB

IABCN
AO
KLGHNFALKGKJAHU

+,)1,'2

"72%*%.(,'(),

YZ[\ ]̂ _̀ ]̂ _̀

a$%1%b$-

+,)c-&(.

@LGJENd
@LGJEefJXQgGW
JHKCLNCMKJAH

JIFLADCICHKNd
KLGJEQCGBNd

CBTMGKJAHGE
IGKCLJGENd
GHB

KLGJHJHXU

hJiCeFCB
OGMJEJKJCNd
NGOCKW

CBTMGKJAH
FLAXLGIN
GHB

CHMATLGXCICHK
JHMCHKJDCNd

GMKJDC
KLGHNFALKGKJAH
FEGHNd

PJiCeFCB
IGFNd
PJiCeFCB

MAALBJHGKAL
FANJKJAHU



hJMWMEC
GHB
FCBCNKLJGH

OGMJEJKJCNd
NKLCCKNMGFJHX

j-:
+,)c-&(

/-k9%,-2-*(.

lmn
GEEAMGKCB
KA
HAHSIAKALJRCB

KLGJE
FLAoCMKd
lmn
OAL
IAKALJRCBd

pmn
OAL
BJDCLNJKW
AO
KLGJE
TNCU

qr
̂TNK
PC
NFCHK
JH
HAHS
GKKGJHICHK
GHB
IGJHKCHGHMC

GLCGNU
sr
tJEE
PC
CDGETGKCB

AH
GJL
VTGEJKW
CIJNNJAHNU

qr
̀QGNC
Y
CHXJHCCLJHX

ITNK
PC
HCGLEW
MAIFECKCU

sr
̀LAoCMK
ITNK
PC
JHMETBCB

JH
G
EAMGEd
NTPSLCXJAHGE

AL
LCXJAHGE
FEGH
KQGK
gGN

OALIGEEW
GBAFKCBU

"##$%&'(%)*

+,)&-..


YLLCXTEGL
NMQCBTECN
GK
MGEE
AO

YEEJHAJN
ZCFGLKICHK
AO
[GKTLGE

\CNATLMCNU

uCHCLGEEWd
GH
GHHTGE
MGEE
OAL

FLAFANGENU

uCHCLGEEWd
GH
GHHTGE
MGEE
OAL

FLAFANGEN
JH
KGHBCI
gJKQ

]̂ _v
GHHATHMCICHKU

w)&'$
6'(&x

/-k9%,-7

@WFJMGEEW
smnd
NAIC
ymn @WFJMGEEW
smn smn

a$%1%b$-

"##$%&'*(.

_HW
XADCLHICHKGE
CHKJKW
AL
HAHS
FLAOJK

zAMGE
AL
NKGKC
XADCLHICHKGE

GXCHMJCN


zAMGE
XADCLHICHKN



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

���			��������������	��� ��������!�

"#$	%$&'(	)*+,-.	-/$0+-1$2	+#$	3')4&$+$	&-2+	'5	4,'6$3+2	,$3'))$0/$/	-0	+#-2	4&*07	3'',/-0*+-08	
4*,+0$,27	*0/	*0	*44,'.-)*+$	3'2+9	:,'6$3+2	*,$	',8*0-;$/	%<	+#$	/$2+-0*+-'0	+#$<	*-)	+'	-)4,'=$9	
:,'6$3+	3'2+2	*,$	$2+-)*+$/	*0/	*,$	3&*22-1$/	*2	&'(	>&$22	+#*0	?@A7AAAB	)$/-C)	>?@A7AAA	D	?EF7AAAB	
*0/	#-8#	>G?EF7AAAB9	H0	)'2+	3*2$27	*//-+-'0*&	$08-0$$,-08	2+C/-$2	(-&&	0$$/	+'	%$	3'0/C3+$/	4,-',	+'	
-)4&$)$0+*+-'09	I',	)',$	/$+*-&	*%'C+	$*3#	4,'6$3+	+-)$7	,$5$,	+'	+#$	*44,'4,-*+$	2$3+-'0	-0	J#*4+$,	
K9	:,'6$3+2	,$3'))$0/$/	2#'C&/	%$	,$=-2-+$/	*0/	*/6C2+$/	$*3#	<$*,	/C,-08	+#$	L-&&*8$M2	*00C*&	
%C/8$+	4,'3$22	*0/	*/6C2+$/	+'	,$N$3+	3C,,$0+	4,-',-+-$27	*=*-&*%&$	5C0/-087	*0/	3'',/-0*+-'0	',	8,*0+	
'44',+C0-+-$29	

OPQRSTURVWUVRX	OYZ[XYXPUSU\]P	̂SUR\_

X̀TU\PSU\]Pa	bXTU	cWd]][

efgghifg	jklmn
ekompfgq

rmsfllmtikohft efuo effgihtkohtp	
vkgotmgu

wxyyz{xy	|}~��	
w}���xy�

���x~~��{}�zx� wx�� wxxy{z�}�z��	
�}y���y�

���{��	�x}{ �z��	z�	�z{��}��	�}�� ��{z�~ �z��yz��	��

���{��	�x}{ �}y�	�yx���}���	x�	�z{�	��y���� �x�

���{��	�x}{ wy�}��	��}�{	�}��	}y�}�	}�	�x�����{�y	
�x}{

�x� �z��yz��	��

���{��	�x}{ ����}��	���xx�	�x��	�}��~���	~}y�z��� �x� �z��yz��	��

���{��	�x}{ wx�{���	�y}��z�	���{�	�xy	}{{z�zx�}�	
��{���yz}�	�yx��z��

�x�

���{��	�x}{ ����}��	���}yyx��� ��{z�~

���{��	�x}{ �}y���y	�z��	����	����	x�	�x�����{�y	�x}{ |�� ����



��������	
�

�

������������

��������������
������������ �
!����"#
� ������$

%�������� �&
' ��(
)����(
*����

+,--./,-
01234
+1536,-7

839,223:/15.,: +,;5 +,,-/.:15.:6

<1-5:3-;

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ IJK?>H@
B?DGL
M@BC@@N
OGBBL@
P>QA@
>R

SL@NT>@
DNU
=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@
DNU
GJK?>H@

T?>AAGNV
DB
=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@

W@UGQJ X>>Y
X>QNBE
=>?@AB

Z?@A@?H@
FGAB?GTB[

IF\]

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ =GLL
GN
AGU@CDLY
VDKA W@UGQJ IF\][
DMQBB@?A

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ INABDLL
CD?NGNV
AGVNA
>N
̂Y>YG@
X>QNB?E

XLQM
KDB_

O>C Ŷ>YG@
X>QNB?E
XLQM

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ IJK?>H@
V?DH@L
A_>QLU@?A PGV_ IF\]

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ IJK?>H@
B?DGL
M@BC@@N
OGBBL@
P>QA@
>R

SL@NT>@
DNU
=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@
DNU
GJK?>H@

T?>AAGNV
DB
=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@

W@UGQJ X>>Y
X>QNBE
=>?@AB

Z?@A@?H@
FGAB?GTB[

IF\]

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ =GLL
GN
AGU@CDLY
VDKA W@UGQJ IF\][
DMQBB@?A

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ INABDLL
CD?NGNV
AGVNA
>N
̂Y>YG@
X>QNB?E

XLQM
KDB_

O>C Ŷ>YG@
X>QNB?E
XLQM

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ IJK?>H@
V?DH@L
A_>QLU@?A PGV_ IF\]

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ IJK?>H@
B?DGL
M@BC@@N
OGBBL@
P>QA@
>R

SL@NT>@
DNU
=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@
DNU
GJK?>H@

T?>AAGNV
DB
=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@

W@UGQJ X>>Y
X>QNBE
=>?@AB

Z?@A@?H@
FGAB?GTB[

IF\]

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ =GLL
GN
AGU@CDLY
VDKA W@UGQJ IF\][
DMQBB@?A

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ INABDLL
CD?NGNV
AGVNA
>N
̂Y>YG@
X>QNB?E

XLQM
KDB_

O>C Ŷ>YG@
X>QNB?E
XLQM

=>?@ABCDE
F?GH@ IJK?>H@
V?DH@L
A_>QLU@?A PGV_ IF\]

%�������� �&
*�̀���
a�����

+,--./,-
01234
+1536,-7

839,223:/15.,: +,;5 +,,-/.:15.:6

<1-5:3-;

S?@@N
bDE
c>DU X>NUQTB
B?DRRGT
ABQUE
>N
]DYGRR
X@NB@?

T?>AAGNV

O>C SL@NT>@
ZD?Y
FGAB?GTB

S?@@N
bDE
c>DU c@J>H@
de
T>?N@?
TQ?M
?DJKA
DB
]DYGRR O>C SL@NT>@
ZD?Y
FGAB?GTB

S?@@N
bDE
c>DU c@fV?DU@
_GLL
DB
]DYGRR
X@NB@? O>C SL@NT>@
ZD?Y
FGAB?GTB



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

��������������	��������������	 ����!"	��������#

$����������%	&����	'�(	)����

*+,,-.+,	/0123
*0425+,6

728+1129.04-+9 *+:4 *++,.-904-95	
;0,492,:

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI AGIH>@@	JDGI?IHFGH	?GKD=B>H?DG>@	>GL	
M>NK?GL?GO	I?OG>OF	DG	P=FFG	Q>N	<=>?@

RDM P@FGJDF	S>=T	U?IH=?JH

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI AGIH>@@	VIW>==DMIX	DG	DGYIH=FFH	IFOBFGHI	
ZGF>=YHF=B[	>GL	F\C@D=F	KF>I?]?@?HN	DK	
J=F>H?GO	>G	FGH?=F@N	DKKYIH=FFH	H=>?@	Z@DGOY	
HF=B[

RDM	Y	̂?OW

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI _F>CC@N	@?BFIHDGF	IJ=FFG?GO	DG	HWF	P=FFG	
Q>N	<=>?@	GD=HW	DK	̀>C@F	̂?@@	_D>L

F̀L?aB

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI AGIH>@@	]?JNJ@F	J=DIIM>@TIb	@>LLF=	
J=DIIM>@TIb	>GL	H=>?@	J=DII?GO	I?OGI	>H	>@@	
O=>LF	J=DII?GOI	>@DGO	HWF	P=FFG	Q>N	<=>?@

F̀L?aB

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI c\C@D=F	KF>I?]?@?HN	DK	=F>@?OG?GO	HWF	P=FFG	
Q>N	<=>?@	>H	̀>C@F	̂?@@	_D>L	HD	HWF	F>IH

?̂OW

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI AGIH>@@	]aBCYDaHI	DG	HWF	GD=HWF>IH	>GL	
IDaHWF>IH	JD=GF=I	DK	HWF	P=FFG	Q>N	<=>?@	
>GL	S>=T	dEFGaF

F̀L?aB

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI ABC@FBFGH	<DD@F	UFI?OG	eHaLN	
=FJDBBFGL>H?DGI	>H	P=FFG	Q>N	<=>?@	>GL	
>̂fF@	dEFGaF

?̂OW

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI eDKHFG	HWF	>GO@F	DK	HWF	I?LFM>@T	HW>H	
JDGGFJHI	HD	HWF	P=FFG	Q>N	<=>?@	DG	HWF	
IDaHWMFIH	JD=GF=	DK	eDaHW	dEFGaF

RDM

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI ABC=DEF	H=>?@	>JJFII	CD?GHI	>H	gFGHMD=HW	
>GL	gDDL@>MG	dEFGaFI

RDM

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI c\C@D=F	DCH?DGI	KD=	?BC=DE?GO	@?OWH?GO	DG	
P=FFG	Q>N	<=>?@	>H	G?OWH

<QU

<=>?@	ABC=DEFBFGHI hDD=L?G>HF	M?HW	P@FGJDF	S>=T	U?IH=?JH	DG	
R?GF>=	S>=Ti

?̂OW P@FGJDF	S>=T	U?IH=?JH	
Z@F>L	>OFGJN[

R>TF	hDDT	_D>L AGIH>@@	M>NK?GL?GO	I?OG>OF RDM ?̂OW@>GL	S>=Tb	hDDT	
hDaGHN

R>TF	hDDT	_D>L eHaLN	M>NI	HD	JDGGFJH	HD	HWF	UFI	S@>?GFI	
_?EF=	<=>?@

F̀L?aB hDDT	hDaGHNb	
?̂OW@>GL	S>=Tb	
jD=HW]=DDT



��������	
�

�

������������

��������������
������������ �
!����"#
� ������$

%�������� �&
% '�� '�
(���� �

)*++,-*+
./012
)/314*+5

617*0018-/3,*8 )*93 )**+-,8/3,84

:/+381+9

;<==>
?@A
BC@D EFD=>
GFD=H@IJ
K=LH==>
MNDC<
OCN<L
@>D

P@Q=I
RS=>N=

T=DFNU ;I=>VC=
OW@UK=<
CX

OCUU=<V=

;<==>
?@A
BC@D YUZ<CS=
T=L<@
O<CGGF>[
HFLW
L<FUUF>[
@>D

BB\?

]CH

%�������� �&
̂ ��_
̂�_  �

)*++,-*+
./012
)/314*+5

617*0018-/3,*8 )*93 )**+-,8/3,84

:/+381+9

;<==>
?@A
BC@D Y>GL@II
GVWCCI
V<CGGF>[
Z@S=U=>L
U@<JF>[G

@L
̀CNLW
RS=>N=

]CH aFGL<FVL
bc

;<==>
?@A
BC@D T@J=
Z=D=GL<F@>
@>D
KFVAVI=
V<CGGF>[

FUZ<CS=U=>LG
@L
P@<KC<
̀L<==L
dICCZ

D=L=VLC<Ge
V<CGGH@IJe
HFD=>
GL@>D
K@VJ

@<=@f

T=DFNU

(������
���� g������&
h�� ����i�
�����
�� ��$
��_  ��#
���j�#
��$
$ '�� '�
(���� �

)*++,-*+
./012
)/314*+5

617*0018-/3,*8 )*93 )**+-,8/3,84

:/+381+9

F̀D=H@IJG
C>
]CV@I

BC@DG

OC>LF>N=
LC
HC<J
HFLW
>=F[WKC<WCCDG
LW@L
H@>L

GFD=H@IJG

M?a

F̀D=H@IJG
C>
]CV@I

BC@DG

OC>LF>N=
LC
XN>D
GFD=H@IJ
<=ZI@V=U=>L M?a

F̀D=H@IJG
C>
]CV@I

BC@DG

OC>LF>N=
LC
=DNV@L=
<=GFD=>LG
C>
I@>DGV@ZF>[

=>V<C@VWU=>L

klR

F̀D=H@IJG
C>
]CV@I

BC@DG

mS@IN@L=
CZLFC>G
XC<
@
>=H
GFD=H@IJ
GWCS=IF>[

ZCIFVA

klR

F̀D=H@IJG
C>
]CV@I

BC@DG

OC>GFD=<
=nZ@>DF>[
LW=
OYo
LC
XN>D
@DDFLFC>@I

GFD=H@IJ
<=Z@F<G
=@VW
A=@<

M?a

F̀D=H@IJG
C>
]CV@I

BC@DG

B=SF=H
VN<K
<@UZ
ZI@V=U=>LG
LW@L
W@S=
>C

XN>VLFC>@I
<=V=FSF>[
VN<K
<@UZ
C>
LW=
CLW=<
GFD=

CX
LW=
GL<==L

]CH

Y>L=<G=VLFC>G
C>

]CV@I
BC@DG

a=S=ICZ
GL@>D@<DG
XC<
Z@S=U=>L
U@<JF>[G
@>D

GF[>@[=

klR

Y>L=<G=VLFC>G
C>

]CV@I
BC@DG

YD=>LFXA
V<CGGF>[
C<
L<@XXFV
V@IUF>[
FUZ<CS=U=>LG

XC<
p=<>C>
@L
P@Q=Ie
o@<Je
T@DFGC>e
TC><C=e
@>D

q=XX=<GC>

]CH
r
PF[W

Y>L=<G=VLFC>G
C>

]CV@I
BC@DG

TCS=
V<CGGH@IJ
@L
pFII@[=
OCN<L
@>D
P@Q=I ]CH



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�������	�������������	�� �� � !�	�����	���"�#	�$%����&	���'�&	��#	#�(���(�	����$��

)*++,-*+	./012
)/314*+5

617*0018-/3,*8 )*93 )**+-,8/3,84	
:/+381+9

;<=>	?>@ABC=	
DEFCBG>E>H@I	BH	
JBKLM	NBLOI

PDHI@LMM	QIRLCCBAIS	A<@R	@R>	BF@<BH	@B	<HKMTO>	
U<=>	UBTM>GLCO	<EFCBG>E>H@I	BH	V>CHBH	WG>HT>X	
YBT@R	WG>HT>X	ZLC=	WG>HT>X	[BRM\>MO>C	NBLOX	
;MT\\	Y@C>>@X	
YTHI>@	JLH>X	]BBOMLAH	WG>HT>X	̂LFM>	[<MM	NBLO	
LHO	]>I@M>_	NBLOP

>̂O<TE	̀	[<aR

;<=>	?>@ABC=	
DEFCBG>E>H@I	BH	
JBKLM	NBLOI

DHI@LMM	AL_\<HO<Ha	I<aHLa>	BH	V>CHBH	WG>HT>X	
YBT@R	WG>HT>X	ZLC=	WG>HT>X	[BRM\>MO>C	NBLOX	
;MT\\	Y@C>>@X	YTHI>@	JLH>X	]BBOMLAH	WG>HT>X	
L̂FM>	[<MM	NBLOX	]>I@M>_	NBLOX	bMO	cC>>H	;L_	
NBLOX	YKB@@	WG>HT>X	YBT@R	WG>HT>	LHO	]BBOMLAH	
WG>HT>

JBA

;<=>	?>@ABC=	
DEFCBG>E>H@I	BH	
JBKLM	NBLOI

PDHI@LMM	LOO<@<BHLM	U<=>	FLC=<Ha	L@	@R>	cM>HKB>	
J<UCLC_X	H>LC	cCLHO	dBBOIX	L@	@R>	̂>@CL	Y@L@<BHX	
H>LC	@R>	cM>HKB>	ZBI@	b\\<K>X	H>LC	ZLC=	
LHO	V>CHBH	WG>HT>IX	L@	@R>	eL=<\\	f>H@>CX	L@	
]LMaC>>HgIX	L@	@R>	
JL=>\CBH@	ZLC=	LHO	TFaCLO>	@R>	U<=>	CLK=I	L@	
YBT@R	YKRBBMh	iOTKL@>	C>I<O>H@I	BH	FC>G>H@<Ha	
U<K_KM>	@R>\@IhP

JBA cM>HKB>	ZLC=	
j<I@C<K@X	j<I@C<K@	klX	
cM>HKB>	fRLEU>C	B\	
fBEE>CK>

;<=>	?>@ABC=	
DEFCBG>E>H@I	BH	
JBKLM	NBLOI

iI@LUM<IR	L	I_I@>E	\BC	C>I<O>H@I	@B	C>FBC@	LC>LI	
@RL@	H>>O	U<=>	CLK=	@B	U>	<HI@LMM>O	BC	<EFCBG>O

JBA cM>HKB>	ZLC=	
j<I@C<K@X	j<I@C<K@	klX	
cM>HKB>	fRLEU>C	B\	
fBEE>CK>

YR>C<OLH	NBLO ZLC@H>C	A<@R	FC<GL@>	MLHOBAH>CI	@B	<HI@LMM	
I<O>ALM=I

[<aR

YR>C<OLH	NBLO DHI@LMM	KBTH@OBAH	I<aHLM	L@	ZLC=	WG>HT>	I<aHLM >̂O<TE

YR>C<OLH	NBLO DEFCBG>	<H@>CI>K@<BH	L@	IBT@R	A<@R	aC>>H	FL<H@	BC	
C>̀LM<aH<Ha	a>BE>@C_

JBA	̀	[<aR

YR>C<OLH	NBLO ZLC@H>C	A<@R	FC<GL@>	MLHOBAH>CI	@B	<HI@LMM	
I<O>ALM=I

[<aR

YR>C<OLH	NBLO DHI@LMM	KBTH@OBAH	I<aHLM	L@	ZLC=	WG>HT>	I<aHLM >̂O<TE

YR>C<OLH	NBLO DEFCBG>	<H@>CI>K@<BH	L@	IBT@R	A<@R	aC>>H	FL<H@	BC	
C>̀LM<aH<Ha	a>BE>@C_

JBA	̀	[<aR

cC>>H	;L_	NBLO DEFCBG>	KCBII<Ha	L@	J<HO>H	WG>HT>	A<@R	C>\Ta>	
<IMLHOX	KCBIIALM=X	LHO	NNd;

>̂O<TE	̀	[<aR cM>HKB>	fRLEU>C	B\	
fBEE>CK>

cC>>H	;L_	NBLO eC<E	ULK=	MLHOIKLF<Ha	L@	J<HO>H	WG>HT>	LHO	
cC>>H	;L_

JBA

��m�����"$�"��	����������� ��	n��� o&	$��� �"�#



��������	
�

�

������������

���


�������
�
������
��� ����
�� �!�!�"�"�#�

$%&
'&()*
+,-./0
/1
,
2.)2)1&3
14%&35(&
6).
/+2(&+&7-/78
-%&
*,(9/78
,73
'/9/78
4,+2,/87:
$%&

14%&35(&
,115+&1
-%,-
/-
*/((
-,9&
1&;&.,(
+)7-%1
-)
3&;&()2
,
4)).3/7,-&3
4,+2,/87
,4.)11
,8&74/&1

,73
,44)57-1
6).
<=+)7-%1
)6
2(,77/78:
$%/1
+,-./0
1%)5(3
'&
'5/(-
)5-
*/-%
,33/-/)7,(
,4-/)7
/-&+1

,-
-%&
4,+2,/87
-,9&1
1%,2&:

>?@ABCD
E
FBABCD
G?HI?BDC
JHI@KHKCL?LBMC
N?LOBP

QRST UVSWXY Z[\S][WS

_̂̀abcd_e
a
fgghidjàdjk
fglld̀̀mm

afhg__
acc
akmjfdm_

ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
yz

{gj̀e
|}~

xm�mcg�
aj
a��hgafe
�gh
fgccmf̀djk

ba_mcdjm
iàa

ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e
|}~

�imj̀d�r
aiid̀dgjac
�ah̀jmh_
̀g

djfcqim
dj
fal�adkj
djd̀dàd�m_

ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e
|}~

�gccmf̀
ba_mcdjm
iàa ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e_
y}�

�imj̀d�r
fal�adkj
bhajidjko

lm__akdjk
aji
cgkg

ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e_
y}�

�hmàm
_femiqcm
g�
m�mj̀_
�gh

fal�adkj
̀g
̀ahkm̀

ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e_
y}�

�m_mahfe
aji
dimj̀d�r
miqfàdgjac

làmhdac_
̀g
q_m
dj
fgj�qjf̀dgj
�d̀e

èm
fal�adkj

ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e_
y}�

wqhfea_m
fgccàmhac
làmhdac_
aji

kd�ma�ar_


ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e_
y}�

�aqjfe
�al�adkj ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e
�

shaft
�al�adkj
whgkhm__
̀ehgqke

_qh�mr_o
fgqj̀_
aji
g̀emh
iàa

fgccmf̀dgj
lm̀egigcgkdm_
im�mcg�mi

dj
lgj̀e_
y}��

ndccakmo
pq_̀adjabdcd̀r
sa_t
ughfmo

vcmjfgm
waht
xd_̀hdf̀o
pfeggc

xd_̀hdf̀
y

{gj̀e_
��



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

����	��	����	��������	��� 	��������!	"���

"��#$�	��$����	!�	%$�����	&����



�����������

	
��	�
�



�� ��������	�
����
	����
	
������	�

�������������������������������������

�  !"#!$�%!&'�()*'+,�-.!/�01)  '"2'�

1++345566678!&'$)*'+,9.!/7:#;5

<":#.=)2'�:,: !$+$�)">�>=!?'=$�+#�+'$+�+1'!=�8!&'�
$)*'+,�)">�$1)='�+1'�=#)>�&"#6 '>2'�!"�+1!$�
#" !"'�+'$+�>'$!2"'>�8,�@!>'��  !"#!$7

A)+!#") �()*'�@#.+'$�+#�(:1## �B)=+"'=$1!3

6667$)*'=#.+'$3)=+"'=$1!37#=2

C**'=�)"�)""#+)+'>�8!8 !#2=)31,�#*�+=)*D:�$)*'+,�
:.==!:. )�)">�#+1'=�'>.:)+!#") �='$#.=:'$7

A)+!#") �E!216),�F=)*D:�()*'+,�G$$#:!)+!#"

1++3$4556667"1+$)72#?53'>'$+=!)"H$)*'+,5:1! >H
3'>'$+=!)"H$)*'+,H:.==!:. .;

B=#?!>'$� '$$#"�3 )"$�8,�2=)>'� '?' �#"�
3'>'$+=!)"�)">�8!:,: '�$)*'+,7

I')2.'�#*�G;'=!:)"�%!:,: !$+$

�����������	
����	

��������������������������������
�����

���	������������������
�������������
��	������

������	��������������������������
�����������������

�����������������������������������������
�����

��������������� ����������!���������
"#$%&''($)*+'

�����������	

,����������������������������
���������

������������������������������
�����������

����
��	������������	���



�����������

	
����������������������������
������������������

� 

!"# !"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"
!"#

!"#!"# !"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#
!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"

!"#

!"

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

!"# !"#

!"#

!"#

!"#

$%&

'())*�+,-�(.

/0*.,
/*

1(
)2
1)
*3
�.
(

+/4
55�(

.

26)(0.,*�(.

)/7
(
0.
'
)�.
(

8
,9

3)
(
(

1
,(
8
/�
/*

/0
*.
,�
/*

8
/.

)/7
�:/

307+
)(�/*

;,/.
)*�.(

:,(9�:/

2-/<,
*�(.

.

3)((,1)�13

7
),.8

;
�(
.

'/)*18)�.(

8
/.
�)
/7
�1
3

58()23�,<)

5(
,*
9/
0*
�(
.

),23;
8
8
.
�(
.

7,:/)�60//�(.

24*2)3�/*

.4
*.
))
�(.

=>?@AA�
BCD=CE

F FGHFGFI
JKLMN

$%&1OPQQRST�'UVOW

XY3OVZZR[2RTSV\

!"# 2]P̂�2RTS
:OR_VÒ�(PU]a
2a[PSWVÒ�(PU]a
8ZZb2]Oaa]�:V]c

d



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�����	���	���
���	��� !"�	#$%&	'()*%(!*	�$)	+�,��"-�+	.$�&( /	$ +	0(&( /	%"1*�	2$-)	*"	*��	�$&(33	4� *�%	$ +	��� !"�	
5��6�	�7	�	8�9	��	�:6��;�<�	=�;�	>�=?@?�7	��	6���7�	��	8�@A	�:B	�?A�	��	�:B	>;�=	��;A7C	D��	=��7	�;�	B�E
)(/ �+	*"	)�".	*��	�"!$*(" )	"3	*%$3F!	)(/ $�)G	$ +	)*"-	)(/ )	( 	"1%	!"221 (*HI	#%(2$%H	%"1*�)	$%�	*��	2$( 	
;����7	8�	�:6��;�<�	>�=?@?�7	��	�7�	��	�;�J�@	��	��;A7K	���	7�6�:B�;9	;����7	>��B	?:��	���	�;?=�;9	;����7	�:B	
8?@@	��	=�7�@9	�;�J�@�B	���:	�9	���7�	8��	@?J�	�@�:<	���=C

L�	�:6��;�<�	��;�:�7	��	;�J?�8	8�@A?:<	�:B	�?696@?:<	7�>��9	7A?@@7	8?��	���?;	6�?@B;�:K	�;�>�;��@9	8�?@�	�:	�	
8�@A	�;	�?A�	;?B�C	5�@�8	�;�	�?�7	�:B	�;?6A7	����	�@@	��B�7�;?�:7	�:B	696@?7�7	7���@B	A:�8	�:B	�;�6�?6�C

L�@A?:<	M�>��9	MA?@@7
NI	O0�H	$��	*%$3F!	)(/ )	$ +	)(/ $�)I
PC	Q���7�	;����7	����	��J�	>�8�;	6�;7	B;?J?:<	��	@�8�;	7���B7C	
RC	S��A	>�;	6�;7	��	�@@	B;?J�8�97	�:B	?:��;7�6�?�:7C
TI	U��%�	-"))(0��G	!%"))	$*	( *�%)�!*(" )	.(*�	*%$3F!	)(/ $�)	"%	)*"-	)(/ )I	
VC	L��:	6;�77?:<K	7���	��	���	6�;�	�:B	@��A	>�;	6�;7	?:	�@@	B?;�6�?�:7	W@�>�K	;?<��K	@�>�K	��	���	>;�:�	�:B	���?:BXC	
YI	U$(*	1 *(�	 "	*%$3F!	()	!"2( /	$ +	)*$%*	!%"))( /Z	&��-	�""&( /	3"%	*%$3F!	$)	H"1	!%"))	*��	%"$+I
[C	�@8�97	8�@A	�6;�77	���	;��BC	\�	:��	;�:C
]I	U�$%	%�̂�!*(,�	/�$%	(3	(*	()	+$%&	"%	!" +(*(" )	�(2(*	,()(0(�(*HG	)1!�	$)	%$( 	"%	) ".I
_C	D�@A	8?��	9��;	6�?@B	�����	8���	9��̀;�	B�?:<	�:B	8�9	�7	9��	8�@AC

5?696@?:<	M�>��9	MA?@@7
aC			L��;	�	��@=��C	b@�:6��	@�8	;�c�?;�7	�J�;9	��;7�:	�:B�;	���	�<�	�>	ad	��	8��;	�	��@=��	��	�;���6�	>;�=	
?:e�;?�7	B�;?:<	�	>�@@C

PC			5�	�8�;�	�:	7?B�8�@A7C	Q�?@B;�:	7���@B	;?B�	�:	7?B�8�@A7	�:�?@	���9	<�?:	7A?@@7	��	;?B�	�:	7�;���7	�;��:B	
���	�<�	�>	aPC	D��6�	���=	��	��	�8�;�	�>	B;?J�;	�@?:B	7���7	7�6�	�7	7�;��7K	>�:6�7K	�:B	��?@B?:<7C

RC			L�@A	9��;	�?A�	?:	6;�778�@A7f	L��:	6;�77?:<	��	�	6;�778�@AK	6�?@B;�:	7���@B	B?7=��:�	�:B	8�@A	���?;	�?A�C
TI			g*"-	F%)*	$ +	�""&I	��$!�	!�(�+%� 	*"	�""&	��3*G	%(/�*G	$ +	��3*	$/$( 	3"%	$--%"$!�( /	*%$3F!I	h2-�$)(i�	*�$*	
*��H	�$,�	*"	*1% 	*��(%	��$+	.�� 	�""&( /	3"%	*%$3F!I

jI			k(+�	( 	*��	+(%�!*(" 	"3	*%$3F!I	k(+( /	$/$( )*	*��	̂".	"3	*%$3F!	" 	$	)*%��*	"%	-$*�.$H	()	$	2$l"%	!" *%(01*E
?:<	6��7�	�>	�?696@�	6;�7��7	>�;	6�?@B;�:C

dC			m?B�	?:	�	7�;�?<��	@?:�C	D��6�	9��;	6�?@B;�:	:��	��	78�;J�	�;	8��J�	?:	�:B	���	�>	��;A�B	6�;7	8��:	;?B?:<	
�:	7�;���7C

nI			o1H	*��	%(/�*	)(i�	0(&�I	p"1%	!�(�+	)�"1�+	0�	$0��	*"	)*$ +	",�%	*��	*"-	0$%	"3	*��	0(&�	.(*�	*��(%	3��*	̂$*	" 	
���	<;��:B	8?��	�:	?:6�	�;	�8�	�>	6@��;�:6�	�J�;	���	���	��;C

qC			Q��6A	���?;	�?A�	>;�c��:�@9C	r:7��6�	9��;	6�?@B̀7	�?A�	�:B	��;>�;=	;�<�@�;	sc�?6A	6��6A7Ct

uvwx	yz{	u|}~�v��	�z�{	��v��{|�	�|�|x�{v}�	�	�v~�~�|	�}y|��	��v��x



�����������

	
����������������������������
������������������

��

!"

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%
#$%#$%
#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%
#$%

#$%

#$%

#$% #$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%
#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%
#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%
#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

#$%

&'

&'

()*

+,--.�/01�,2

34.+5442�06-

,067.-
+302-

/-0
89
�,2

90
:-3
�06
-

;<
24
,

8;

37.
84
3.

2,

=0,
>�0
6-

2-
..
7?�3
.

-

905;94,
.�

06-

30>-5
442�2,

@0=3-�
9733�,2

+,--.3-0A�06-

?9-,720.�,2

432�+,--.�

/01�,2

BCDEFGHIJ�
KCGD�L�
MBEINHE�
OECNP

Q QRSQRQT
UVWXY

()*8Z[\\]̂_�+̀ aZb

&';Zacc]d?]_̂ae

#$% ?f[g�?]_̂
=Z]haZi�,[̀fj
?jd[̂baZi�,[̀fj
4cck?fZjjf�=afl

m



�� �������	
����	��
������
����	��
�

�����	���	���
���	��� !"�	#$%&	'()*%(!*	�$)	+�,��"-�+	.$�&( /	$ +	0(&( /	%"1*�	2$-)	*"	*��	�$&(33	4� *�%	$ +	��� !"�	
5��6�	�7	�	8�9	��	�:6��;�<�	=�;�	>�=?@?�7	��	6���7�	��	8�@A	�:B	�?A�	��	�:B	>;�=	��;A7C	D��	=��7	�;�	B�E
)(/ �+	*"	)�".	*��	�"!$*(" )	"3	*%$3F!	)(/ $�)G	$ +	)*"-	)(/ )	( 	"1%	!"221 (*HI	#%(2$%H	%"1*�)	$%�	*��	2$( 	
;����7	8�	�:6��;�<�	>�=?@?�7	��	�7�	��	�;�J�@	��	��;A7K	���	7�6�:B�;9	;����7	>��B	?:��	���	�;?=�;9	;����7	�:B	
8?@@	��	=�7�@9	�;�J�@�B	���:	�9	���7�	8��	@?J�	�@�:<	���=C

L�	�:6��;�<�	��;�:�7	��	;�J?�8	8�@A?:<	�:B	�?696@?:<	7�>��9	7A?@@7	8?��	���?;	6�?@B;�:K	�;�>�;��@9	8�?@�	�:	�	
8�@A	�;	�?A�	;?B�C	5�@�8	�;�	�?�7	�:B	�;?6A7	����	�@@	��B�7�;?�:7	�:B	696@?7�7	7���@B	A:�8	�:B	�;�6�?6�C

L�@A?:<	M�>��9	MA?@@7
NI	O0�H	$��	*%$3F!	)(/ )	$ +	)(/ $�)I
PC	Q���7�	;����7	����	��J�	>�8�;	6�;7	B;?J?:<	��	@�8�;	7���B7C	
RC	S��A	>�;	6�;7	��	�@@	B;?J�8�97	�:B	?:��;7�6�?�:7C
TI	U��%�	-"))(0��G	!%"))	$*	( *�%)�!*(" )	.(*�	*%$3F!	)(/ $�)	"%	)*"-	)(/ )I	
VC	L��:	6;�77?:<K	7���	��	���	6�;�	�:B	@��A	>�;	6�;7	?:	�@@	B?;�6�?�:7	W@�>�K	;?<��K	@�>�K	��	���	>;�:�	�:B	���?:BXC	
YI	U$(*	1 *(�	 "	*%$3F!	()	!"2( /	$ +	)*$%*	!%"))( /Z	&��-	�""&( /	3"%	*%$3F!	$)	H"1	!%"))	*��	%"$+I
[C	�@8�97	8�@A	�6;�77	���	;��BC	\�	:��	;�:C
]I	U�$%	%�̂�!*(,�	/�$%	(3	(*	()	+$%&	"%	!" +(*(" )	�(2(*	,()(0(�(*HG	)1!�	$)	%$( 	"%	) ".I
_C	D�@A	8?��	9��;	6�?@B	�����	8���	9��̀;�	B�?:<	�:B	8�9	�7	9��	8�@AC

5?696@?:<	M�>��9	MA?@@7
aC			L��;	�	��@=��C	b@�:6��	@�8	;�c�?;�7	�J�;9	��;7�:	�:B�;	���	�<�	�>	ad	��	8��;	�	��@=��	��	�;���6�	>;�=	
?:e�;?�7	B�;?:<	�	>�@@C

PC			5�	�8�;�	�:	7?B�8�@A7C	Q�?@B;�:	7���@B	;?B�	�:	7?B�8�@A7	�:�?@	���9	<�?:	7A?@@7	��	;?B�	�:	7�;���7	�;��:B	
���	�<�	�>	aPC	D��6�	���=	��	��	�8�;�	�>	B;?J�;	�@?:B	7���7	7�6�	�7	7�;��7K	>�:6�7K	�:B	��?@B?:<7C

RC			L�@A	9��;	�?A�	?:	6;�778�@A7f	L��:	6;�77?:<	��	�	6;�778�@AK	6�?@B;�:	7���@B	B?7=��:�	�:B	8�@A	���?;	
�?A�C

TI			g*"-	F%)*	$ +	�""&I	��$!�	!�(�+%� 	*"	�""&	��3*G	%(/�*G	$ +	��3*	$/$( 	3"%	$--%"$!�( /	*%$3F!I	h2-�$)(i�	
*�$*	*��H	�$,�	*"	*1% 	*��(%	��$+	.�� 	�""&( /	3"%	*%$3F!I

jI			k(+�	( 	*��	+(%�!*(" 	"3	*%$3F!I	k(+( /	$/$( )*	*��	̂".	"3	*%$3F!	" 	$	)*%��*	"%	-$*�.$H	()	$	2$l"%	!" *%(0E
��?:<	6��7�	�>	�?696@�	6;�7��7	>�;	6�?@B;�:C

dC			m?B�	?:	�	7�;�?<��	@?:�C	D��6�	9��;	6�?@B;�:	:��	��	78�;J�	�;	8��J�	?:	�:B	���	�>	��;A�B	6�;7	8��:	;?B?:<	
�:	7�;���7C

nI			o1H	*��	%(/�*	)(i�	0(&�I	p"1%	!�(�+	)�"1�+	0�	$0��	*"	)*$ +	",�%	*��	*"-	0$%	"3	*��	0(&�	.(*�	*��(%	3��*	̂$*	
�:	���	<;��:B	8?��	�:	?:6�	�;	�8�	�>	6@��;�:6�	�J�;	���	���	��;C

qC			Q��6A	���?;	�?A�	>;�c��:�@9C	r:7��6�	9��;	6�?@B̀7	�?A�	�:B	��;>�;=	;�<�@�;	sc�?6A	6��6A7Ct

uvwx	yz{	u|}~�v��	�z�{	��v��{|�	�|�|x�{v}�	�	�v~�~�|	�}y|��	��v��x



���������	��
����	���	�������	�������	���	
�����
	������



X. Action Item B
Approval of Land Acquisition Policy

Glencoe Park District
November 2018 Board Meeting



Approved by the Board of Park Commissioners Land Acquisition Policy
MM/DD/YYYY – Approval Draft Page 1 of 3

Glencoe Park District
Land Acquisition Policy

Purpose
The purpose of this program is to prescribe District requirements, functions, procedures and
responsibilities regarding determinations of the risk of exposing the District to liability for
hazardous substances or other environmental cleanup costs and damages associated with the
acquisition of any real property. The requirements, functions, and procedures prescribed are
intended to ensure that the District determines, prior to real property acquisition, the
likelihood of the presence and extent of hazardous substance related and other environmental
liability associated with real property. Such determinations must be a consideration in any
decision to acquire real property and to establish the total actual or potential cost of or
resulting from the acquisition.

Scope
The responsibilities and requirements shall apply to any proposed District acquisition of real
property to which District liability for hazardous substances or other environmental
remediation or damages can attach.

Land Acquisition Environmental Review Guidelines
Minimize the potential liability of the District by acquiring real property that is not
contaminated unless directed by the Board of Commissioners.
Identify potential hazardous substance related threats to fish and wildlife, their habitats,
and other environmental problems prior to real property acquisition.
Remediate any identified hazardous substance or develop remediation plan for identified
hazardous substances related to proposed property acquisition prior to closing.

Definitions:
“Environmental Site Assessment” means an analysis of an environmental site, prior to
acquisition of real property, to determine the potential of, and extent of liability for
hazardous substances or other environmental remediation or injury.
“Hazardous Substances” means all CERCLA (Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act) listed substances [see 42 USC 9601(14)], petroleum
products or their derivatives (including aviation fuel and motor oil).
“Other Environmental Problems” means problems associated with environmental
contamination, whether or not involving hazardous substances.
“Real Property” means any land or an interest therein, and all buildings, structures, and
improvements affixed to the land.
“Real Property Acquisition” means the acquisition of real property, for any period of time,
through discretionary acts or when required by law, whether by way of condemnation,
donation, escheat, right of entry, escrow, exchange, lapses, purchase, revocation, or
transfer.



Approved by the Board of Park Commissioners Land Acquisition Policy
MM/DD/YYYY – Approval Draft Page 2 of 3

“Release” means any release [see 42 USC 9601(22)], discharge [see 33 USC 1321(a)(2)], or
threatened discharge of a hazardous substance into the air, soil, sediment, groundwater,
surface water, or any structures located on the real property.
“Remediation” means meeting the requirements and standards of applicable federal and
state laws applicable to hazardous substance management or cleanup.
“Remediation or Other Cleanup Costs” means the actual or potential costs to the
department or the service for remediation or other environmental cleanup, or other
damages or costs associated with hazardous substance contamination of real property.
“Requirements” Environmental site assessments must be completed to satisfy the detailed
planning and pre acquisition requirements.
“Planning Overview Surveys” During the planning process, an "overview" survey or Phase I
Environmental Survey is completed when a new parcel or property is proposed for
acquisition. The purpose of an "overview" survey is to identify actual or potential hazardous
substances or other environmental problems within the area proposed.
“Acquisition Surveys and Analysis” Before the District acquires any real property, the
District shall:
a. Complete a Phase I Environmental Survey to ascertain the likelihood of the presence and

extent of hazardous substances or other environmental problems associated with such
property and any remediation or other cleanup costs.

b. Weigh the environmental and/or public benefits relative to the total cost of the
acquisition including (a) fair market value, (b) actual or potential remediation or other
environmental cleanup costs, and (c) any known or reasonably estimated monetary
damages that could be associated with the acquisition.

c. Inform the appropriate committees of the total cost(s) as determined above for any
acquisition of contaminated property.

Environmental Site Assessments
Phase I Environmental Survey must be completed for all acquisitions. The Phase I
Environmental Survey is used to determine whether there are any potential hazardous
substance or other environmental problems and whether a Phase II Survey is needed.
Phase II Environmental Survey may be necessary when Phase I Survey identifies potential
hazardous substance. Phase II Environmental Survey will include sampling to determine
whether there is a presence or absence of hazardous substances in the potential sites
identified in the Phase I survey. If the proposed acquisition continues past this point, a
Phase III environmental survey will be required.
Phase III Environmental Survey is required when the District determines that a hazardous
substance is present. Additional sampling and research is necessary to determine the extent
of any hazardous substance and the actual or potential cost for remediation.

Assessment Standards and Conditions
Minimum Standards: The Phase I environmental study should recognize existing
environmental conditions and include information that is reasonably ascertainable. It must
be complete in terms of technical accuracy and comprehensiveness.



Approved by the Board of Park Commissioners Land Acquisition Policy
MM/DD/YYYY – Approval Draft Page 3 of 3

Qualifications of Personnel: Environmental site assessments must be conducted by
qualified individuals.
Environmental Surveys must be completed by an Environmental Contaminants Specialist or
contractor approved by the Forest Preserve District.
Time Limit: The Environmental Site Assessment Level I Survey should be completed within
one year prior to the real property acquisition.
Land Acquisition Budget Requests should include the costs for pre acquisition surveys.
Pre acquisition Environmental Site Assessments are pre acquisition costs and may be
charged to the Land Acquisition Fund.
Remediation or other cleanup costs are post acquisition costs and are not chargeable to
these accounts.

PDF Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval
Word Version: insert hyperlink to document following approval


	AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Minutes of October 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting
	2018 Lakefront Report

	Voucher List of Bills 10/11/18-11/7/18

	TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING & APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 889
	Ordinance No. 889: Levying the Taxes for the Glencoe Park District for 2018

	FINANCIAL REPORT
	Financial Report

	STAFF REPORTS
	Business Dept Report
	Recreation/Facilities Dept Report
	Parks/Maintenance Dept Report
	Marketing/Communications Dept Report
	Minutes of October 25, 2018 Safety & Wellness Committee

	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	Executive Director's Report

	ACTION ITEM A
	Glencoe Active Transportation Plan
	Glencoe Park District Active Transportation Plan

	ACTION ITEM B
	Land Acquisition Policy


